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                                 PART I 
   
   
Item 1.  Business: 
   
  Unifi, Inc., a New York corporation formed in 1969, together with its  
subsidiaries, hereinafter set forth, (the "Company" or "Unifi"), is engaged  
predominantly in the business of processing yarns by:  texturing of synthetic 
filament polyester and nylon fiber; and spinning of cotton and cotton blend  
fibers.   
   
  The Company's texturing operation mainly involves purchasing partially  
oriented yarn (POY), which is either raw polyester or nylon filament fiber,  
from chemical manufacturers and using high speed machines to draw, heat and  
twist the POY to produce yarns having various physical characteristics,  
depending upon its ultimate end use.  The Company's cotton spinning operation 
mainly involves the spinning on open-end spindles of cotton, cotton and undyed 
synthetic blends, and cotton and pre-dyed polyester blends into yarns of  
different strengths and thickness.    
 
  The Company currently sells textured polyester yarns, nylon yarns, dyed  
yarns, covered yarns, spun yarns made of cotton, cotton and undyed synthetic  
blends, pre-dyed cotton blends, and cotton and pre-dyed polyester blends  
domestically and internationally to weavers and knitters who produce fabrics  
for the apparel, industrial, hosiery, home furnishing, auto upholstery, 
activewear, and underwear markets.    
   
     The Company, internationally, has manufacturing facilities in  
Letterkenny, County Donegal, Republic of Ireland, which texturizes polyester, 
as well as producing its own POY.  
 
  On June 30, 1997, Unifi and Parkdale Mills, Inc. ("Parkdale") entered into  
a joint venture combining all of Unifi's cotton spinning operations with  
certain of Parkdale's spun yarn assets into a new company named "Parkdale  
America, LLC" (the "LLC").  Parkdale is the majority owner of the LLC and  
manages the day-to-day operations of the LLC. For further information on this 
matter, reference is made to Unifi's Form 8-K dated June 30, 1997, and filed  
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC" or "Commission") on  
July 15, 1997, which is incorporated herein by reference.  All further  
reference to Unifi's cotton spinning operations in this report should be read 
in light of the Parkdale transaction. 
 
     SOURCES AND AVAILABILITY OF RAW MATERIALS:   
   
     A.  POY.  The primary suppliers of POY to the Company are E. I. DuPont  
de Nemours and Company, Hoechst Celanese Corporation, Wellman Industries,  
Cookson Fibers, Inc., and Nan Ya Plastics Corp. of America with the majority  
of the Company's POY being supplied by DuPont.  Although the Company is  
heavily dependent upon a limited number of suppliers, the Company has not had 
and does not anticipate any material difficulty in obtaining its raw POY.  
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     B.  Cotton.  The Company buys its cotton, which is a commodity and is  
traded on established markets, from brokers such as Staple Cotton Coop.,  
Dunavant Enterprises, Conti-Cotton, HoHenBerg Brothers Co., Allenberg Cotton  
Co., and Carolina Cotton Growers. The Company has not had and does not  
anticipate any material difficulty in obtaining cotton. 
 
 
     PATENTS AND LICENSES:  The Company currently has several patents and  
registered trademarks, none of which it considers material to its business as 
a whole.      
   
 
     CUSTOMERS:  The Company in fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, sold  
textured and spun yarns to approximately 1,400 customers, no one customer's  
purchases exceeded 10% of net sales during said period, the ten largest  
customers accounted for approximately 29% of total net sales and the Company  
does not believe that it is dependent on any one customer.   
   
     BACKLOG:  The Company, other than in connection with certain foreign  
sales and for textured yarns that are package dyed according to customers'  
specifications, does not manufacture to order.  The Company's products can be 
used in many ways and can be thought of in terms of a commodity subject to  
the laws of supply and demand and, therefore, does not have what is  
considered a backlog of orders.  In addition, the Company does not consider its 
products to be seasonal ones.   
   
 
     COMPETITIVE CONDITIONS:  The textile industry in which the Company  
currently operates is keenly competitive.  The Company processes and sells  
high-volume commodity products, pricing is highly competitive with product  
quality and customer service being essential for differentiating the  
competitors within the industry.  Product quality insures manufacturing 
efficiencies for the customer.  The Company's polyester and nylon yarns, dyed 
yarns, covered yarns and cotton and cotton blend yarns compete with a number  
of other domestic producers of such yarns.  In the sale of polyester filament 
yarns, major competitors are Atlas Yarn Company, Inc., Burlington Industries, 
Inc., and Milliken & Company; in the sale of nylon yarns, dyed yarns, and  
covered yarns, major competitors are Jefferson Mills, Inc., Spanco Yarns, Inc., 
Regal Manufacturing Company, and Spectrum Dyed Yarns, Inc.; and in the sale  
of cotton and cotton blend yarns, major competitors are Parkdale Mills, Inc., 
Avondale Mills, Inc., Harriett & Henderson, Mayo Yarns, Inc., and TNS Mills,  
Inc.     
   
    
     RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:  The estimated amount spent during each of the 
last three fiscal years on Company-sponsored and Customer-sponsored research  
and development activities is considered immaterial.    
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     COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS:  Management of the 
Company believes that the operation of the Company's production facilities  
and the disposal of waste materials are substantially in compliance with  
applicable laws and regulations.    
   
 
     EMPLOYEES:  The number of full-time employees of the Company is  
approximately 7,000.  
 
   
     FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC INTERNATIONAL 
OPERATIONS AND EXPORT SALES:  The information included under the heading  
"Business Segments, Foreign Operations and Concentrations of Credit Risk" on  
Page 26 of the Annual Report of the Company to the Shareholders for the  
fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
Item 2.  Description of Property:   
   
       The Company currently maintains a total of 21 manufacturing and  
warehousing facilities and one central distribution center in North Carolina, 
one manufacturing and related warehousing facility in Staunton, Virginia,  
one central distribution center in Fort Payne, Alabama, and one manufacturing 
and related warehousing facility in Letterkenny, County of Donegal, Republic of  
Ireland.  All of these facilities, which contain approximately 7,922,953  
square feet of floor space, with the exception of the six (6) plant  
facilities leased from NationsBanc Leasing & R.E. Corporation pursuant to a  
sales-leaseback agreement entered on May 20, 1997, are owned in fee; and  
management believes they are in good condition, well maintained, and are  
suitable and adequate for present production.     
                        
     The Company leases sales offices and/or apartments in New York,  
Coleshill, England, and Lyon, France, and has a representative office in  
Tokyo, Japan.   
   
     The Company also leases its corporate headquarters building at 7201 West 
Friendly Avenue, Greensboro, North Carolina, which consists of a building  
containing approximately 121,125 square feet located on a tract of land  
containing approximately 8.99 acres.  This property is leased from  
NationsBank, Trustee under the Unifi, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, and 
Wachovia Bank & Trust Company, N.A., Independent Trustee.  On May 20, 1996,  
the Company exercised its option to extend the term of the lease on this  
property for five (5) years, through March 13, 2002.  Reference is made to a  
copy of the lease agreement attached to the Registrant's Annual Report on  
Form 10-K as Exhibit (10d) for the fiscal year ended June 28, 1987, which is  
by reference incorporated herein.   
   
     The information included under "Leases and Commitments" on Page 25 of  
the Annual Report of the Company to Shareholders for fiscal year ended June  
29, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference.   
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Item 3.  Legal Proceedings: 
   
   
     The Company is not currently involved in any litigation which is considered 
material, as that term is used in Item 103 of Regulation S-K.   
   
                                        
Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders:   
   
     No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the  
fourth quarter for the fiscal year ended June 29, 1997.   
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                                 PART II 
   
Item 5.   Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder  
          Matters. 
 
   
     (a)(c)  PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS PAID.   
 
   
     The information included under the heading "Market and Dividend  
Information (Unaudited)" on Page 32 of the Annual Report of the Company to  
Shareholders for the fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, is incorporated herein  
by reference.   
 
   
     (b)  Approximate Number of Equity Security Holders:   
   
 
     Title of Class                                Number of Record Holders 
                                                    (as of August 5, 1997)  
    
     Common Stock, $.10 par value                                1,065          
                                                              
 
  
      (c)  CASH DIVIDEND POLICY.  In April 1990, the Board of Directors of  
the Company adopted a resolution that it intended to pay a cash dividend in  
quarterly installments equal to approximately thirty percent (30%) of the  
earnings after taxes of the Company for the previous year, payable as  
hereafter declared by the Board of Directors.  Prior to this action by the  
Board of Directors, the Company had since 1978 followed a policy of retaining 
earnings for working capital, acquisitions, capital expansion and  
modernization of existing facilities.  The Company paid a quarterly dividend  
of $.11 per share on its common stock for each quarter of the 1997 fiscal  
year. The Board of Directors in July, 1997, declared a cash dividend in the  
amount of $.14 per share on each issued and outstanding share of the common  
stock of the Company, payable on August 8, 1997, to shareholders of record at 
the close of business on August 1, 1997.   
   
 
Item 6.  Selected Financial Data: 
   
     The financial data for the five fiscal years included under the heading  
"Summary of Selected Financial Data" on Page 31 of the Annual Report of the  
Company to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, is  
incorporated herein by reference.    
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Item 7.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and  
         Results of Operations:   
 
   
     The information included under the heading "Management's Review and  
Analysis of Operations and Financial Position" on Pages 28, 29 and 30 of the  
Annual Report of the Company to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended June  
29, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 
 
  The information included under the heading "Derivative Financial  
Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments" on Pages 26 and 27 of  
the Annual Report of the Company to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended  
June 29, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:   
   
     The report of independent auditors, consolidated financial statements  
and notes beginning on Page 16 and ending on Page 27 and the information  
included under the heading "Quarterly Results (Unaudited)" on Page 31 of the  
Annual Report of the Company to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended June  
29, 1997, are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
Item 9.  Change in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and  
         Financial Disclosure:   
   
     The Company has not changed accountants nor are there any disagreements  
with its accountants, Ernst & Young LLP, on accounting and financial  
disclosure that should be reported pursuant to Item 304 of Regulation S-K.   
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                                 PART III 
   
   
Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant and Compliance with  
          Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act:   
 
 
  (a)  Directors of Registrant:  The information included under the headings  
"Election of Directors", "Nominees for Election as Directors", "Security  
Holdings of Directors, Nominees, and Executive Officers", "Directors'  
Compensation", and "Committees of the Board of Directors", beginning on Page  
2 and ending on Page 6 of the definitive proxy statement filed with the  
Commission since the close of the Registrant's fiscal year ended June 29,  
1997, and within 120 days after the close of said fiscal year, are  
incorporated herein by reference.   
     
 
  (b)  Identification of Executive Officers:   
   
   
Chairman of The Board of Directors 
   
  G. Allen Mebane   Mr. Mebane is 68 and has been an Executive Officer and  
member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 1971, and served as  
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, relinquishing these  
positions in 1980 and 1985, respectively. He was the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors for many years, Chairman of the Executive Committee from 1974 to  
1995, and was elected as one of the three members of the Office of Chairman on 
August 8, 1991.  On October 22, 1992, Mr. Mebane was again elected as  
Chairman of the Board of Directors.   
   
   
President and Chief Executive Officer 
   
  William T. Kretzer  Mr. Kretzer is 51 and served as a Vice President or  
Executive Vice President from 1971 until 1985.  He has been the President and 
Chief Executive Officer since 1985.  He has been a member of the Board of  
Directors since 1985 and has been Chairman of the Executive Committee since  
1995.   
   
Executive Vice Presidents   
   
  Jerry W. Eller  Mr. Eller is 56 and has been a Vice President or Executive  
Vice President since 1975.  He has been a member of the Board of Directors  
since 1985 and is a member of the Executive Committee.   
 
  G. Alfred Webster  Mr. Webster is 49 and has been a Vice President or  
Executive Vice President since 1979.  He has been a member of the Board of  
Directors since 1986 and is a member of the Executive Committee.   
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Senior Vice Presidents 
   
  Kenneth L. Huggins  Mr. Huggins is 53, had been an employee of Macfield,  
Inc. since 1970 and, at the time of the Macfield merger with Unifi, was  
serving as a Vice President of Macfield and President of Macfield's Dyed Yarn 
Division.  He was a Director of Macfield from 1989 until August 8, 1991, when 
Macfield, Inc. merged into and with Unifi.  He is Senior Vice President and  
also Assistant to the President.   
   
  Raymond W. Maynard  Mr. Maynard is 54 and has been a Vice President of the  
Company since June 27, 1971, and a Senior Vice President since October 22,  
1992.   
 
Vice Presidents 
 
  James W. Brown, Jr.  Mr. Brown is 45 and was an employee of Macfield from  
1973 until the Macfield merger on August 8, 1991, when he became an employee  
of the Company.  He became a Vice President of the Company on October 22,  
1992, and he is currently serving as President of the Nylon/Covered Yarn  
Division of the Company.   
 
  Stewart Q. Little  Mr. Little is 43 and has been a Vice President of the  
Company since October 24, 1985.  He is currently serving as President of the  
Polyester Division of the Company.   
 
  Willis C. Moore, III  Mr. Moore is 44 and had been a Partner with Ernst &  
Young, LLP, or its predecessors from 1985 until December, 1994, when he  
became employed by the Company as its Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Moore was 
elected as a Vice President of the Company on October 19, 1995, and is  
currently serving as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. 
   
  These officers were elected by the Board of Directors of the Registrant at  
the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors held on October 24, 1996.  Each  
officer was elected to serve until the next Annual Meeting of the Board of  
Directors or until his successor was elected and qualified.  
 
 
  (c)  Family Relationship:  Mr. Mebane, Chairman of the Board, and Mr. C.  
Clifford Frazier, Jr., the Secretary of the Registrant, are first cousins.   
Except for this relationship, there is no family relation between any of the  
Officers.   
   
  (d)  Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act:  Based solely upon  
the review of the Form 3's and 4's and amendments thereto, furnished to the  
Company during the most recent fiscal year, no Form 3's or Form 4's were  
filed late by a director, officer, or beneficial owner of more than ten  
percent of any class of equity securities of the Company.  The Company  
received written  representation from reporting persons that Form 5's were  
not required.   
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Item 11.  Executive Compensation:   
   
     The information set forth under the headings "Compensation and Option  
Committees Interlocks and Insider Participation in Compensation Decisions",  
"Executive Officers and Their Compensation", "Employment and Termination  
Agreements", "Options Granted", "Option Exercises and Option/SAR Values", the  
"Report of the Compensation and Incentive Stock Option Committees on  
Executive Compensation", and the "Performance Graph-Shareholder Return on 
Common Stock"  beginning on Page 6 and ending on Page 11 of the Company's  
definitive proxy statement filed with the Commission since the close of the  
Registrant's fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, and within 120 days after the  
close of said fiscal year, are incorporated herein by reference.   
                                      
     For additional information regarding executive compensation reference is 
made to Exhibits (10l), (10m), and (10n) of this Form 10-K. 
 
 
 
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management:   
   
   
     Security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is the  
same as reported under the heading "Information Relating to Principal  
Security Holders" on Page 2 of the definitive proxy statement and under the  
heading "Security Holdings of Directors, Nominees and Executive Officers" on  
Page 4 and Page 5 of the definitive proxy statement filed with the Commission 
pursuant to Regulation 14(a) within 120 days after the close of the fiscal  
year ended June 29, 1997, which are hereby incorporated by reference. 
   
   
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions: 
   
   
     The information included under the heading "Compensation and Option  
Committees Interlocks and Insider Participation In Compensation Decisions",  
on Page 6 of the definitive proxy statement filed with the Commission since  
the close of the Registrant's fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, and within 120 
days after the close of said fiscal year, is incorporated herein by reference.   
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                                SIGNATURES  
   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and  
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.   
   
                                         UNIFI, INC.   
   
  
September 26, 1997                  BY:  WILLIAM T. KRETZER 
                                         ------------------------------    
                                         William T. Kretzer, President and  
                                         Chief Executive Officer   
   
September 26, 1997                  BY:   WILLIS C. MOORE, III 
                                         ------------------------------      
                                         Willis C. Moore, III, Vice President  
                                         and Chief Financial Officer   
                                         (Principal Financial and Accounting   
                                          Officer)   
   
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this  
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the  
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:   
   
September 26, 1997       Chairman             G. ALLEN MEBANE 
                         and Director         ------------------------------ 
                                              G. Allen Mebane   
   
   
September 26, 1997      President, Chief      WILLIAM T. KRETZER 
                        Executive Officer     ------------------------------ 
                        and Director          William T. Krezter  
   
September 26, 1997      Executive Vice        JERRY W. ELLER                   
                        President and         ------------------------------   
                        Director              Jerry W. Eller 
   
September 26, 1997      Executive Vice        G. ALFRED WEBSTER             
                        President and         ------------------------------ 
                        Director              G. Alfred Webster  
   
September 26, 1997      Senior Advisor        ROBERT A. WARD 
                        to President and      ------------------------------ 
                        Director              Robert A. Ward 
                                                        
September 26, 1997      Director              CHARLES R. CARTER 
                                              ------------------------------ 
                                              Charles R. Carter   
   
 
September ___, 1997     Director              ------------------------------- 
                                              Kenneth G. Langone   
   
 



 
   
September 26, 1997     Director              DONALD F. ORR  
                                             ------------------------------- 
                                             Donald F. Orr    
   
   
September 26, 1997     Director              J. B. DAVIS 
                                             ------------------------------- 
                                             J. B. Davis    
   
     
September 26, 1997    Director               R. WILEY BOURNE, JR. 
                                             ------------------------------- 
                                             R. Wiley Bourne, Jr. 
   
 



 
   
                               PART IV   
   
Item 14.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.   
   
(a)  1.  Financial Statements   
   
  The following financial statements and report of independent auditors  
  included in the Annual Report of Unifi, Inc. to its Shareholders for the  
  fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, are incorporated herein by reference.   
  With the exception of the aforementioned information and the information  
  incorporated by reference in Items 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 7A and 8 herein, the 1997 
  Annual Report to shareholders is not deemed to be filed as part of this  
  report. 
 
                                                                     Annual 
                                                                     Report 
                                                                      Pages 
   
     Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 29, 1997   
      and June 30, 1996                                                17   
   
     Consolidated Statements of Income for the      
       Years Ended June 29, 1997, June 30, 1996,  
       and June 25, 1995                                               18   
   
     Consolidated Statements of Changes in          
       Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended     
       June 29, 1997, June 30, 1996, and June 25,  
       1995                                                            19   
   
     Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for      
       the Years Ended June 29, 1997, June 30,  
       1996, and June 25, 1995                                         20   
   
     Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements                     21 - 27 
 
     Report of Independent Auditors                                    16   
   
(a)  2.  Financial Statement Schedules                                  
                                                                  Form 10-K 
                                                                     Pages    
     Schedules for the three years ended June 29, 1997:   
      II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts                         IV-6 
           
     Schedules other than those above are omitted because they are not  
required, are not applicable, or the required information is given in the  
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.    
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     Individual financial statements of the Registrant have been omitted  
because it is primarily an operating company and all subsidiaries included in 
the consolidated financial statements being filed, in the aggregate, do not  
have minority equity interest and/or indebtedness to any person other than  
the Registrant or its consolidated subsidiaries in amounts which together exceed 
5% of the total assets as shown by the most recent year-end consolidated  
balance sheet.   
   
(a)  3.  Exhibits   
   
(2a-1) Form of Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 24, 1991, by and  
       between Unifi, Inc. and Macfield, Inc., including exhibits, filed as  
       Exhibit 2.1 to Unifi, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4  
       (Registration No. 33-40828), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(2a-2) Form 8-K, filed by Unifi, Inc. in relation to the confirmation of the  
       merger of Macfield, Inc. with and into Unifi, Inc. and related  
       exhibits, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August  
       8, 1991, which is incorporated herein by reference.  
 
(2a-3) Form of Agreement and Reverse Triangular Merger, dated February 10,  
       1993, by and between Unifi, Inc. and Vintage Yarns, Inc., filed as  
       Exhibit 2.1 to Unifi, Inc.'s  Registration Statement on Form S-4  
       (Registration No. 33-58282), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(2a-4) Form 8-K, filed by Unifi, Inc. in relation to the confirmation of the  
       Reverse Triangular Merger, where Vintage Yarns, Inc. became a wholly- 
       owned subsidiary of Unifi, and related exhibits, filed with the  
       Securities and Exchange Commission on May 10, 1993, which is  
       incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(2a-5) Form of Agreement and Plan of Triangular Merger, dated July 15, 1993,  
       by and between Unifi, Inc. and Pioneer Yarn Mills, Inc., Pioneer  
       Spinning, Inc., Edenton Cotton Mills, Inc., and Pioneer Cotton Mills,  
       Inc., (the "Pioneer Corporations"), filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Unifi,  
       Inc.'s Registrations Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No.  
       33-65454), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(2a-6) Form 8-K, filed by Unifi, Inc. for the purpose of reporting the  
       Pioneer Corporations' Interim Combined Financial Statements  
       (Unaudited) and Unifi, Inc.'s, and the Pioneer Corporations' Proforma  
       Combined Interim Financial Information (Unaudited), and related  
       Exhibits, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on  
       September 2, 1993, which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(2a-7) Form 8-K, filed by Unifi, Inc. for the purpose of reporting the  
       Pioneer Corporations' merger with and into USY, and related exhibits  
       filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 1993, 
       which is incorporated herein by reference.   
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(2a-8) Contribution Agreement, dated June 30, 1997, by and between Parkdale  
       Mills, Inc., Unifi, Inc., UNIFI Manufacturing, Inc. and Parkdale  
       America, LLC, filed as Exhibit (2) to Unifi's Form 8-K with the  
       Commission on July 15, 1997, which is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
(3a)  Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Unifi, Inc., dated July 21,  
      1994, (filed as Exhibit (3a) with the Company's Form 10-K for the  
      fiscal year ended June 26, 1994), which is incorporated herein by  
      reference.   
   
(3b)  Restated By-Laws of Unifi, Inc., filed herewith.     
   
(4a)  Specimen Certificate of Unifi, Inc.'s common stock, filed as Exhibit  
      4(a) to the Registration Statement  on Form S-1, (Registration No.  
      2-45405), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10a) *Unifi, Inc. 1982 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended, filed as  
      Exhibit 28.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8, (Registration  
      No. 33-23201), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10b) *Unifi, Inc. 1987 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, as amended, filed as 
      Exhibit 28.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8, (Registration  
      No. 33-23201), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10c) *Unifi, Inc. 1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan, effective July 16, 1992, 
      (filed as Exhibit (10c) with the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal  
      year ended June 27, 1993), and included as Exhibit 99.2 to the  
      Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 33-53799), which  
      are incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10d) *Unifi, Inc.'s Registration Statement for selling Shareholders, who are 
      Directors and Officers of the Company, who acquired the shares as stock 
      bonuses from the Company, filed on Form S-3 (Registration  No.  
      33-23201), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10e) Unifi Spun Yarns, Inc.'s 1992 Employee Stock Option Plan filed as  
      Exhibit 99.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration  
      No. 33-53799), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
        
(10f) *Unifi, Inc.'s 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan, (filed as Exhibit  
      10(f) with the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year-ended June 30,  
      1996), which is incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10g) *Unifi, Inc.'s 1996 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, (filed as Exhibit  
      10(g) with the Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year-ended June 30,  
      1996), which is incorporated herein by reference.  
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(10h)  Lease Agreement, dated March 2, 1987, between NationsBank, Trustee  
       under the Unifi, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, Wachovia Bank and 
       Trust Co., N.A., Independent Fiduciary, and Unifi, Inc., (filed as  
       Exhibit (10d) with the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended  
       June 28, 1987), which is incorporated herein by reference.  
  
(10i)  Factoring Contract and Security Agreement and a Letter Amendment  
       thereto, all dated as of May 25, 1994, by and between Unifi, Inc. and  
       the CIT Group/DCC, Inc., (filed as Exhibit (10g) with the Company's  
       Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 26, 1994), which are  
       incorporated herein by reference.   
   
(10j)  Factoring Contract and Security Agreement, dated as of May 2, 1988,  
       between Macfield, Inc., and First Factors Corp., and First Amendment  
       thereto, dated September 28, 1990, (both filed as Exhibit (10g) with  
       the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991), and  
       Second Amendment to the Factoring Contract and Security Agreement,  
       dated March 1, 1992, (filed as Exhibit (10g) with the Company's Form  
       10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 1992), and Letter Agreement  
       dated August 31, 1993 and Amendment to Factoring Contract and Security 
       Agreement dated January 5, 1994, (filed as Exhibit (10h) with the  
       Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 26, 1994), which  
       are incorporated herein by reference.  
   
(10k)  Factoring Agreement dated August 23, 1995, and a Letter Amendment  
       thereto dated October 16, 1995, by and between Unifi, Inc. and  
       Republic Factors Corp., (filed as Exhibit (10k) with the Company's  
       Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996), which is  
       incorporated herein by reference. 
   
(10l)  *Employment Agreement between Unifi, Inc. and G. Allen Mebane, dated  
       July 19, 1990, (filed as Exhibit (10h) with the Company's Form 10-K  
       for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991), which is incorporated herein 
       by reference.   
   
(10m)  *Employment Agreement between Unifi, Inc. and William T. Kretzer,  
       dated July 19, 1990, (filed as Exhibit (10i) with the Company's Form  
       10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991), and Amendment to  
       Employment Agreement between Unifi, Inc. and William T. Kretzer, dated 
       October 22, 1992 (filed as Exhibit (10j) with the Company's Form 10-K  
       for fiscal year ended June 27, 1993), which are incorporated herein by 
       reference.   
   
(10n)  *Severance Compensation Agreement between Unifi, Inc. and William T.  
       Kretzer, dated July 20, 1996, expiring on July 19, 1999 (similar  
       agreements were signed with G. Allen Mebane, Robert A. Ward, Jerry W.  
       Eller and G. Alfred Webster), (filed as Exhibit (10n) with the  
       Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year ended June 30, 1996), which is 
       incorporated herein by reference. 
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(10o)  Credit Agreement, dated April 15, 1996, by and between Unifi, Inc. and 
       The Several Lenders from Time to Time Party thereto and NationsBank,  
       N.A. as agent, (filed as Exhibit (10o) with the Company's Form 10-K  
       for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996), which is incorporated herein 
       by reference.   
 
(10p)  Lease Agreement, dated May 20, 1997, by and between NationsBanc  
       Leasing & R.E. Corporation and UNIFI Manufacturing, Inc., filed  
       herewith. 
   
(11)   Computation of Earnings per share. 
   
(13a)  Portions of Unifi, Inc.'s 1997 Annual Report to Shareholders which are 
       incorporated herein by reference, as a part of this Form 10-K for  
       fiscal year ended June 29, 1997, filed herewith.   
 
(13b-1)Report of Independent Auditors/Ernst & Young LLP - on the Consolidated 
       Financial Statements of Unifi, Inc. as of June 29, 1997 and each of  
       the three years in the period ended June 29, 1997.     
   
(21)   Subsidiaries of Unifi, Inc.   
   
(23)   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.   
   
(27)   Financial Data Schedule   
   
(b)    Reports on Form 8-K   
   
   
     (i)    Form 8-K dated June 30, 1997, and filed with the commission on  
            July 15, 1997, was filed to report the Company's entering into a  
            Contribution Agreement with Parkdale Mills, Inc. concerning its  
            cotton spinning operations.   
   
   
   
*  NOTE:  These Exhibits are management contracts or compensatory plans or  
          arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-K  
          pursuant to Item 14(c) of this report.   
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                SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
                          UNIFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                                 JUNE 29, 1997 
                                 (in thousands) 
 
 
 
 
     COLUMN A                   COLUMN B              COLUMN C                  COLUMN D          COLUMN E 
- ------------------------       ---------     -------------------------         --------           --------  
 
                                                      Additions 
                                                    --------------        
                                 Balance       Charged       Charged to                           Balance 
                                   at             to            Other                               at    
                              Beginning of     Costs and      Accounts-       Deductions-         End of 
    Description                 Period         Expenses       Describe          Describe          Period  
- ------------------------       -----------    ----------     -----------      -----------         -------    
                                                                                     
Allowance for doubtful accounts: 
 
Year ended June 29, 1997    $  6,595          $  4,390        $   --            $ (5,523) (a)     $  5,462  
Year ended June 30, 1996       6,452             3,660            --              (3,517) (a)        6,595  
Year ended June 25, 1995       4,302             5,524            --              (3,374) (a)        6,452  
 
 
(a) Included uncollectible accounts written off and customer claims paid, net of 
    certain recoveries. 
 
 
Unrealized (gains)/losses on certain investments:   
 
Year ended June 29, 1997    $     --          $   --          $   --            $   --            $    --  
Year ended June 30, 1996      (1,835)             --            1,835 (b)           --                 --  
Year ended June 25, 1995       1,445              --           (3,280)(c)           --              (1,835) 
 
 
(b  Represents the change in fair market value of the related investment  
    securities and the entry to reflect the dispostion of the underlying  
    investments. 
(c) Represents the change in fair market value of the related investment  
    securities. 
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                        RESTATED BY-LAWS 
                                OF 
                             UNIFI, INC. 
 
                             ARTICLE I 
                            Shareholders 
 
 
     Section 1.01.  Annual Meeting.  The Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders for the election of Directors and the transaction of 
such other business as may come before it shall be held on such 
date in each calendar year, not later than the one hundred 
fiftieth (150) day after the close of the Corporation's preceding 
fiscal year, and at such place as shall be fixed by the President 
and stated in the notice or waiver of notice of the meeting.  
 
 
 
     Section 1.02.  Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the 
shareholders, for any purpose of purposes, may be called at any 
time by any Director, the President, any Vice President, the 
Treasurer or the Secretary or by resolution of the Board of 
Directors.  Special meetings of the shareholders shall be held at 
such place as shall be fixed by the person or persons calling the 
meeting and stated in the notice or waiver of notice of the 
meeting. 
 
 
 
     Section 1.03.  Notice of Meetings of Shareholders.  Whenever 
shareholders are required or permitted to take any action at a 
meeting, written notice shall state the place, date and hour of 
the meeting and, unless it is the Annual Meeting, indicate that 
it is being issued by or at the direction of the person or 
persons calling the meeting.  Notice of a special meeting shall 
also state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is 
called.  If, at any meeting, action is proposed to be taken which 
would, if taken, entitle shareholders fulfilling the requirements 
of Section 623 of the Business Corporation Law to receive payment 
for their shares, the notice of such meeting shall include a 
statement of that purpose to that effect.  A copy of the notice 
of any meeting shall be given, personally or by mail, not less 
than ten nor more than fifty days before the date of the meeting, 
to each shareholder entitled to vote at such meeting.  If mailed, 
such notice is given when deposited in the United States mail, 
with postage thereon prepaid, directed to the shareholder at his 
address as it appears on the record of shareholders, or, if he 
shall have filed with the Secretary of the Corporation a written 
request that notices to him be mailed to some other address, then 
directed to him at such other address. 
 



 
     When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, it 
shall not be necessary to give any notice of the adjourned 
meeting if the time and place to which the meeting is adjourned 
are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, 
and at the adjourned meeting any business may be transacted that 
might have been transacted on the original date of the meeting.  
However, if after the adjournment, the Board of Directors fixes a 
new record date for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the 
adjourned meeting shall be given to each shareholder of record on 
the new record date entitled to notice under the next preceding 
paragraph.  
 



 
     Section 1.04.  Waivers of Notice.  Notice of meeting need 
not be given to any shareholder who submits a signed Waiver of 
Notice, in person or by proxy, whether before or after the 
meeting.  The attendance of any shareholder at a meeting, in 
person or by proxy, without protesting prior to the conclusion of 
the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting, shall constitute 
a Waiver of Notice by him. 
 
 
     Section 1.05.  Quorum.  The holders of a majority of the 
shares entitled to vote thereat shall constitute a quorum at a 
meeting of shareholders for the transaction of any business, 
provided that when a specified item of business is required to be 
voted on by a class or series, voting as a class, the holders of 
a majority of the shares of such class or series shall constitute 
a quorum for the transaction of such specified item of business.   
 
   When a quorum is once present to organize a meeting, it is not 
broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any shareholders.  
 
   The shareholders present may adjourn the meeting despite the 
absence of a quorum and at any such adjourned meeting at which 
the requisite amount of voting stock shall be represented, any 
business may be transacted which might have been transacted at 
the meeting as originally noticed. 
 
 
     Section 1.06.  Fixing Record Date.  For the purpose of 
determining the shareholders entitled to notice of or to vote at 
any meeting of shareholders or any adjournment thereof, or to 
express consent to or dissent from any proposal without a 
meeting, or for the purpose of determining shareholders entitled 
to receive payment of any dividend or the allotment of any 
rights, or for the purpose of any other action, the Board of 
Directors may fix, in advance, a date as the record date for any 
such determination of shareholders.  Such date shall not be more 
than fifty nor less than ten days before the date of such 
meeting, nor more than fifty days prior to any other action.      
When a determination of shareholders of record entitled to notice 
of or to vote at any meeting or shareholders has been made as 
provided in this Section, such determination shall apply to any 
adjournment thereof, unless the Board of Directors fixes a new 
record date under this Section for the adjourned meeting.  
 
 



 
     Section 1.07.  List of Shareholders at Meeting.  A list of 
shareholders as of the record date, certified by the corporate 
officer responsible for its preparation or by a transfer agent, 
shall be produced at any meeting of shareholders upon the request  
thereat or prior thereto of any shareholder.  If the right to 
vote at any meeting is challenged, the inspectors of election, or 
person presiding thereat, shall require such list of shareholders 
to be produced as evidence of the right of the persons challenged 
to vote at such meeting, and all persons who appear from such 
list to be shareholders entitled to vote thereat may vote at such 
meeting.  
 
 
 
 
     Section 1.08.  Proxies.  Every shareholder entitled to vote 
at a meeting of shareholders or to express consent or dissent 
without a meeting may authorize another person or persons to act 
for him by proxy.  
 
 
     Every proxy must be signed by the shareholder or his 
attorney-in-fact.  No proxy shall be valid after the expiration 
of eleven months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided 
in the proxy.  Every proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure of 
the shareholder executing it, except as otherwise provided in 
this Section. 
 
 
     The authority of the holder of a proxy to act shall not be 
revoked by the incompetence or death of the shareholder who 
executed the proxy unless, before the authority is exercised, 
written notice of an adjudication of such incompetence or of such 
death is received by the Corporate Officer responsible for 
maintaining the list of shareholders. 
 
 
     Except when other provision shall have been made by written 
agreement between the parties, the record holder of shares which 
are held by a pledgee as security or which belong to another, 
upon demand therefor and payment of necessary expenses thereof, 
shall issue to the pledgor or to such owner of such shares a 
proxy to vote or take other action thereon. 
 
 
     A shareholder shall not sell his vote or issue a proxy to 
vote to any person for any sum of money or anything of value, 
except as authorized in this Section and Section 620 of the 
Business Corporation Law. 



 
     A proxy which is entitled "irrevocable proxy" and which 
states that it is irrevocable, is irrevocable when it is held by 
any of the following or a nominee of any of the following: 
 
     (1)  A Pledgee; 
 
     (2)  A person who has purchased or agreed to purchase the 
          shares; 
 
     (3)  A creditor or creditors of the Corporation who extend    
          or continue credit to the Corporation in consideration   
          of the proxy if the proxy states that it was given in 
          consideration of such extension or continuation of 
          credit, the amount thereof, and the name of the person 
          extending or continuing credit; 
 
     (4)  A person who has contracted to perform services as an 
          Officer of the Corporation, if a proxy is required by    
          the contract of employment, if the proxy states that it  
          was given in consideration of such contract of           
          employment, the name of the employee and the period of   
          employment contracted for; 
 
     (5)  A person designated by or under an agreement under 
          paragraph (a) of said Section 620. 
 
 
     Notwithstanding a provision in a proxy, stating that it is 
irrevocable, the proxy becomes revocable after the pledge is 
redeemed, or the debt of the Corporation is paid, or the period 
of employment provided for in the contract of employment has 
terminated, or the agreement under paragraph (a) of said Section 
620 has terminated, and becomes revocable, in a case provided for 
in subparagraph (3) or (4) above, at the end of the period, if 
any, specified therein as the period during which it is 
irrevocable, or three years after the date of the proxy, 
whichever period is less, unless the period of irrevocability is 
renewed from time to time by the execution of a new irrevocable 
proxy as provided in this Section.  This paragraph does not 
affect the duration of a proxy under the second paragraph of this 
Section.  
 



 
     A proxy may be revoked, notwithstanding a provision making 
it irrevocable, by a purchaser of shares without knowledge of the 
existence of the provision unless the existence of the proxy and 
its irrevocability is noted conspicuously on the face or back of 
the certificate representing such shares. 
 
 



 
    Section 1.09.  Selection and Duties of Inspectors.  The Board 
of Directors, in advance of any shareholders' meeting, may 
appoint one or more inspectors to act at the meeting or any 
adjournment thereof.  If inspectors are not so appointed, the 
person presiding at a shareholders' meeting may, and on the 
request of any shareholder entitled to vote thereat shall, 
appoint one or more inspectors.  In case any person appointed 
failed to appear or act, the vacancy may be filled by appointment 
made by the Board in advance of the meeting or at the meeting by 
the person presiding thereat.  Each inspector, before entering 
upon the discharge of his duties, shall take and sign an oath 
faithfully to execute the duties of inspector at such meeting 
with strict impartiality and according to the best of his 
ability. 
 
 
     The inspectors shall determine the number of shares 
outstanding and the voting power of each, the shares represented 
at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, the validity and 
effect of proxies, and shall receive votes, ballots or consents, 
hear and determine all challenges and questions arising in 
connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, 
ballots or consents, determine the result, and do such acts as 
are proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all 
shareholders.  On request of the person presiding at the meeting 
or any shareholder entitled to vote thereat, the inspectors shall 
make a report in writing of any challenge, question or matter 
determined by them and execute a certificate of any fact found by 
them.  Any report or certificate made by them shall be prima 
facie evidence of the facts stated and of the vote as certified 
by them. 
 
 
     Unless appointed by the Board of Directors or requested by a 
shareholder, as above provided in this Section, inspectors shall 
be dispensed with at all meetings of shareholders.      The vote 
upon any question before any shareholders' meeting need not be by 
ballot. 



 
     Section 1.10.  Qualification of Voters.  Every shareholder 
of record shall be entitled at every meeting of shareholders to 
one vote for every share standing in his name on the record of 
shareholders, except as expressly provided otherwise in this 
Section and except as otherwise expressly provided in the 
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation. 
 
 
     Treasury shares and shares held by another domestic or 
foreign corporation of any type or kind, if a majority of the 
shares entitled to vote in the election of Directors of such 
other corporation is held by the Corporation, shall not be shares 
entitled to vote or to be counted in determining the total number 
of outstanding shares.  
 
 
     Shares held by an administrator, executor, guardian, 
conservator, committee, or other fiduciary, except a Trustee, may 
be voted by him, either in person or by proxy, without transfer 
of such shares into his name.  Shares held by a Trustee may be 
voted by him, either in person or by proxy, only after the shares 
have been transferred into his name as Trustee or into the name 
of his nominee.  
 
 
     Shares held by or under the control of a receiver may be 
voted by him without the transfer thereof into his name if 
authority so to do is contained in an order of the court by which 
such receiver was appointed.  
 
 
     A shareholder whose shares are pledged shall be entitled to 
vote such shares until the shares have been transferred into the 
name of the pledgee, or a nominee of the pledgee. 
 
 
      Redeemable shares which have been called for redemption 
shall not be deemed to be outstanding shares for the purpose of 
voting or determining the total number of shares entitled to vote 
on any matter on and after the date on which written notice of 
redemption has been sent to holders thereof and a sum sufficient 
to redeem such shares has been deposited with a bank or trust 
company with irrevocable instruction and authority to pay the 
redemption price to the holders of the shares upon surrender of 
certificates therefor.  
 
 
     Shares standing in the name of another domestic or foreign 
corporation of any type or kind may be voted by such Officer, 
agent or proxy as the By-Laws of such corporation may provide, 
or, in the absence of such provision, as the Board of Directors 
of such corporation may determine. 



 
     When shares are registered on the record of shareholders of 
the Corporation in the name of, or have passed by operation of 
law or by virtue of any deed of trust or other instrument to two 
or more fiduciaries, and if the fiduciaries shall be equally 
divided as to voting such shares, any court having jurisdiction 
of their accounts, upon petition by any of such fiduciaries or by 
any party in interest, may direct the voting of such shares for 
the best interest of the beneficiaries.  This paragraph shall not 
apply in any case where the instrument or order of the court 
appointing such fiduciaries shall otherwise direct how such 
shares shall be voted. 
 
 
     Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraphs of this Section, 
the Corporation shall be protected in treating the persons whose 
names shares stand on the record of shareholders as the owners 
thereof for all purposes. 



 
     Section 1.11.  Vote of Shareholders.  Directors shall be 
elected by a plurality of the votes cast at a meeting of 
shareholders by the holders of shares entitled to vote in the 
election. Whenever any corporate action, other than the election 
of Directors, is to be taken by vote of the shareholders, it 
shall, except as otherwise required by the Business Corporation 
Law or by the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, be 
authorized by a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of 
shareholders by the holders of shares entitled to vote thereon.  
 
 
     Section 1.12.  Written Consent of Shareholders.  Whenever 
under the Business Corporation Law shareholders are required or 
permitted to take any action by vote, such action may be taken 
without a meeting on written consent, setting forth the action so 
taken, signed by the holders of all outstanding shares entitled 
to vote thereon.  This paragraph shall not be construed to alter 
or modify the provisions of any section of the Business 
Corporation Law or any provision in the Certificate of 
Incorporation of the Corporation not inconsistent with the 
Business Corporation Law under which the written consent of the 
holders of less than all outstanding shares is sufficient for 
corporate action. 
 
 
     Written consent thus given by the holders of all outstanding 
shares entitled to vote shall have the same effect as a unanimous 
vote of shareholders. 



 
                            ARTICLE II 
                             Directors 
 
 
 
    Section 2.01.  Management of Business; Qualifications of 
Directors.  The business of the Corporation shall be managed by 
its Board of Directors, each of whom shall be at least twenty-one 
years of age.  
 
 
     Directors need not be Stockholders. 
 
 
     The Board of Directors, in addition to the powers and 
authority expressly conferred upon it herein, by statute, by the 
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation and otherwise, is 
hereby empowered to exercise all such powers as may be exercised 
by the Corporation, except as expressly provided otherwise by the 
statutes of the State of New York, by the Certificate of 
Incorporation of the Corporation and these By-Laws. 
 



 
     Section 2.02.  Number of Directors.  The number of Directors 
which shall constitute the entire Board shall be ten (10), but 
this number may be increased and subsequently again increased or 
decreased from time to time by the affirmative vote of the 
majority of Directors, except that the number of Directors shall 
not be less than nine (9). 
 
 
     Section 2.03.  Classification and Election.  (a)  The  
Directors shall be divided into three classes designated as Class 
1, Class 2 and Class 3.  All classes shall be as nearly equal in 
number as possible and no class shall include less than three (3) 
Directors.  The term of office of the Directors initially 
classified shall be as follows:  Class 1 shall expire at the next 
(1992) Annual Meeting of the Shareholders, Class 2 shall expire 
at the second succeeding (1993) Annual Meeting of the 
Shareholders, and Class 3 shall expire at the third succeeding 
(1994) Annual Meeting of the Shareholders.  (b)  At each Annual 
Meeting after such initial classification, Directors to replace 
those whose terms expired at such Annual Meeting shall be elected 
to hold office until the third succeeding Annual Meeting of the 
Shareholders.  A Director shall hold office until the Annual 
Meeting for the year in which his term expires and subject to 
prior death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office, 
until his successor shall be elected and qualified.  
 
 
     Section 2.04.  Newly Created Directorship and Vacancies.  
Newly created Directorships or any decrease in Directorship shall 
be apportioned among the classes as to make all classes as nearly 
equal in number as possible.  Newly created Directorships 
resulting from an increase in the number of Directors and 
vacancies caused by death, resignation, retirement, or removal 
from office, subject to Section 2.05(b), may be filled by the 
majority of the Directors voting on the particular matter, if a 
quorum is present.  If the number of Directors then in office is 
less than a quorum, such newly created Directorships and 
vacancies may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of 
the Directors in office.  When the number of Directors is 
increased by the Board, and the newly created Directorships are 
filled by the Board, there shall be no classification of the 
additional Directors until the next Annual Meeting of the 
shareholders.  Any Director elected by the Board to fill a 
vacancy shall serve until the next meeting of the shareholders, 
at which the election of the Directors is in the regular order of 
business, and until his successor is elected and qualified.      
In no case will a decrease in the number of Directors shorten the 
term of an incumbent Director. 
 



 
     Section 2.05(a).  Resignations.  Any Director of the 
Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice to 
the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary of the 
Corporation.  Such resignation shall take effect at the time 
specified therein, if any, or if no time is specified therein, 
then upon receipt of such notice by the addressee; and, unless 
otherwise provided therein, the acceptance of such resignation 
shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 
 



 
     Section 2.05(b).  Removal of Directors.  Any or all of the 
Directors may be removed at any time (i) for cause by vote of the 
shareholders or by action on the Board of Directors or (ii) 
without cause by vote of the shareholders, except as expressly 
provided otherwise by Section 706 of the Business Corporation 
Law.  The Board of Directors shall fill vacancies occurring in 
the Board by reason of removal of Directors for cause.  Vacancies 
occurring by reason of removal without cause shall be filled by 
the Shareholders. 
 
 
     Section 2.06.  Quorum of Directors.  At all meetings of the 
Board of Directors, a majority of the number of Directors then 
office shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum 
for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of the 
Directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall 
be the act of the Board of Directors, except as expressly 
provided otherwise by the statutes of the State of New York and 
except as provided in the third sentence of Section 2.04, in 
Section 2.11 and Section 7.09 hereof. 
 
 
     A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum 
is present, may adjourn any meeting of the Directors to another 
time and place.  Notice of any adjournment need not be given if 
such time and place are announced at the meeting.  
 
 
     Section 2.07.  Annual Meeting.  The Board of Directors shall  
meet immediately following the adjournment of the Annual Meeting 
of shareholders in each year at the same place and no notice of 
such meeting shall be necessary.



 
 
     Section 2.08.  Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings of the 
Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall 
from time to time be fixed by the Board and no notice thereof 
shall be necessary. 
 
 
     Section 2.09.  Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be 
called at any time by any Director, the President, any Vice 
President, the Treasurer, or the Secretary or by resolution of 
the Board of Directors.  Special meetings shall be held at such 
place as shall be fixed by the person or persons calling the 
meeting and stated in the notice or waiver of notice of the 
meeting. 
 
 
     Section 2.10.  Compensation.  Directors shall receive such 
fixed sums and expenses of attendance for attendance at each 
meeting of the Board or of any committee and/or such salary as 
may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors; 
provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed to 
preclude any Director from serving the Corporation in any other 
capacity and receiving compensation therefor. 
 
 
     Section 2.11.  Committees.  The Board of Directors, by 
resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board, may 
designate from among its members an Executive Committee and other 
committees, each consisting of three or more Directors, and each 
of which, to the extent provided in the resolution, shall have 
the authority of the Board of Directors, except that no such 
committee shall have authority as to the following matters:  
 
     (a)  The submission to shareholders of any action that needs  
          shareholder's authorization under the Business           
         
          Corporation Law. 
 
     (b)  The filling of vacancies in the Board of Directors or  
          in any committee. 
 
     (c)  The fixing of compensation of the Directors for serving 
          on the Board of Directors or on any committee. 
 
     (d)  The amendment or repeal of the By-Laws, or the adoption 
          of new By-Laws. 
 
     (e)  The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board   
          of Directors which by its terms shall not be so   
          amendable or repealable. 
 
     The Board may designate one or more Directors as alternate 
members of any such committee, who may replace any absent member 
or members at any meeting of such committee.  Each such committee 
shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  
 
     Regular meetings of any such committee shall be held at such 
time and place as shall from time to time be fixed by such 
committee and no notice thereof shall be necessary.  Special 
meetings may be called at any time by any Officer of the 
Corporation or any member of such committee.  Notice of each 
special meeting of each such committee shall be given (or waived) 
in the same manner as notice of a special meeting of the Board of 
Directors.  A majority of the members of any such committee shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act 
of a majority of the members present at the time of the vote, if 
a quorum is present at such time, shall be the act of the 
committee. 
 
 
     Section 2.12.  Interested Directors.  No contract or other 
transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its 
Directors, or between the Corporation and any other corporation, 
firm, association or other entity in which one or more of the 
Corporation's Directors are Directors or Officers, or are 
financially interested, shall be either void or voidable for this 
reason alone or by reason alone that such Director or Directors 
are present at the meeting of the Board of Directors, or of a 
committee thereof, which approves such contract or transaction, 
or that his or their votes are counted for such purpose:  
 



     (1)  If the fact of such common Directorship, Officership or 
          financial interest is disclosed or known to the Board  
          or committee, and the Board or committee approves such 
          contract or transaction by a vote sufficient for such 
          purpose without counting the vote or votes of such 
          interested Director or Directors; 
 
     (2)  If such common Directorship, Officership or financial 
          interest is disclosed or known to the shareholders 
          entitled to vote thereon, and such contract or 
          transaction is approved by vote of the shareholders; or 
 
     (3)  If the contract or transaction is fair and reasonable  
          as to the Corporation at the time it is approved by the 
          Board, a committee of the shareholders. 
 
 
     Common or interested Directors may be counted in determining 
the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board or of a 
committee which approves such contract or transaction. 
 



 
     Section 2.13.  Loans to Directors.  A loan shall not be made 
by the Corporation to any Director unless it is authorized by 
vote of the shareholders.  For this purpose, the shares of the 
Director who would be the borrower shall not be shares entitled 
to vote.  A loan made in violation of this Section shall be a 
violation of the duty to the Corporation of the Directors 
approving it, but the obligation of the borrower with respect to 
the loan shall not be affected thereby.  
 
 
     Section 2.14.  Consent to Action.  Any action required or 
permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors or any committee 
thereof may be taken without a meeting if all members of the 
Board or committee consent in writing, whether done before or 
after the action so taken, to the adoption of a resolution 
authorizing the action.  The resolution and the written consent 
thereto shall be filed with the Minutes of the proceeding of the 
Board or the committee. 
 



 
                           ARTICLE III 
                            Officers 
 
 
     Section 3.01.  Election or Appointment:  Number.  The 
Officers shall be a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, a President, a 
Secretary, a Treasurer, and such number of Executive 
Vice-Presidents, Vice-Presidents, Assistant Secretaries and 
Assistant Treasurers, and such other Officers as the Board may 
from time to time determine. Any person may hold two or more 
offices at the same time, except the offices of President and 
Secretary.  Any Officer, except the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and 
the President of the Corporation, may but does not need to be 
chosen from among the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
     Section 3.02.  Term.  Subject to the provisions of Section 
3.03 hereof, all officers shall be elected or appointed to hold 
office until the meeting of the Board of Directors following the 
next Annual Meeting of shareholders, and each officer shall hold 
office for the term for which he is elected or appointed and 
until his successor has been elected or appointed and qualified.  
 
 
     The Board may require any Officer to give security for the 
faithful performance of his duties. 
 



 
     Section 3.03.  Removal.  Any Officer elected or appointed by 
the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board with or 
without cause. 
 
 
     The removal of an Officer without cause shall be without 
prejudice to his contract rights, if any.  The election or 
appointment of an Officer shall not of itself create contract 
rights. 
 
 
 
     Section 3.04.  Authority.  Any Director or such other person 
as may be designated by the Board of Directors, and in the 
absence of such Director or other person, the President shall be 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.  The Chairman 
shall oversee the general operations of the Corporation and set 
company policy which would be implemented, interpreted and 
carried out by the President and Chief Executive Officer who will 
report directly to the Chairman.  The Chairman shall preside at 
all meetings of the Board of Directors unless some other person 
is designated by the Board.  
 
 
 
     Section 3.05.  Voting Securities Owned by the Corporation.  
Powers of attorney, proxies, waivers or notice of meeting, 
consents and other instruments relating to securities owned by 
the Corporation may be executed in the name of and on behalf of 
the Corporation by the President or any Vice-President and any 
such officer may, in the name of and on behalf of the 
Corporation, take all such action as any such officer may deem 
advisable to vote in person or by proxy at any meeting of 
security holders of any Corporation in which the Corporation may 
own securities and at any such meeting shall possess and may 
exercise any and all rights and powers incident to the ownership 
of such securities and which, as the owner thereof, the 
Corporation might have exercised and possessed if present.  The 
Board of Directors may, by resolution, from time to time confer 
like powers upon any other person or persons.  
 



 
                           ARTICLE IV 
                          Capital Stock 
 
 
 
     Section 4.01.  Stock Certificates.  The shares of the 
Corporation shall be represented by certificates signed by the 
Chairman of the Board or the President or a Vice-President and 
the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary or the Treasurer or an 
Assistant Treasurer of the Corporation, and may be sealed with 
the seal of the Corporation or a facsimile thereof.  The 
signatures of the Officers upon a certificate may be facsimiles 
if the certificate is countersigned by a transfer agent or 
registered by a registrar other than the Corporation itself or 
its employee.  In case any Officer who has signed or whose 
facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have 
ceased to be such Officer before such certificate is issued, it 
may be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if he 
were such Officer at the date of issue. 
 
 
     Each certificate representing shares shall also set fort 
such additional material as is required by subdivisions (b) and 
(c) of Section 508 of the Business Corporation Law. 
 



 
     Section 4.02.  Transfers.  Stock of the Corporation shall be 
transferable in the manner prescribed by the laws of the State of 
New York and in these By-Laws  Transfers of stock shall be made 
on the books of the Corporation only by the person named in the 
certificate or by attorney lawfully constituted in writing and 
upon the surrender of the certificate therefor, which shall be 
canceled before the new certificate shall be issued.  
 
 
 
     Section 4.03.  Registered Holders.  The Corporation shall be 
entitled to treat and shall be protected in treating the persons 
in whose names shares or any warrants, rights or options stand on 
the record of shareholders, warrant holders, right holders or 
option holders, as the case may be, as the owners thereof for all 
purposes and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or 
other claim to, or interest in, any such share, warrant, right or 
option on the part of any other person, whether or not the 
Corporation shall have notice thereof, except as expressly 
provided otherwise by the Statutes of the State of New York.       
 
 
 
     Section 4.04.  New Certificates.  The Corporation may issue 
a new certificate of stock in the place of any certificate 
theretofore issued by it, alleged to have been lost, stolen or 
destroyed, and the Directors may, in their discretion, require 
the owner of the lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or his 
legal representatives, to give the Corporation a bond sufficient 
(in the judgment of the Directors) to indemnify the Corporation 
against any claim that may be made against it on account of the 
alleged loss or theft of any such certificate or the issuance of 
such new certificate.  A new certificate may be issued without 
requiring any bond when, in the judgment of the Directors, it is 
proper so to do. 
 
     



 
                           ARTICLE V 
               Financial Notices to Shareholders 
 
 
 
     Section 5.01.  Dividends.  When any dividend is paid or any 
other distribution is made, in whole or in part, from sources 
other than earned surplus, it shall be accompanied by a written 
notice (1) disclosing the amounts by which such dividend or 
distribution affects stated capital, capital surplus and earned 
surplus, or (2) if such amounts are not determinable at the time 
of such notice, disclosing the approximate effect of such 
dividend or distribution upon stated capital, capital surplus and 
earned surplus and stating that such amounts are not yet 
determinable. 
 
 
 
     Section 5.02.  Share Distribution and Changes.  Every 
distribution to shareholders of certificates representing a share 
distribution or a change of shares which affects stated capital, 
capital surplus or earned surplus shall be accompanied by a 
written notice (1) disclosing the amounts by which such 
distribution or change affects stated capital, capital surplus or 
earned surplus, or (2) if such amounts are not determinable at 
the time of such notice, disclosing the approximate effect of 
such distribution or change upon stated capital, capital surplus 
and earned surplus and stating that such amounts are not yet 
determinable. 
 
 
     When issued shares are changed in any manner which affects 
stated capital, capital surplus or earned surplus, and no 
distribution to shareholders of certificates representing any 
shares resulting from such change is made, disclosure of the 
effect of such change upon the stated capital, capital surplus 
and earned surplus shall be made in the next financial statement 
covering the period in which such change is made that is 
furnished by the Corporation to holders of shares of the class or 
series so changed or, if practicable, in the first notice of 
dividend or share distribution or change that is furnished to 
such shareholders between the date of the change and shares and 
the next such financial statement, and in any event within six 
months of the date of such change. 
 



 
     Section 5.03.  Cancellation of Reacquired Shares.  When 
reacquired shares other than converted shares are canceled, the 
stated capital of the Corporation shall be reduced by the amount 
of stated capital then represented by such shares plus any stated 
capital not theretofore allocated to any designated class or 
series which is thereupon allocated to the shares canceled.  The 
amount by which stated capital has been reduced by cancellation 
of required shares during a stated period of time shall be 
disclosed in the next financial statement covering such period 
that is furnished by the Corporation to all its shareholders or, 
if practicable, in the first notice of dividend or share 
distribution that is furnished to the holders of each class or 
series of its shares between the end of the period and the next 
such financial statement, and in any event to all its 
shareholders within six months of the date of the reduction of 
capital. 
 



 
     Section 5.04.  Reduction of Stated Capital.  When a 
reduction of stated capital has been effected under Section 516 
of the Business Corporation Law, the amount of such reduction 
shall be disclosed in the next financial statement covering the 
period in which such reduction is made that is furnished by the 
Corporation to all its shareholders or, if practicable, in the 
first notice of dividend or share distribution that is furnished 
to the holders of each class or series of its shares between the 
date of such reduction and the next such financial statement, and 
in any event to all its shareholders within six months of the 
date of such reduction. 
 
 
 
     Section 5.05.  Application of Capital Surplus to Elimination 
of a Deficit.  Whenever the Corporation shall apply any part or 
all of its capital surplus to the elimination of any deficit in 
the earned surplus account, such application shall be disclosed 
in the next financial statement covering the period in which such 
elimination is made that is furnished by the Corporation to all 
its shareholders or, if practicable, in the first notice of 
dividend or share distribution that is furnished to holders of 
each class or series of its shares between the date of such 
elimination and the next such financial statement, and in any 
event to all its shareholders within six months of the date of 
such action. 
 
 
 
     Section 5.06.  Conversion of Shares.  Should the Corporation 
issue any convertible shares, then, when shares have been 
converted, disclosure of the conversion of shares during a stated 
period of time and its effect, if any, upon stated capital shall 
be made in the next financial statement covering such period that 
is furnished by the Corporation to all its shareholders or, if 
practicable, in the first notice of dividend or share 
distribution that is furnished to the holders of each class or 
series of its shares between the end of such period and the next 
financial statement, and in any event to all its shareholders 
within six months of the date of the conversion of shares. 
 



 
                          ARTICLE VI 
                        Indemnification 
 
 
 
     Section 6.01.  Right to Indemnification.  The Corporation 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless any person who was or 
is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, 
pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative, investigative or other, including 
appeals, by reason of the fact that he is or was a Director, 
Officer or employee of the Corporation, or is or was serving at 
the request of the Corporation as a Director, Officer or employee 
of any Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other 
enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit 
plans, whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in 
an official capacity as a Director, Officer or employee or in any 
other capacity while serving as a Director, Officer or employee, 
to the fullest extent authorized by the New York Business 
Corporation Law, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, 
against all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys' 
fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and 
amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or 
suffered by such person in connection therewith; provided, 
however, that except as provided in Section 6.02 hereof with 
respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to 
indemnification, the Corporation shall indemnify any such person 
seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part 
thereof) initiated by such person only if the proceeding (or part 
thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation. 
 
 
 
     The right to indemnification conferred in this Article shall 
be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the 
Corporation expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in 
advance of its final disposition; provided, however, that if 
required by law at the time of such payment, the payment of such 
expenses incurred by a Director or Officer in his capacity as a 
Director or Officer (and not in any other capacity in which 
service was or is rendered by such person while a Director or 
Officer, including, without limitation, service to an employee 
benefit plan) in advance of the final disposition of such 
proceeding, shall be made only upon delivery to the Corporation 
of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such Director or Officer, 
to repay all amounts so advanced if it should be determined 
ultimately that such Director or Officer is not entitled to be 
indemnified under this Section or otherwise. 
 



 
     "Employee" as used herein, includes both an active employee 
in the Corporation's service, as well as a retired employee who 
is or has been a party to a written agreement under which he 
might be, or might have been, obligated to render services to the 
Corporation. 
 



 
     Section 6.02.  Right of Claimant to Bring Suit.  If a claim 
under Section 6.01 is not paid in full by the Corporation within 
sixty (60) days or, in cases of advances of expenses, twenty (20) 
days after a written claim has been received by the Corporation, 
the claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the 
Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim and, if 
successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to 
be paid also the expense of prosecuting such claim.  It shall be 
a defense to any such action (other than an action brought to 
enforce claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding 
in advance of its final disposition where the required 
undertaking has been tendered to the Corporation) that the 
claimant has not met the standards of conduct which make it 
permissible under the New York Business Corporation Law for the 
Corporation to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed, but 
the burden of proving such defence shall be on the Corporation.  
Neither the failure of the Corporation (including its Board of 
Directors, independent legal counsel, or its shareholders) to 
have made a determination prior to the commencement of such 
action that indemnification of the claimant is proper in the 
circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of 
conduct set forth in the New York Business Law, nor an actual 
determination by the Corporation (including its Board of 
Directors, independent legal counsel, or its shareholders) that 
the claimant had not met such applicable standard of conduct 
shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that 
claimant had not met the applicable standard of conduct.  The 
Corporation shall be precluded from asserting in any judicial 
proceeding commenced pursuant to this Article that the procedures 
and presumptions of this Article are not valid, binding and 
enforceable and shall stipulate in any such proceeding that the 
Corporation is bound by all provisions of this Article. 
 



 
     Section 6.03.  Nonexclusiveness.  The indemnification and 
advances of expenses granted pursuant to, or provided by, this 
Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to 
which a Director or Officer seeking indemnification or 
advancement or expenses may be entitled, whether contained in the 
Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws, and the Board of 
Directors is authorized, from time to time in its discretion, to 
enter into agreements with one or more Directors, Officers and 
other persons providing for the maximum indemnification allowed 
by applicable law. 
 
 
 
     The right to indemnification and the payment of expenses 
incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final 
disposition conferred in this Article (a) shall apply to acts or 
omissions antedating the adoption of this By-Law, (b) shall be 
severable, (c) shall not be exclusive of other rights to which 
any Director, Officer or employee may now or hereafter become 
entitled apart from this Article, (d) shall continue as to a 
person who has ceased to be such Director, Officer or employee 
and (e) shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, Executors and 
Administrators of such a person. 
 



 
     Section 6.04.  Insurance for Indemnification of Directors 
and Officers.  The Corporation shall have the power to purchase 
and maintain insurance (a) to indemnify the Corporation for any 
obligations which it incurs as the result of the indemnification 
of Directors and Officers under the provisions of this Article; 
(b) to indemnify Directors and Officers in instances which they 
may be indemnified by the Corporation under the provisions of 
this Article; and (c) to indemnify Directors and Officers in 
instances in which they may not otherwise be indemnified by the 
Corporation under the provisions of this Article, provided the 
contract of insurance covering such Directors and Officers 
provides, in a manner acceptable to the Superintendent of 
Insurance of the State of New York, for a retention amount and 
for co-insurance. 
 
 
 
     No insurance under the preceding paragraph of this Section 
may provide for any payment, other than the cost of defense, to 
or on behalf of any Director of Officer:  (i) if a judgment or 
other final adjudication adverse to the insured Director or 
Officer establishes that his acts of active and deliberate 
dishonesty were material to the cause of action so adjudicated or 
that he personally gained in fact a financial profit or other 
advantage to which he was not legally entitled, or (ii) in 
relation to any risk the insurance of which is prohibited under 
the insurance laws of the State of New York.



 
 
                        ARTICLE VII 
 
                       Miscellaneous 
 
 
     Section 7.01.  Offices.  The principal office of the 
Corporation shall be in the City of New York, County of New York, 
State of New York.  The Corporation may also have offices at 
other places, within and/or without the State of New York.       
 
 
 
     Section 7.02.  Seal.  The corporate seal shall have 
inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year of its 
incorporation and the words "Corporate Seal of New York". 
 
 
 
     Section 7.03.  Checks.  All checks or demands for money 
shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time determine. 
 
 
 
     Section 7.04.  Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the 
Corporation shall begin on the 1st day of July in each year and 
shall end on the 30th day of June of the ensuing year and the 
first fiscal year shall end on June 30, 1969.  
 
 
 
     Section 7.05.  Books and Records.  The Corporation shall 
keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall 
keep minutes of the proceedings of its shareholders, Board of 
Directors and Executive Committee, if any, and shall keep at the 
office of the Corporation in New York State or at the office of 
its transfer agent or registrar in New York State, a record 
containing the names and addresses of all shareholders, the 
number and class of shares held by each and the dates when they 
respectively became the owners of record thereof.  Any of the 
foregoing books, minutes or records may be in written form or in 
any other form capable of being converted into written form 
within a reasonable time. 
 



 
     Section 7.6.  Duty of Directors and Officers.  Directors and 
Officers shall discharge the duties of their respective positions 
in good faith and with that degree of diligence, care and skill 
which ordinarily prudent men would exercise under similar 
circumstances in like positions.  In discharging their duties, 
Directors and Officers, when acting in good faith, may rely upon 
financial statements of the Corporation represented to them to be 
correct by the President or the Officer of the Corporation having 
charge of its books of accounts, or stated in a written report by 
an independent public or certified public accountant or firm of 
such accountants fairly to reflect the financial condition of the 
Corporation. 
 
 
 
     Section 7.07.  When Notice or Lapse of Time Unnecessary; 
Notice Dispensed With When Delivery is Prohibited.  Whenever, 
under the Business Corporation Law or the Certificate of 
Incorporation or the By-Law of the Corporation or by the terms of 
any agreement or instrument, the Corporation or the Board of 
Directors or any committee thereof is authorized to take any 
action after notice to any person or persons or after the lapse 
of a prescribed period of time, such action may be taken without 
notice and without the lapse of such period of time, if at any 
time before or after such action is completed the person or 
persons entitled to such notice or entitled to participate in the 
action to be taken or, in the case of a shareholder, by his 
attorney-in-fact, submit a signed waiver of notice of such 
requirements. 
 
 
     Whenever any notice or communication is required to be given 
to any person by the Business Corporation Law, the Certificate of 
Incorporation of the Corporation or theses By-Laws, or by the 
terms of any agreement or instrument, or as a condition precedent 
to taking any corporate action and communication with such person 
is then unlawful under any statute of the State of New York or of 
the United States or any regulation, proclamation or order issued 
under said statutes, then the giving of such notice or 
communication to such person shall not be required and there 
shall be no duty to apply for license or other permission to do 
so.  Any affidavit, certificate or other instrument which is 
required to be made or filed as proof of the giving of any notice 
or communication required the Business Corporation Law shall, if 
such notice or communication to any person is dispensed with 
under this paragraph, include a statement that such notice or 
communication was not given to any person with whom communication 
is unlawful.  Such affidavit, certificate or other instrument 
shall be as effective for all purposes as though such notice or 
communication had been personally given to such person.  
 



 
     Section 7.08.  Entire Board.  As used in these By-Laws, the 
term "Entire Board" means the total number of Directors which the 
Corporation would have if there were no vacancies. 
 
 
 
     Section 7.09.  Amendment of By-Laws.  These By-Laws may be 
amended or repealed and new By-Laws adopted by the Board of 
Directors or by vote of the holders of the shares at the time 
entitled to vote of the holders of the shares at the time 
entitled to vote in the election of any Directors, except that 
any amendment by the Board changing the number of Directors shall 
require the vote of a majority of the Entire Board and except 
that any By-Laws adopted by the Board may be amended or repealed 
by the shareholders entitled to vote thereon as provided in the 
Business Corporation Law. 
 
 
     If any By-Law regulating an impending election of Directors 
is adopted, amended or repealed by the Board, the shall be set 
forth in the notice of the next meeting of shareholders for the 
election of Directors the By-Law so adopted, amended or repealed, 
together with a concise statement of the changes made. 
 



 
     Section 7.10  Nonapplication of North Carolina Shareholder 
Protection Act.  The provisions of North Carolina General 
Statutes 55-75 through 55-79 shall not be applicable to this 
Corporation. 
 
 
 
     Section 7.11.  Section Headings.  The Headings to the 
Articles and Sections of these By-Laws have been inserted for 
convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to be a 
part of these By-Laws. 
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                             LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
     THIS LEASE AGREEMENT dated as of May 20, 1997 (as amended, 
modified, supplemented, restated and/or replaced from time to 
time, the "Agreement") is between NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. 
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (together with its successors 
and assigns permitted hereunder, the "Lessor") having its 
principal place of business at NationsBank Plaza, NC1-002-38-20, 
101 South Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28255 and UNIFI 
MANUFACTURING, INC., a North Carolina corporation (together with 
its successors and assigns permitted hereunder, the "Lessee"), 
having its principal place of business at 7201 West Friendly 
Avenue, Greensboro, North Carolina  27419. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
     WHEREAS, Lessee has requested Lessor to purchase the 
Properties (as defined hereinafter) and, simultaneously with such 
acquisition, to lease the Properties to Lessee for use in its 
operations; and 
 
     WHEREAS, Lessor is willing to purchase and lease the 
Properties subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set 
forth, and Lessee has agreed to lease the Properties from Lessor 
on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 
 
     1.   Definitions. 
 
     Unless the context otherwise requires, (a) the following 
terms shall have the following meanings for all purposes of this 
Agreement and shall be equally applicable to both the singular 
and the plural forms of the terms herein defined and (b) all 
agreements, instruments and other documents referenced in this 
Section 1 shall refer to such as amended, modified, supplemented, 
restated and/or replaced from time to time.  The words "this 
Agreement", "herein", "hereunder", "hereof", or other like words 
mean and include this Agreement and the Lease Supplement and any 
amendment, modification, supplement, restatement and/or 
replacement with respect to this Agreement and/or the Lease 
Supplement. 
 
     "Acceptance Date" means the date on which Lessor entered 
into the Overall Transaction and Lessee unconditionally accepted 
the Properties for lease hereunder, as evidenced by the execution 
and delivery of the Lease Supplement and dated such date. 
 
     "Acquisition Cost" means an amount equal to the sum of (a) 
the total cost paid by Lessor for or in connection with the 
Properties referenced in the Lease Supplement, less (b) the total 
cost paid by Lessor for or in connection with each particular 
Property which has been the subject of a Casualty or Condemnation 
and for which an amount equal to the Casualty Loss Value for such 
Property has been paid in full to Lessor. 
 
 
 



 
     "Acquisition Expiration Date" means May 20, 1997. 
 
     "Affiliate" means a Person (other than a Subsidiary) which 
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries 
controls or is controlled by, or is under common control with, 
another Person.  The term "control" means the possession, 
directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the 
direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether 
through ownership of voting stock, by contract or otherwise. 
 
     "After Tax Basis" shall mean, with respect to any payment to 
be received, the amount of such payment increased so that, after 
deduction of the amount of all Taxes required to be paid by the 
recipient calculated at the then maximum marginal rates generally 
applicable to Persons of the same type as the recipients (less 
any Tax savings realized as a result of the payment of the 
indemnified amount) with respect to the receipt by the recipient 
of such amounts, such increased payment (as so reduced) is equal 
to the payment otherwise required to be made. 
 
     "Appraisal Procedure" means the following procedure for 
determining the Fair Market Sales Value of any Property.  If 
either party to this Agreement shall have given written notice to 
the other party requesting determination of such value by the 
Appraisal Procedure, the parties shall consult for the purpose of 
appointing a qualified independent appraiser by mutual agreement.  
If no such appraiser is so appointed within 15 days after such 
notice is given, each party shall appoint a qualified independent 
appraiser within 20 days.  If one party, but not the other, 
appoints an appraiser pursuant to the preceding sentence, then 
the appropriately appointed appraiser shall conduct the 
appraisal.  Any appraiser or appraisers appointed pursuant to the 
foregoing procedure shall be instructed to determine the Fair 
Market Sales Value of such Property within 30 days after his or 
their appointment.  If the parties shall have appointed a single 
appraiser, his determination of values shall be final.  If two 
appraisers shall be appointed, the values determined shall be 
averaged.  The parties shall share equally the costs and expenses 
of the appraiser or the appraisers, as the case may be. 
 
     "Appurtenant Rights" shall mean (a) all agreements, 
easements, rights of way or use, rights of ingress or egress, 
privileges, appurtenances, tenements, hereditaments and other 
rights and benefits at any time belonging or pertaining to any of 
the Land underlying any Improvements or otherwise benefiting any 
Property, including without limitation the use of any streets, 
ways, alleys, vaults or strips of land adjoining, abutting, 
adjacent or contiguous to any Land and (b) all permits, licenses 
and rights, whether or not of record, appurtenant to any Land or 
any Improvements. 
 
     "Assignee" means any Person to whom Lessor or any assignee 
(whether pursuant to an actual assignment or a collateral 
assignment) has made any assignment (whether as an actual 
assignment or as a collateral assignment), sale or transfer 
referred to in Section 14(b) hereof. 
 
     "Basic Payment" means the amounts payable as rent for the 
Properties during the Term pursuant to Section 7(a) hereof. 
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     "Basic Payment Date" means each date on which a semi-annual 
Basic Payment is due and payable as provided in Section 7(a) 
hereof. 
 
     "Basic Payment Factor" means each of the Basic Payment 
Factors set forth on Schedule A hereto. 
 
     "Basic Payment Period" means each of the successive periods 
occurring from the Acceptance Date to the Expiration Date, each 
such period beginning on and including a Basic Payment Date and 
ending on but excluding the next succeeding Basic Payment Date. 
 
     "Business Day" means any day other than a day on which 
banking institutions in the States of North Carolina and Georgia 
are authorized or required by Law to close. 
 
     "Casualty" with respect to any Property means each of the 
following occurrences whether existing at the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement: (a) destruction, damage 
beyond repair, or rendition of any Property or Part thereof 
permanently unfit for normal use for any reason whatsoever, (b) 
loss of any Property or Part thereof or of the use thereof due to 
theft or disappearance during the Term or the non-existence 
thereof or (c) any damage to any Property or Part thereof which 
results in an insurance settlement with respect to such Property 
or Part thereof on the basis of a total loss. 
 
     "Casualty Loss Value" means as of any Casualty Loss Value 
Date during the Term an amount determined by multiplying (a) the 
Acquisition Cost for all Properties subject to a Casualty or 
Condemnation within the then current Basic Payment Period by (b) 
the percentage set forth opposite such Casualty Loss Value Date 
on Schedule B hereto. 
 
     "Casualty Loss Value Date" means the last day of each Basic 
Payment Period. 
 
     "CERCLA" means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et 
seq., as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization 
Act of 1986. 
 
     "Claims" means any and all obligations, liabilities, losses, 
actions, suits, penalties, claims, demands, costs and expenses 
(including without limitation reasonable attorney's fees and 
expenses) of any nature whatsoever. 
 
     "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
from time to time. 
 
     "Condemnation" means any taking, condemnation, confiscation, 
seizure, requisition or sale of the use, access, occupancy, 
easement rights or title to any Property or any Part thereof, 
wholly or partially (temporarily or permanently), by or on 
account of any actual or threatened eminent domain proceeding or 
other taking of action by any Person having the power of eminent 
domain, including without limitation an action by a Governmental 
Authority to change the grade of, or widen the streets adjacent 
to, any Property or alter the pedestrian or vehicular traffic 
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flow to any Property so as to result in a change in access to 
such Property, or by or on account of an eviction by paramount 
title or any transfer made in lieu of any such proceeding or 
action. 
 
     "Consolidated Subsidiary" means at any date any Subsidiary 
of any Person or other entity the accounts of which would be 
consolidated with those of such Person in the consolidated 
financial statements of such Person if such statements were 
prepared as of such date. 
 
     "Consolidated Tangible Net Worth" means at any date the 
consolidated stockholders' equity of Lessee and its Consolidated 
Subsidiaries, less their consolidated Intangible Assets, all 
determined as of such date.  For purposes of this definition, 
"Intangible Assets" means the amount (to the extent reflected in 
determining such consolidated stockholders' equity) of (a) all 
write-ups (other than write-ups resulting from foreign currency 
translations and write-ups of assets of a going concern business 
made within 12 months after the acquisition of such business) in 
the book value of any assets owned by Lessee or a Consolidated 
Subsidiary of Lessee and (b) all goodwill, patents, trademarks, 
service marks, trade names, copyrights, organization or 
developmental expenses and other intangible assets. 
 
     "Deed" means each warranty deed specifically referring to 
the applicable parcel of Land and the related Improvements, 
executed by the appropriate Seller in favor of Lessor and dated 
the Acceptance Date. 
 
     "Default" means any event which with the giving of notice or 
the passage of time or both would result in an Event of Default. 
 
     "Environmental Claims" means any investigation, notice, 
violation, demand, allegation, action, suit, injunction, 
judgment, order, consent decree, penalty, fine, Lien, proceeding, 
or Claim (whether administrative, judicial, or private in nature) 
arising (a) pursuant to, or in connection with, an actual or 
alleged violation of, any Environmental Law, (b) in connection 
with any Hazardous Substance, (c) from any abatement, removal, 
remedial, corrective, or other response action in connection with 
a Hazardous Substance, Environmental Law, or other order of a 
Tribunal or (d) from any actual or alleged damage, injury, threat 
or harm to health, safety, natural resources or the environment. 
 
     "Environmental Laws" means any Law, permit, consent, 
approval, license, award or other authorization or requirement of 
any Tribunal relating to emissions, discharges, releases, 
threatened releases of any Hazardous Substance into ambient air, 
surface water, ground water, publicly owned treatment works, 
septic system or land or otherwise relating to the handling, 
storage, treatment, generation, use, or disposal of Hazardous 
Substances, pollution or to the protection of health or the 
environment, including without limitation CERCLA, the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901, et seq., and state 
statutes analogous thereto. 
 
     "Environmental Violation" means any activity, occurrence or 
condition that violates or threatens (if the threat requires 
remediation under any Environmental Law and is not remediated 
during any grace period allowed under such Environmental Law) to 
violate or results in or threatens (if the threat requires 
remediation under any Environmental Law and is not remediated 
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during any grace period allowed under such Environmental Law) to 
result in noncompliance with any Environmental Law. 
 
     "Equipment" means the equipment described in Annexes 1B, 2B, 
3B, 4B, 5B and 6B to Exhibit A hereto delivered on the Acceptance 
Date, together with any Parts (including without limitation 
replacement Parts) which may from time to time be incorporated in 
such equipment or other property and title to which shall have 
vested in Lessor. 
 
     "ERISA" shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 
21(k) hereof. 
 
     "Event of Default" shall have the meaning given to such term 
in Section 22 hereof. 
 
     "Expiration Date" means January 1, 2013. 
 
     "Fair Market Sales Value" means the value which would be 
obtained in an arm's length transaction regarding the Properties 
between an informed and willing buyer and an informed and willing 
seller under no compulsion to sell.  If the parties are unable to 
agree on the Fair Market Sales Value within 30 days of Lessor's 
giving of notice as specified in Section 23(c) hereof or by the 
date 120 days prior to the Expiration Date, as the case may be, 
such Fair Market Sales Value shall be determined by the Appraisal 
Procedure. 
 
     "Fixtures" means all fixtures relating to the Improvements, 
including without limitation all components thereof, located in 
or on the Improvements, together with all replacements, 
modifications, alterations and additions thereto. 
 
     "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles set 
forth in the opinions and pronouncements of the accounting 
principles board of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, and statements and pronouncements of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board or in such other statements by such 
other entity as may be approved by a significant segment of the 
accounting profession, that are applicable to the circumstances 
as of the date of determination. 
 
     "Governmental Action" means all permits, authorizations, 
registrations, consents, approvals, waivers, exceptions, 
variances, orders, judgments, written interpretations, decrees, 
licenses, exemptions, publications, filings, notices to and 
declarations of or with, or required by, any Governmental 
Authority, or required by any Legal Requirement, and shall 
include without limitation all environmental and operating 
permits and licenses that are required for the full use, 
occupancy, zoning and operating of the Properties. 
 
     "Governmental Authority" means any nation or government, any 
state or other political subdivision thereof and any entity 
exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or 
administrative functions of or pertaining to government. 
 
     "Guarantor" means Unifi, Inc., a New York corporation, in 
its capacity as and to the extent set forth in the Guaranty. 
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     "Guaranty" means that certain Guaranty Agreement dated as of 
the date hereof executed by the Guarantor to the Lessor. 
 
     "Hazardous Substance" means any of the following:  (a) any 
petroleum or petroleum product, explosives, radioactive 
materials, asbestos, formaldehyde, polychlorinated biphenyls, 
lead or radon gas; (b) any substance, material, product, 
derivative, compound or mixture, mineral, chemical, waste, gas, 
medical waste, or pollutant, in each case whether naturally 
occurring, man-made or the by-product of any process, that is 
toxic, harmful or hazardous to the environment or human health or 
safety as determined in accordance with any Environmental Law; or 
(c) any substance, material, product, derivative, compound or 
mixture, mineral, chemical, waste, gas, medical waste or 
pollutant that would support the assertion of any Claim under any 
Environmental Law, whether or not defined as hazardous as such 
under any Environmental Law. 
 
     "Impositions" means any and all liabilities, losses, 
expenses, costs, charges and Liens of any kind whatsoever for 
Taxes including but not limited to (a) real property Taxes, 
personal property Taxes and ad valorem Taxes in the nature of 
property Taxes on any Property or any Part thereof, (b) sales 
Taxes, use Taxes, value added and other similar Taxes (including 
without limitation rent Taxes and intangibles Taxes); (c) any 
excise Taxes, (d) real estate transfer Taxes, conveyance Taxes, 
stamp Taxes and documentary recording Taxes and fees, (e) Taxes 
that are or are in the nature of franchise, income, privilege and 
doing business Taxes, license and registration fees. (f) 
assessments on any Property, including all assessments for public 
Improvements or benefits, whether or not such improvements are 
commenced or completed within the Term and (g) any Tax, Lien, 
assessment or charge asserted, imposed or assessed by the Pension 
Benefit Guaranty Corporation established pursuant to Subtitle A 
of Title IV of ERISA and any successor thereto or any 
governmental authority performing functions similar thereto, and 
in each case all interest, additions to Tax and penalties 
thereon, which at any time prior to, during or with respect to 
the Term or in respect of any period for which Lessee shall be 
obligated to pay Supplemental Payments, may be levied, assessed 
or imposed by any Governmental Authority upon or with respect to 
(t) any Property or any Part thereof or interest therein, (u) the 
leasing, financing, refinancing, demolition, construction, 
substitution, subleasing, assignment, control, condition, 
occupancy, servicing, maintenance, repair, ownership, possession, 
activity conducted on, delivery, insuring, use, operation, 
improvement, transfer of title, return or other disposition of 
such Property or any Part thereof or interest therein, (v) the 
rentals, receipts or earnings arising from any Property or any 
Part thereof or interest therein, (w) the Transaction Documents, 
the performance thereof, or any payment made or accrued pursuant 
thereto, (x) the income or other proceeds received with respect 
to any Property or any Part thereof or interest therein upon the 
sale or disposition thereof, (y) any contract relating to the 
construction, acquisition or delivery of or regarding any 
Property or any Part thereof or interest therein or (z) otherwise 
in connection with the transactions contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents. 
 
     "Improvements" means, with respect to each parcel of Land, 
all buildings, structures, fixtures, and other improvements of 
every kind existing at any time and from time to time on or under 
the Land purchased, leased or otherwise acquired by Lessor, 
together with any and all Appurtenant Rights and other 
appurtenances to such buildings, structures or improvements, 
including without limitation sidewalks, utility pipes, conduits 
and lines, parking areas and roadways, and including without 
limitation all Modifications and other additions to or changes in 
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the Improvements at any time, including without limitation (a) 
any Improvements existing as of the Acceptance Date and (b) any 
Improvements made subsequent to the Acceptance Date. 
 
     "Indemnified Person" means Lessor, each Assignee, each 
collateral assignee of Lessor and mortgagee of Lessor pursuant to 
Section 14(b) hereof and each of their respective successors and 
assigns and the officers, directors, stockholders, equity 
holders, agents and servants of any of the foregoing. 
 
     "Land" means each parcel of real property described in 
Annexes 1A, 2A, 3A, 4A, 5A and 6A to Exhibit A hereto. 
 
     "Law" means any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, 
directive, order, writ, injunction or decree of any Tribunal. 
 
     "Lease Supplement" means a Lease Supplement and Acceptance 
Certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto, to be 
executed by Lessor and Lessee for the Properties, in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 4 hereof. 
 
     "Legal Requirements" means all foreign, federal, state, 
county, municipal and other governmental statutes, Laws, rules, 
orders, regulations, ordinances, judgments, decrees and 
injunctions affecting Lessor, any Indemnified Person or any 
Property, Land, Improvement, Fixture, Equipment or the taxation, 
demolition, construction, use or alteration thereof, whether now 
or hereafter enacted and in force, including without limitation 
any that require repairs, modifications or alterations in or to 
any Property or in any way limit the use and enjoyment thereof 
(including without limitation all building, zoning and fire codes 
and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C.  12101 
et. seq., and any other similar federal, state or local Laws or 
ordinances and the regulations promulgated thereunder) and any 
that may relate to environmental requirements (including without 
limitation all Environmental Laws), and all permits, certificates 
of occupancy, licenses, authorizations and regulations relating 
thereto and all covenants, agreements, restrictions and 
encumbrances contained in any instruments which are either of 
record or known to Lessee affecting any Property or the 
Appurtenant Rights. 
 
     "Lessee Entity" means Lessee, each Affiliate of Lessee and 
each Subsidiary of Lessee. 
 
     "Lessor Entity" means Lessor, each Affiliate of Lessor and 
each Subsidiary of Lessor. 
 
     "Lessor's Liens" means any Lien affecting, on or in respect 
of any Property or this Agreement arising as a result of (i) 
claims against Lessor not related to the transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents, (ii) acts or omissions 
of Lessor not permitted under the terms of the Transaction 
Documents and in breach of any covenant or agreement of Lessor 
set forth in any of the Transaction Documents, (iii) Taxes 
imposed against Lessor which are not indemnified against by the 
Lessee pursuant to this Agreement or any other Transaction 
Document, except to the extent not due and payable or the amount 
or validity of which is being contested in good faith by 
appropriate proceedings so long as there is no material risk of 
the impairment of the Lien of this Agreement or the loss of the 
benefit of any part of any Property to Lessee under this 
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Agreement or (iv) claims against Lessor arising out of the 
transfer (whether voluntary or involuntary) by Lessor (without 
the consent of Lessee as provided in this Agreement) of all or 
any portion of its interests in all or part of any Property or 
the Transaction Documents. 
 
     "Lien" means any lien, encumbrance, exception, restriction, 
easement, right of way, servitude, encroachment, pledge, security 
interest or irregularity in title of any kind. 
 
     "Maximum Cost" means the sum of $27,500,000. 
 
     "Memorandum of Lease" means the Memorandum of Lease 
Agreement and Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate in the 
form of Exhibit C hereto to be executed by Lessor and Lessee as 
of the Acceptance Date. 
 
     "Modifications" means, with respect to each Property, any 
modifications, alterations, renovations, improvements and 
additions to any such Property or any Part thereof and 
substitutions and replacements therefor. 
 
     "Option Election Notice Date" means September 1, 2012. 
 
     "Overall Transaction" means all of those transactions 
referred to in, provided for in or contemplated by this Agreement 
and/or the other Transaction Documents, including without 
limitation the financing, operation and management of the 
Properties. 
 
     "Overdue Rate" means the lesser of the maximum rate 
permitted by applicable Law and a per annum interest rate equal 
to the Prime Rate plus two percent (2%). 
 
     "Parts" means all appliances, parts, components, units, 
instruments, appurtenances, accessories and miscellaneous 
property of whatever nature that may from time to time be 
incorporated or installed in or attached to or otherwise part of 
any Property. 
 
     "Payments" means Basic Payments and Supplemental Payments. 
 
     "Permitted Contest" means any contest by Lessee regarding 
any Permitted Lien or any Taxes incurred with respect to which 
Lessee has provided a legal opinion from outside counsel stating 
in substance that the position adopted by Lessee in its contest 
has merit and has a reasonable likelihood of success; so long as 
Lessee shall contest, in good faith and at its expense, the 
existence, the amount or the validity thereof, the amount of the 
damages caused thereby, or the extent of its liability therefor, 
by appropriate proceedings which do not result in (a) the 
collection of, or other realization upon, the Lien or the Taxes 
so contested, (b) the sale, forfeiture or loss of any Property or 
any portion thereof, (c) any interference with the use of any or 
any Property or any portion thereof or (d) any interference with 
the payment of the Payments or any portion thereof. 
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     "Permitted Exception" means for each Property, the Liens set 
forth on Schedule B of the title policy commitment issued to 
Lessor for such Property. 
 
     "Permitted Facility" means each manufacturing facility used 
to produce textured filament or spun yarns. 
 
     "Permitted Lien" means: 
 
     (a)  the respective rights and interests of the parties to 
the Transaction Documents as provided in the Transactions 
Documents; 
 
     (b)  the rights of any sublessee or assignee under a 
sublease or an assignment expressly permitted by the terms of 
this Agreement for no longer than the duration of this Agreement; 
 
     (c)  Liens for Taxes that either are not yet due or are 
being contested pursuant to a Permitted Contest; 
 
     (d)  Liens arising by operation of Law, materialmen's, 
mechanics', workmen's, repairmen's, employees', carriers', 
warehousemen's and other like Liens relating to any Modification 
or arising in the ordinary course of  business for amounts that 
either are not more than 30 days past due or are being contested 
pursuant to a Permitted Contest; 
 
     (e)  Liens of any of the types referred to in clause (d) 
above that have been bonded for not less than the full amount in 
dispute (or as to which other security arrangements satisfactory 
to Lessor have been made), which bonding (or arrangements) shall 
comply with applicable Legal Requirements and shall have 
effectively stayed any execution or enforcement of such Liens; 
 
     (f)  Liens arising out of judgments or awards with respect 
to which appeals or other proceedings for review are being 
prosecuted in good faith and for the payment of which adequate 
reserves have been provided as required by GAAP or other 
appropriate provisions have been made, so long as such 
proceedings have the effect of staying the execution of such 
judgments or awards and satisfy the conditions for a Permitted 
Contest; 
 
     (g)  Liens in favor of municipalities to the extent agreed 
to by the Lessor; 
 
     (h)  Liens for Taxes not yet due; and 
 
     (i)  all Liens other than Liens which, in the reasonable 
assessment of Lessor, impair the value of any Property or the use 
of any Property for its intended purpose. 
 
     "Permitted Sublease" means a sublease (a) to which Lessor 
has given its prior written consent (to be given or withheld in 
its sole discretion), (b) the sublessee with respect to which 
shall be organized under the Laws of the United States or any 
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state thereof and shall have its principal place of business in 
the United States, (c) the term of which shall in no event exceed 
the then remaining portion of the Term, (d) immediately prior to 
the commencement of the term of which, and after giving effect to 
which, there shall exist no Default or Event of Default, (e) 
which shall be collaterally assigned to Lessor pursuant to an 
assignment which in form and substance is satisfactory to Lessor, 
and (f) which shall contain unconditional payment provisions and 
provisions relating to insurance, maintenance, operation in 
accordance with applicable Laws and insurance requirements, 
possession, delivery and return conditions (insofar as general 
condition of the applicable Property  is concerned), events of 
default, remedies and permitted Liens on such Property which 
provide for benefits and protections to Lessee, as lessor, which 
are substantially similar to the benefits and protections 
provided to Lessor by such provisions of this Agreement. 
 
     "Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust, 
trustee(s) of a trust, unincorporated organization, or government 
or governmental authority, agency or political subdivision 
thereof. 
 
     "Prime Rate" means the per annum interest rate announced by 
NationsBank, N.A. from time to time as its prime lending rate as 
in effect from time to time.  Such prime rate is a reference rate 
and does not necessarily represent the lowest or best rate 
actually charged to any customer.  NationsBank, N.A. may make 
commercial loans or other loans at rates of interest at, above or 
below such prime rate.  Such prime rate shall change 
automatically and without notice from time to time as and when 
such prime rate of NationsBank, N.A. changes. 
 
     "Properties" means each parcel of Land and all Improvements, 
all Fixtures and all Equipment on each such parcel of Land or 
otherwise associated therewith, as more particularly described in 
Exhibit A hereto. 
 
     "Purchase Agreement" means that certain Contract of Purchase 
and Sale dated as of the date hereof between the Lessor and the 
Seller pursuant to which the Seller has sold to the Lessor all of 
Seller's right, title and interest in and to each of the 
Properties. 
 
     "Replacement" shall have the meaning given to such term in 
Section 11(b) hereof. 
 
     "Required Alteration" shall have the meaning given to such 
term in Section 12 hereof. 
 
     "Sales Expenses" means (a) all property, excise, sales and 
use Taxes and other Taxes (as such may be applicable to the sale 
or transfer of any Property), (b) all fees, costs and expenses of 
such sale or transfer of any Property (including without 
limitation fees, costs and expenses of attorneys or those 
associated with transportation, storage, security or insurance) 
incurred by Lessor and (c) any and all other amounts incurred in 
connection with such sale or transfer of any Property for which, 
if not paid, Lessor would be liable or which, if not paid, would 
constitute a Lien on any Property or any Part thereof. 
 
     "Seller" means Unifi, Inc., a New York corporation. 
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     "Subsidiary" of any Person means any corporation of which 
more than 50% of the voting rights of the outstanding capital 
stock at the time of determination is owned directly or 
indirectly by such Person or one of the Subsidiaries of such 
Person. 
 
     "Supplemental Payments" means all amounts, liabilities and 
obligations which Lessee assumes or agrees to pay hereunder to 
Lessor or others, including without limitation payments of 
Casualty Loss Value and indemnities, but excluding Basic 
Payments. 
 
     "Tax" means any and all United States federal, state and 
local taxes, levies, fees, imposts, duties, charges, assessments, 
excises or withholdings, howsoever denominated. 
 
     "Tax Assumptions" shall have the meaning given to such term 
in Section 18B(a) hereof. 
 
     "Term" means the period of 15 years and 11 months commencing 
on the Acceptance Date and ending on the Expiration Date. 
 
     "Termination Date" means the last day of the Term. 
 
     "Third Party Purchaser" means a purchaser of one or more of 
the Properties which purchaser is financially capable of 
purchasing such Property or Properties, is selected by Lessee, is 
approved by Lessor and is not an Affiliate or a Subsidiary of 
Lessee. 
 
     "Transaction Costs" means all the costs, fees and expenses 
referenced in Section 27 hereof. 
 
     "Transaction Documents" means this Agreement, the Lease 
Supplement, the Memorandum of Lease, each Deed, each Warranty 
Bill of Sale, the Guaranty, the Purchase Agreement, and each 
Uniform Commercial Code financing statement as deemed appropriate 
by Lessor or its counsel, whether heretofore, now or hereafter 
executed. 
 
     "Tribunal" means any state, commonwealth, federal, foreign, 
territorial, or other court or government body, subdivision, 
agency, department, commission, board, bureau or instrumentality 
of a governmental body. 
 
     "Voluntary Enhancement" shall have the meaning given to such 
term in Section 12 hereof. 
 
     "Warranty Bill of Sale" means each warranty bill of sale 
relating to the item of Equipment or other property specifically 
referenced therein, duly executed by the appropriate Seller in 
favor of Lessor and dated the Acceptance Date. 
 
     2.   Agreement for Sale of Properties; Agreement for Lease 
of Properties; Covenant of Quiet Enjoyment. 
 
     Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, and subject to, and upon 
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Lessor hereby 
agrees to purchase the Properties from the Seller and to lease 
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the Properties to Lessee (and Lessee hereby agrees to lease the 
Properties from Lessor) for the Term.  Provided that no Event of 
Default has occurred and is continuing, Lessor agrees that it 
shall not interfere with Lessee's quiet enjoyment and use of the 
Properties during the Term. 
 
     3.   Conditions Precedent. 
 
     The obligations of Lessor to purchase the Properties and to 
lease the same to Lessee and enter into the Overall Transaction 
are subject to: 
 
          (a)  Principal Conditions. 
 
          The delivery to Lessor on or prior to the Acceptance 
Date of the following documents each in form and substance 
satisfactory to Lessor and the satisfaction of such other 
conditions specified in the following provisions: 
 
          (i)  each of the Transaction Documents (A) shall have 
been duly authorized and executed by the parties thereto and 
delivered, (B) shall be in full force and effect and (C) to the 
extent deemed necessary by Lessor, shall have been filed with the 
appropriate filing offices; provided, this subsection (i) shall 
not apply to the authorization, execution and delivery of 
Transaction Documents by Lessor;  
 
          (ii) an officer's certificate from Lessee (A) 
certifying Lessee's articles of incorporation, by-laws and 
resolutions, with such resolutions authorizing the Overall 
Transaction and Lessee's execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which 
Lessee is a party, (B) containing an incumbency certification of 
Lessee with the name(s), title(s) and specimen signature(s) of 
the person or persons authorized on behalf of Lessee to execute 
this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which 
Lessee is a party, (C) stating that no material adverse change 
has occurred in the condition of Lessee (financial or otherwise) 
since June 30, 1996 which would impair the ability of Lessee to 
pay and perform its obligations under any Transaction Document 
and (D) stating that no Default or Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing as of the date hereof; 
 
          (iii)     an officer's certificate from Guarantor (A) 
certifying Guarantor's articles of incorporation, by-laws and 
resolutions, with such resolutions authorizing the Overall 
Transaction and Guarantor's execution, delivery and performance 
of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which 
Guarantor is a party, (B) containing an incumbency certification 
of Guarantor with the name(s), title(s) and specimen signature(s) 
of the person or persons authorized on behalf of Guarantor to 
execute this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to 
which Guarantor is a party, (C) stating that no material adverse 
change has occurred in the condition of Guarantor (financial or 
otherwise) since June 30, 1996 which would impair the ability of 
Guarantor to pay and perform its obligations under any 
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Transaction Document and (D) stating that no Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing as of the date 
hereof; 
 
          (iv) a written opinion of counsel for Lessee and 
Guarantor; 
 
          (v)  certificates of insurance and an insurance 
broker's letter evidencing the coverages required under Section 
17 hereof; 
 
          (vi) Uniform Commercial Code Lien searches, Tax Lien 
searches and judgment Lien searches as deemed necessary or 
appropriate by Lessor shall be conducted by a nationally 
recognized search company and the Liens referenced in such 
searches which are objectionable to Lessor shall either be 
removed or otherwise handled in a manner satisfactory to Lessor; 
 
          (vii)     good standing certificates from the Secretary 
of State of Lessee's state of incorporation, the state of 
Lessee's principal place of business and each state where a 
Property is located; 
 
          (viii)    good standing certificates from the Secretary 
of State of Guarantor's state of incorporation and the state of 
Guarantor's principal place of business; 
 
          (ix) an appraisal of each Property conducted by an 
appraiser mutually acceptable to the Lessor and the Lessee; 
 
          (x)  title insurance commitments to issue policies 
respecting each Property in favor of Lessor from a title 
insurance company acceptable to Lessor, with such title 
exceptions thereto as are acceptable to Lessor; 
 
          (xi) a FIRPTA affidavit from the Seller in compliance 
with the Code; 
 
          (xii)     an environmental site assessment respecting 
each Property prepared by GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. 
 
          (xiii)    a survey (with a flood hazard certification) 
respecting each Property prepared by an independent recognized 
professional acceptable to Lessor; and 
 
          (xiv)     invoices for the various Transaction Costs 
which constitute a component of Acquisition Cost.  
 
          (b)  Additional Conditions. 
 
          The fulfillment to the satisfaction of Lessor as of the 
Acceptance Date of the conditions specified in the following 
provisions: 
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          (i)  the absence on the Acceptance Date of (A) any Lien 
on any Property, other than any Permitted Lien and (B) any 
Default or Event of Default (both before and after giving effect 
to the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents); 
 
          (ii) the aggregate Acquisition Cost will not exceed the 
Maximum Cost; 
 
          (iii)     the Acceptance Date shall be a date between 
and inclusive of the date hereof and the Acquisition Expiration 
Date; 
 
          (iv) Lessee shall have paid all fees and expenses due 
and owing with respect to the Overall Transaction on or prior to 
the Acceptance Date, including without limitation all necessary 
recording fees, documentary stamp Taxes and similar amounts with 
respect to the acquisition of the Properties by Lessor; 
      
          (v)  title to each Property shall conform to the 
representations and warranties set forth in Section 21(s) hereof; 
 
          (vi) all necessary Governmental Actions, in each case 
required by any Law or regulation enacted, imposed or adopted on 
or prior to each such date or by any change in facts or 
circumstances on or prior to each such date, shall have been 
obtained or made and be in full force and effect; 
 
          (vii)     all consents, licenses, permits, 
authorizations and assignments required as of the Acceptance Date 
by all Legal Requirements or pursuant to the terms of any 
contract, indenture, instrument or agreement respecting any 
Property (including without limitation for the acquisition, 
ownership, occupancy, operation, leasing or subleasing of any 
Property) shall have been obtained and shall be in full force and 
effect;  
 
          (viii)    no action or proceeding shall have been 
instituted, nor shall any action or proceeding be overtly 
threatened, before any Governmental Authority, nor shall any 
order, judgment or decree have been issued or proposed to be 
issued by any Governmental Authority or to set aside, restrain, 
enjoin or prevent the full performance of this Agreement, any 
other Transaction Document or any transaction contemplated hereby 
or thereby; and 
 
          (ix) Lessor shall have received such other documents, 
appraisals, certificates, financing statements and other items, 
in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor, as Lessor may 
require. 
 
     4.   Acceptance of the Properties. 
 
     Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any failure or 
delay in obtaining either the Properties or access thereto.  
Lessor hereby appoints Lessee as Lessor's agent for the sole and 
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limited purpose of accepting the Properties.  On the Acceptance 
Date Lessee shall promptly inspect each Property, and unless 
Lessee gives Lessor prompt written notice of any defect in or 
other proper objection to any Property, Lessee shall promptly 
upon completion of such inspection execute and deliver to Lessor 
the Lease Supplement, dated the Acceptance Date.  Lessor shall 
also pay to each Seller the Acquisition Cost of such Seller's 
Property or Properties to the extent all of the conditions 
precedent specified in Section 3 hereof have been fulfilled to 
Lessor's reasonable satisfaction.  The execution of the Lease 
Supplement by Lessee shall evidence that (a) each Property has 
been irrevocably accepted under this Agreement for all purposes, 
upon and subject to all of the terms, conditions and provisions 
hereof and (b) as between Lessor and Lessee, (i) each Property 
has been inspected to Lessee's satisfaction and is in suitable 
form for its purpose, is in good operating order, repair and 
condition, (iii) is of a size, design, capacity, manufacture and 
construction acceptable to Lessee and (iv) is duly certified or 
licensed by any Governmental Authority which is charged with 
issuing such certificates or licenses. 
 
     5.   Term; Early Termination.   
 
          (a)  Term.   
 
          The Term for the Properties shall commence on the 
Acceptance Date, and unless sooner terminated in accordance with 
the provisions of this Agreement, shall end on the Expiration 
Date. 
 
          (b)  Early Termination. 
 
          On any Basic Payment Date on or after the fifth annual 
anniversary of the Acceptance Date, Lessee may terminate this 
Agreement as to all but not less than all of the Properties upon 
satisfaction of the following conditions: (i) on such designated 
early termination date, no Default or Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing, (ii) the President, any Vice 
President, the Treasurer, the Chief Financial Officer or any 
other officer reasonably suitable to Lessor shall have delivered 
to Lessor a certificate (in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor) certifying that the Properties are 
obsolete or surplus to the needs of Lessee, (iii) Lessee shall 
arrange for the purchase of the Properties by one or more Third 
Party Purchasers, (iv) on such designated early termination date, 
Lessor shall receive: from (A) each appropriate Third Party 
Purchaser, the previously agreed upon purchase price, (B) Lessee, 
an amount by which the greater of Casualty Loss Value or Fair 
Market Sales Value for each individual Property exceeds the 
purchase price for such individual Property and (C) Lessee, all 
Basic Payments and Supplemental Payments then due and owing or 
accrued, (v) Lessee shall pay all Sales Expenses in connection 
with such sale of the Properties and (vi) Lessee shall surrender 
each Property to the appropriate Third Party Purchaser and 
deliver to such Third Party Purchaser the various permits, 
certificates, licenses, documents and other items, all in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 6 hereof as if such 
Third Party Purchaser were Lessor.  To the extent the purchase 
price specified in Section (b)(iv)(A) hereof for any Property 
exceeds the Casualty Loss Value for such Property on such date, 
Lessor shall retain the excess.  Upon Lessor's receipt and 
verification of payment of the above-referenced amounts, Lessor 
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shall, at Lessee's cost and expense, execute and deliver special 
warranty deeds and special warranty bills of sale, as 
appropriate, in order to convey to the applicable Third Party 
Purchaser the Property or Properties purchased by such entity on 
an as-is, where-is and with all faults basis, without recourse or 
representation or warranty of any kind except as to the absence 
of Liens created by or through Lessor. 
 
          (c)  Early Purchase Option. 
 
          On July 1, 2006, Lessee may purchase all but not less 
than all of the Properties and terminate this Agreement upon 
satisfaction of the following conditions: (i) on such designated 
early purchase date, no Default or Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing, (ii) Lessee shall purchase all but 
not less than all of the Properties for an amount equal to 
70.35483142% of the aggregate Acquisition Cost, (iii) on such 
designated early purchase date, Lessor shall receive from Lessee 
the purchase price referenced in Section 5(c)(ii) and all Basic 
Payments and Supplemental Payments then due and owing or accrued 
and (iv) Lessee shall pay all Sales Expenses in connection with 
the sale of the Properties by Lessor to Lessee.  Upon Lessor's 
receipt and verification of payment of the above-referenced 
amounts, Lessor shall, at Lessee's cost and expense (provided, 
however, Lessor shall pay the costs and expenses of Lessor's 
legal counsel), execute and deliver special warranty deeds and 
special warranty bills of sale, as appropriate, in order to 
convey to Lessee the Properties on an as-is, where-is and with 
all faults basis, without recourse or representation or warranty 
of any kind except as to the absence of Liens created by or 
through Lessor. 
 
     6.   Termination Date Delivery of the Properties. 
 
     If Lessee shall not have purchased the Properties in 
accordance with Sections 5(c) or 29 hereof or caused the 
Properties to be sold pursuant to Section 5(b) hereof then in any 
such case on the Termination Date Lessee shall surrender the 
Properties to Lessor.  The terms of this Section 6 shall apply to 
Lessee's surrender of the Properties to Lessor or a Third Party 
Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
including without limitation at the end of the Term, pursuant to 
Section 5(b) hereof, in connection with the exercise of remedies 
with respect to an Event of Default or otherwise.  At the time of 
such surrender to Lessor or a Third Party Purchaser, each 
Property (and each Part) shall (a) be in good operating order, 
and in the repair and condition as when originally accepted by 
Lessee for purposes of this Agreement, ordinary wear and tear 
from proper use thereof excepted, and refurbished where 
necessary, (b) be capable of being immediately operated by 
Lessor, a Third Party Purchaser or third party lessee without 
further inspection, repair, replacement, alteration or 
improvement, (c) be in accordance and compliance with any and all 
Legal Requirements, (d) be free and clear of all Liens, other 
than those granted or placed thereon by Lessor, and (e) be in 
compliance with the requirements of Sections 10, 11 and 12 
hereof.  Until all the Properties are delivered to Lessor or a 
Third Party Purchaser, as appropriate, as provided in this 
Section 6, Lessee shall pay Lessor an amount equal to 110% of the 
daily average of the Basic Payments during the Term as determined 
by Lessor, on the dates requested by Lessor and shall pay Lessor 
the pro rata portion of such amount which is accrued but unpaid 
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on the date all the Properties are surrendered to Lessor or a 
Third Party Purchaser; as appropriate; provided, however, this 
provision is not intended to grant Lessee a right to continued 
possession of any Property after the specified delivery date 
therefor. 
 
     In the event that Lessee is obligated under this Agreement 
to surrender the Properties to Lessor or a Third Party Purchaser, 
then in either case on the applicable date Lessee shall provide 
Lessor or such Third Party Purchaser with (x) all permits, 
certificates of occupancy, governmental licenses and 
authorizations legally transferable and assignable and necessary 
to use, operate, repair, access and maintain each such Property 
for its intended purpose and (y) such manuals, permits, 
easements, licenses, rights-of-way and other rights and 
privileges in the nature of an easement as are reasonably 
necessary or desirable in connection with the use, operation, 
repair, access to or maintenance of each such Property for its 
intended purpose or otherwise as Lessor or such Third Party 
Purchaser shall reasonably request.  All assignments, licenses, 
easements, agreements and other deliveries required by clauses 
(x) and (y) of this paragraph shall be in form reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor or such Third Party Purchaser, as 
appropriate, and shall be assignable (including without 
limitation both primary assignments and assignments given in the 
nature of security) without payment of any fee, cost or other 
charge. 
 
     7.   Payments. 
 
          (a)  Basic Payments. 
 
          Lessee hereby agrees to pay Lessor Basic Payments for 
the Properties throughout the Term, in consecutive s 
installments, with each installment during the Term in an amount 
equal to the Basic Payment Factor set forth on Schedule A hereto 
multiplied by the Acquisition Cost (or, as of the date of this 
Agreement, in such dollar amounts as are set forth on Schedule 
A-1 hereto).  Each Basic Payment shall be payable in advance, on 
the first day of the Basic Payment Period to which such Basic 
Payment corresponds. 
 
          (b)  Supplemental Payments. 
 
          Lessee agrees to pay Lessor, or to whomsoever shall be 
entitled thereto as expressly provided herein, all Supplemental 
Payments promptly as the same shall become due and owing, and in 
the event of any failure on the part of Lessee to pay any such 
Supplemental Payment hereunder Lessor shall have all rights, 
powers and remedies provided for herein or by Law or equity or 
otherwise in the case of nonpayment of Basic Payments. 
 
          (c)  Method of Payment. 
 
          If the date that any Payment is due is other than a 
Business Day the Payment otherwise payable on such date shall be 
payable on the next succeeding Business Day.  All Basic Payments 
and Supplemental Payments required to be made by Lessee to Lessor 
hereunder shall be made in good funds and in United States 
dollars.  In the event of any assignment to an Assignee or 
collateral assignment pursuant to Section 14(b) hereof (if 
 
                        17 
 



 
requested at such time by Lessor), all payments which are 
assigned to such Assignee or which Lessor certifies are otherwise 
matched with an obligation of Lessor to such collateral assignee 
(whether Basic Payments, Supplemental Payments or otherwise) 
shall be paid in the same manner specified herein for payments to 
Lessor at such address as shall be designated by such Assignee or 
collateral assignee.  Time is of the essence in connection with 
the payment of Basic Payments and Supplemental Payments. 
 
     8.   Net Lease. 
 
     This Agreement is a net lease and Lessee acknowledges and 
agrees that Lessee's obligations hereunder, including without 
limitation its obligations to pay all Payments payable hereunder, 
shall be absolute and unconditional under any and all 
circumstances and shall be paid without notice or demand and 
without any abatement, reduction, diminution, setoff, defense, 
counterclaim or recoupment whatsoever, including without 
limitation any abatement, reduction, diminution, setoff, defense, 
counterclaim or recoupment due or alleged to be due to, or by 
reason of, any past, present or future Claims which Lessee may 
have against Lessor, any Assignee, any collateral assignee of 
Lessor pursuant to Section 14(b) hereof the manufacturer of  or 
contractor with respect to any item of any Property, any Part of 
any Property, or any other Person for any reason whatsoever; nor, 
except as otherwise expressly provided herein, shall this 
Agreement terminate, or the obligations of Lessee be otherwise 
affected, by reason of any defect in any item of any Property, 
any Part of any Property, the condition, design, operation or 
fitness for use thereof, any damage to, or any loss or 
destruction of, any item of any Property, any Part of any 
Property, or any Liens or rights of others with respect to any 
item of any Property, any Part of any Property, any prohibition 
or interruption of or other restriction against Lessee's use, 
operation or possession of any item of any Property, any Part of 
any Property, for any reason whatsoever, or any interference with 
such use, operation or possession by any Person or entity, or by 
reason of any failure by Lessor to perform any of its obligations 
herein contained, or by reason of any other indebtedness or 
liability, howsoever and whenever arising, or Lessor or of any 
Assignee or collateral assignee of Lessor's interests pursuant to 
Section 14(b) hereof or of Lessee to any other Person, or by 
reason of any insolvency, bankruptcy or similar proceedings by or 
against any Person or for any other reason whatsoever, whether 
similar or dissimilar to any of the foregoing, any present or 
future Law to the contrary notwithstanding; it being the 
intention of the parties hereto that the Basic Payments and 
Supplemental Payments payable by Lessee hereunder shall continue 
to be payable in all events and in the manner and at the times 
herein provided, without notice or demand, unless the obligation 
to pay the same shall be terminated pursuant to the express 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
     9.   Lessor's Title; True Lease. 
 
          (a)  Lessor's Title. 
 
          Title to the Properties shall at all times remain in 
Lessor and at no time during the Term shall title become vested 
in Lessee. 
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          (b)  True Lease. 
 
          This Agreement is a lease intended as a true lease and 
not as a lease intended as security.  The parties hereto intend 
Lessor to be treated as the owner of the Properties for all 
purposes, including without limitation for federal and state 
income Tax purposes, bankruptcy purposes, commercial Law purposes 
and real estate Law purposes.  Lessee will make no Claim nor 
assert any right to the Properties or any component thereof 
inconsistent with Lessor's ownership thereof and will make 
appropriate entries upon its books and records reflecting 
Lessor's ownership of the Properties and each component thereof. 
 
     10.  Use of the Properties; Compliance with Laws. 
 
     Lessee agrees that each Property will be used, maintained, 
occupied and operated only (a) for purposes or operations in the 
ordinary course of its business as a Permitted Facility, (b) in 
accordance with all Legal Requirements, (c) in the manner set 
forth in, and in accordance with, the terms, conditions and 
provisions of the insurance policy or policies providing the 
coverages specified in Section 17 hereof and (d) otherwise in a 
manner sufficient to preserve any warranty Claim with respect to 
such Property.  To the extent that any Legal Requirement mandates 
the licensing or certification of an operator of any operation or 
procedure at any Property, each such operator shall be duly 
licensed and currently certified and qualified.  The Properties 
will at all times be and remain in the control of Lessee except 
as Lessee's relinquishment of control is required for 
maintenance. Without Lessor's consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, no component of any Property shall be 
relocated from the location of such Property identified in the 
legal description of the Land applicable thereto in the Lease 
Supplement.  Lessee will not attach or incorporate any Part of 
any Property to or in any other item of equipment or personal 
property or to or in any real property (except the Land and/or 
Improvements identified in the Lease Supplement in which the 
associated Land is also described) in a manner that could give 
rise to the assertion of any Lien on such Part of the Property by 
reason of such attachment or the assertion of a Claim that such 
Part of the Property has become a fixture and is subject to a 
Lien in favor of a third party. 
 
     In no event shall Lessee use or operate any Property, or 
knowingly permit any Property to be used or operated, for any 
purpose for which such Property is not designed or reasonably 
suitable, or in any fashion that may reasonably subject such 
Property to any Liens, other than Permitted Liens. 
 
     11.  Maintenance and Repair. 
 
          (a)  General Maintenance Standard. 
 
          Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain 
each Property in good condition, repair and working order 
(ordinary wear and tear excepted) and in the repair and condition 
as when originally delivered to Lessor and make all necessary 
repairs thereto and replacements thereof, of every kind and 
nature whatsoever, whether interior or exterior, ordinary or 
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extraordinary, structural or nonstructural or foreseen or 
unforeseen, in each case as required by all Legal Requirements, 
the terms, conditions and provisions of the insurance policy or 
policies providing the coverages specified in Section 17 hereof 
and manufacturer's specifications and standards and on a basis 
consistent with the operation and maintenance of properties or 
equipment comparable in type and function to the applicable 
Property, such that such Property is capable of being immediately 
utilized by a third party and in compliance with standard 
industry practice. 
 
          (b)  Replacement. 
 
          If any component of any Property becomes worn out, 
lost, destroyed, damaged beyond repair or otherwise permanently 
rendered unfit for use, Lessee, at its own expense, will within a 
reasonable time replace such component with a replacement 
component which is free and clear of all Liens (other than 
Permitted Liens) and has a value, utility and useful life at 
least equal to the component replaced (assuming the component 
replaced had been maintained and repaired in accordance with the 
requirements of this Lease) (each of the foregoing, a 
"Replacement").  All Replacements shall immediately become the 
property of (and title thereto shall vest in) Lessor and shall be 
deemed incorporated in such Property and subject to the terms of 
this Lease as if originally leased hereunder. 
 
          (c)  Additional Appraisals. 
 
          Lessee shall cause to be delivered to Lessor one or 
more Appraisals (or reappraisals of Properties) subsequent to the 
date hereof from time to time as Lessor may request to the extent 
(i) Lessor is required pursuant to any applicable Legal 
Requirement to obtain such Appraisals (or reappraisals), (ii) 
upon the occurrence of any Event of Default or (iii) Lessor, in 
its reasonable discretion, deems (A) that there has been a 
material adverse change in the condition of Guarantor (financial 
or otherwise) as reflected in the financial statements of 
Guarantor delivered pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Guaranty or 
(B) that the Properties have not been maintained in compliance 
with Section 11(a) hereof; provided, however, that Lessor shall 
bear the expense of any appraisal or reappraisal delivered 
pursuant to subsection (i) of this paragraph (c) and Lessee shall 
bear the expense of any appraisal or reappraisal delivered 
pursuant to subsection (ii) or (iii) of this paragraph (c). 
 
 
 
          (d)  No Lessor Maintenance Obligation. 
 
          Lessor shall under no circumstances be required to 
build any improvements or install any equipment on any Property, 
make any repairs, replacements, alterations or renewals of any 
nature or description to any Property, make any expenditure 
whatsoever in connection with this Agreement or maintain any 
Property in any way.  Lessor shall not be required to maintain, 
repair or rebuild all or any Part of any Property, and Lessee 
waives the right to (i) require Lessor to maintain, repair, or 
rebuild all or any Part of any Property, or (ii) make repairs at 
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the expense of Lessor pursuant to any Legal Requirement, the 
terms, conditions and provisions of the insurance policy or 
policies providing the coverages specified in Section 17 hereof, 
any contract, agreement, covenant, condition or restriction at 
any time in effect. 
 
     12.  Required Alterations; Voluntary Enhancements. 
 
     In case any Part of any Property is required to be altered 
or modified, or any addition is required with respect to any 
Property in order to comply with any Legal Requirement (each of 
the foregoing may be referred to as a "Required Alteration"), 
Lessee agrees to make such Required Alteration at its own 
expense.  Such Required Alteration shall immediately be and 
become the property of Lessor and subject to the terms of this 
Agreement.  Lessee agrees that, within 30 days after the close of 
any calendar quarter in which Lessee has made any material 
Required Alteration, Lessee will give written notice thereof to 
Lessor describing, in reasonable detail, the Required Alteration 
and specifying the cost thereof and the date or dates when made.  
All Replacements shall be considered accessions to the applicable 
Property and shall immediately, without further act, be and 
become the property of Lessor and Part of such Property.  At the 
time title to any Replacement has become vested in Lessor 
pursuant to the provisions of this Section 12, title to such Part 
replaced thereby shall thereupon vest in Lessee; provided, 
however, that in no event shall any Part which cannot be removed 
without causing damage to any Property vest in Lessee.  Lessee 
may, without the prior written consent of Lessor, affix, install 
or make any improvement or addition thereto other than a Required 
Alteration or Replacement (each of the foregoing may be referred 
to as a "Voluntary Enhancement"); provided, that a Voluntary 
Enhancement may only be made to a Property if such Voluntary 
Enhancement does not reduce the value, utility or useful life of 
such Property.  Voluntary Enhancements shall be considered 
accessions to the applicable Property and shall immediately 
without further act, be and become the property of Lessor and 
Part of the applicable Property. 
 
     13.  Inspection; Reports; Change of Chief Executive Office 
and/or Name. 
 
          (a)  Inspection. 
 
          Lessor and any agent, designee or other Person acting 
at Lessor's direction (and after receiving the consent of Lessee 
as to such agent, designee or other Person, such consent not to 
be unreasonably withheld) shall have the right on any Business 
Day during normal business hours and upon reasonable notice to 
Lessee to inspect (i) the Properties and (ii) Lessee's records 
with respect thereto; provided, however, unless a Default or 
Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, neither 
Lessor nor any other such Person acting on Lessor's behalf will 
conduct any such inspection which is reasonably likely to disrupt 
Lessee's business operations.  Unless a Default or Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing, Lessor and any 
other such Person acting on Lessor's behalf shall only conduct 
such inspections, or cause such inspections to be conducted, as 
Lessor or any other such Person acting on Lessor's behalf 
reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to confirm the 
existence and proper maintenance of the Properties and to 
otherwise protect the interests of Lessor regarding the 
Properties.  Upon receipt of notice from Lessor or any other such 
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Person acting on Lessor's behalf requesting to inspect one or 
more Properties, Lessee shall make (with reasonable promptness) 
all necessary arrangements to facilitate the inspection. 
 
          (b)  Change of Chief Executive Office and/or Name. 
 
          Lessee shall give Lessor no less than thirty (30) days 
prior written notice of any change by Lessee of (i) its chief 
executive office from the address referenced therefor in this 
Agreement and/or (ii) its name.  Lessee shall stipulate the new 
address and/or its new name in such notice. 
 
     14.  Sublease; Assignment; Consolidation and Merger. 
 
          (a)  By Lessee. 
 
          SUBJECT TO THE PROVISO TO THIS SECTION 14(a) AND 
SECTION 14(c) HEREOF, LESSEE WILL NOT, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN 
CONSENT OF LESSOR (WHICH CONSENT SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY 
WITHHELD), SUBLEASE, ASSIGN, TRANSFER OR ENCUMBER ITS RIGHTS OR 
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER AND ANY ATTEMPTED SUBLEASE, ASSIGNMENT, 
TRANSFER OR ENCUMBRANCE BY LESSEE WITHOUT SUCH LESSOR CONSENT 
SHALL BE NULL AND VOID;  PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT LESSEE MAY, 
WITHOUT LESSOR'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT, SUBLEASE TO ANY AFFILIATE 
OF LESSEE ALL OR ANY OF THE PROPERTIES THEN SUBJECT TO THIS 
AGREEMENT SO LONG AS SUCH SUBLEASE SHALL BE A PERMITTED SUBLEASE. 
 
          In the event Lessor provides its written consent to a 
sublease to any Person that is not an Affiliate of Lessee, such 
sublease must be a Permitted Sublease, no such sublease by Lessee 
will reduce any of the obligations of Lessee hereunder or the 
rights of Lessor hereunder, and all of the obligations of Lessee 
hereunder shall be and remain primary and shall continue in full 
force and effect as the obligations of a principal and not of a 
guarantor or surety.  Lessee shall furnish to Lessor not later 
than the effective date of such sublease (i) new insurance 
certificates from Lessee's insurance broker in form and substance 
satisfactory to Lessor, indicating compliance with the provisions 
of this Section 14(a) and (ii) an officer's certificate of Lessee 
with the name and principal place of business of such sublessee.  
Lessee shall, and shall cause such sublessee to, execute and 
deliver such instruments to the appropriate Person for filing and 
to deliver copies of the same to Lessor (including without 
limitation sublease agreements and Uniform Commercial Code 
financing statements) as may be requested by Lessor in connection 
with any such sublease. 
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          (b)  By Lessor. 
 
          Without Lessee's prior consent, Lessor may at any time 
(i) assign, sell or transfer, in whole or in part, Lessor's 
right, title and interest in, to and under this Agreement, the 
other Transaction Documents and the other related documents, 
instruments and agreements, including without limitation the 
right to receive any or all Payments payable under this 
Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the other related 
documents, instruments and agreements with respect to the 
Properties, to any Affiliate of Lessor and (ii) sell or transfer 
all of Lessor's right, title and interest in and to the 
Properties to any Affiliate of Lessor.  Except as otherwise 
provided in the preceding sentence, with Lessee's prior written 
consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld), 
Lessor may at any time (i) assign, sell or transfer, in whole or 
in part, Lessor's right, title and interest in, to and under this 
Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the other related 
documents, instruments and agreements, including without 
limitation the right to receive any or all Payments payable under 
this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents and the other 
related documents, instruments and agreements with respect to the 
Properties, to any Person, and (ii) sell or transfer all of 
Lessor's right, title and interest in and to the Properties to 
any Person.  Each such Assignee shall have all of Lessor's right, 
title and interest hereunder to the extent that the same relate 
to the interest of the Assignee covered by the assignment, 
including without limitation:  the right to receive such 
Assignee's portion of the Basic Payments payable for the 
Properties for all Basic Payment Periods commencing on or after 
the date of such assignment; the right to receive such Assignee's 
portion of the Supplemental Payments which are payable as a 
result of acts or events which occur on or after the date of such 
assignment; and the right to enforce, either in such Assignee's 
name or in Lessor's name, but without cost or expense to Lessor, 
all of Lessor's rights hereunder assigned to such Assignee.  Such 
Assignee may re-assign all or a portion of such right, title and 
interest, provided that any such re-assignment shall be subject 
to the same terms and conditions set forth in this Section.  Any 
assignment or re-assignment shall be subject to Lessee's rights 
hereunder so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing hereunder.  Lessee shall be under no obligation to any 
Assignee except upon written notice of such assignment from 
Lessor.  Upon written notice from Lessor to Lessee of such 
assignment, Lessee agrees to pay the Basic Payments and 
Supplemental Payments to the Assignee, as the case may be, in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement supplemented by the 
instructions specified in such notice, to give all notices which 
are required or permitted to be given by Lessee to Lessor 
hereunder to the Person(s) specified to receive the same in such 
written notice of assignment and to otherwise comply with all 
reasonable notices, directions and demands which may be given by 
such Assignee in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  Lessee agrees to deliver to any Assignee an 
acknowledgment of the assignment [together with an opinion of 
counsel to Lessee regarding the validity and enforceability of 
this Agreement against Lessee, incumbency certificate of Lessee 
and such authorizing resolutions as such Assignee may reasonably 
request; provided, however, all out of pocket fees and expenses 
incurred by Lessee in connection with the production or delivery 
of the foregoing documents referenced previously in this sentence 
shall be for the account of Lessor or such Assignee, as agreed to 
by such parties. 
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          In addition to the foregoing, with respect to any 
subsequent leveraging of the transaction evidenced by the 
Transaction Documents, Lessor at any time and from time to time 
may (A) without Lessee's consent, collaterally assign, grant a 
security interest in and/or mortgage to any Affiliate of Lessor 
in whole or in part Lessor's right, title and interest in, to and 
under the documents, rights, Properties and other items 
referenced above in Section 14(b)(i) and (b)(ii) and (B) with 
Lessee's prior written consent (which consents shall not be 
unreasonably withheld), collaterally assign, grant a security 
interest in and/or mortgage to any other Person in whole or in 
part Lessor's right, title and interest in, to and under the 
documents, rights, Properties and other items referenced above in 
Section 14(b)(i) and (b)(ii).  Lessee agrees to observe the terms 
and conditions of the documentation regarding any such collateral 
assignment, grant of a security interest and/or mortgage (to the 
extent the right, title and interest of Lessee under the 
Transaction Documents and with respect to the Properties are not 
materially and adversely affected), including without limitation 
the provision of notices to any collateral assignee or secured 
party and (regarding the insurance coverages required pursuant to 
Section 17 hereof) the addition of such collateral assignee or 
secured party as a loss payee and additional insured as 
reasonably requested by Lessor and such collateral assignee. 
 
          (c)  Consolidation and Merger by Lessee. 
 
          Lessee shall not consolidate with or merge into any 
other corporation or convey, transfer or lease substantially all 
of its assets as an entirety to any Person unless: 
 
               (i)  Lessee is the surviving entity of any such 
consolidation or merger and the requirements of Sections 
14(c)(ii)(B)-(D) are satisfied; or  
 
               (ii) (A) the corporation formed by such 
consolidation or into which Lessee is merged, or the Person which 
acquires by conveyance, transfer or lease substantially all of 
the assets of Lessee as an entirety, shall be a solvent 
corporation organized and existing under the Laws of the United 
States of America or any state or the District of Columbia and 
shall execute and deliver to Lessor an agreement containing an 
effective assumption by such successor, transferee or lessee 
corporation of the due and punctual performance and observance of 
each covenant and condition of this Agreement; provided any such 
consolidation, merger, acquisition by conveyance, transfer or 
lease of substantially all of its assets shall not release Lessee 
from its obligations under this Agreement, which obligations 
shall at all times remain primary and direct;  
 
                    (B)  immediately prior to and after giving 
effect to such transaction, no Default or Event of Default shall 
have occurred and be continuing; 
 
                    (C)  immediately after giving effect to such 
transaction, the consolidated tangible net worth (calculated on 
the same basis as the Consolidated Tangible Net Worth of Lessee) 
of the corporation formed by such consolidation or into which 
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Lessee is merged or the Person which acquired by conveyance, 
transfer or lease substantially all the assets of Lessee as an 
entirety, as the case may be, shall not be less than 100% of the 
Consolidated Tangible Net Worth of Lessee as reflected in 
Lessee's then most recent audited financial statements furnished 
by Lessee pursuant hereto prior to such consolidation, merger, 
conveyance, transfer or lease; and 
 
                    (D)  Lessee shall have delivered to Lessor a 
certificate signed by the President, any Vice President, its 
Chief Financial Officer, its Treasurer or any other officer 
reasonably suitable to Lessor, satisfactory in form and substance 
to Lessor, stating that such consolidation, merger, conveyance, 
transfer or lease and the assumption agreement mentioned in 
clause 14(c)(ii)(A) above comply with this Section 14(c) and that 
all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such 
transaction have been complied with. 
 
          Upon any consolidation or merger in which Lessee is not 
the surviving corporation, or any conveyance, transfer or lease 
of substantially all the assets of Lessee as an entirety in 
accordance with this Section 14(c), the successor corporation 
formed by such consolidation or into which Lessee is merged or to 
which such conveyance, transfer or lease is made shall succeed 
to, and be substituted for (but without release of Lessee to the 
extent the provisions to clause 14(c)(ii)(A) above is 
applicable), and may exercise every right and power of, Lessee 
under this Agreement with the same effect as if such successor 
corporation had been named as a Lessee herein. 
 
      
     15.  Liens. 
 
     Lessee will not directly or indirectly create, incur, assume 
or suffer to exist any Lien on or with respect to any Property or 
Lessor's title thereof, except for Permitted Liens.  Lessee, at 
its own expense, will promptly pay, satisfy and otherwise take 
such actions as may be necessary to keep each Property free and 
clear of, and to duly discharge or eliminate or bond in a manner 
satisfactory to Lessor, any such Lien not excepted above if the 
same shall arise at any time.  Lessee will notify Lessor in 
writing promptly upon becoming aware of any Tax or Lien (other 
than any Permitted Lien) that shall attach to any Property and of 
the full particulars thereof.  Lessee shall pay, and save Lessor 
harmless against, any and all losses, judgments, decrees and 
costs (including without limitation all reasonable attorneys' 
fees and expenses) in connection with any Permitted Contest and 
shall promptly after the final settlement, compromise or 
determination (including without limitation any appeals) of such 
contest, fully pay and discharge the amounts which shall be 
levied, assessed, charged or imposed or be determined to be 
payable therein or in connection therewith, together with all 
penalties, fines, interests, costs and expenses thereof or in 
connection therewith, and perform all acts, the performance of 
which shall be ordered or decreed as a result thereof. 
 
     Lessor will not directly or indirectly create, incur, assume 
or suffer to exist any Lessor's Liens on or with respect to any 
Property attributable to it, and Lessor agrees that it will, at 
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its own cost and expense, take such action as may be necessary to 
duly discharge and satisfy in full any such Lessor's Liens (by 
bonding or otherwise, so long as the Lessee's operation and use 
of such Property are not impaired); provided, that Lessor may 
contest any such Lessor's Lien in good faith by appropriate 
proceedings so long as such proceedings do not involve any 
material danger of the sale, forfeiture or loss of any Property 
or any interest therein and do not interfere with the use, 
operation, or possession of any Property by the Lessee under this 
Agreement; provided, further, that the following Liens shall be 
permitted pursuant to this Agreement and the Lessor shall have no 
duty to discharge and/or satisfy in full such Liens: (a) any 
assignment, conveyance or other transfer by Lessor to any 
Affiliate of Lessor of any right, title or interest of Lessor in 
and to any Property or any Transaction Document; (b) any 
collateral assignment, security interest or other similar Lien 
granted by Lessor or an Affiliate of Lessor to an additional 
Affiliate of Lessor respecting any right, title or interest of 
such grantor in and to any Property or any Transaction Document; 
and/or (c) any assignment conveyance or other transfer by Lessor 
in accordance with the terms of Section 14(b) of this Agreement. 
 
 
     16.  Loss, Damage or Destruction. 
 
          (a)  Risk of Loss, Damage or Destruction. 
 
          Lessee hereby assumes all risk of loss, damage, theft, 
taking, destruction, confiscation, requisition or commandeering, 
partial or complete, of or to the Properties, however caused or 
occasioned, such risk to be borne by Lessee with respect to the 
Properties from the Acceptance Date, and continuing until the 
Properties have been surrendered to Lessor or one ore more Third 
Party Purchasers, as the case may be, in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 6 hereof or have been purchased by Lessee 
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 5(c) or 29 hereof.  
Lessee agrees that no occurrence specified in the preceding 
sentence shall impair, in whole or in part, any obligation of 
Lessee under this Agreement, including without limitation the 
obligation to make Payments. 
 
          (b)  Casualty and Condemnation with Respect to the 
Properties. 
 
          (i)  Upon the occurrence of any Casualty or 
Condemnation with respect to any Property during the Term, Lessee 
shall forthwith (and in any event within 10 days after such 
occurrence) give Lessor written notice of such Casualty or 
Condemnation and of its election either to restore such Property 
pursuant to Section 16(b)(ii) hereof and otherwise consistent 
with the provisions of this Section 16(b) hereof or to pay the 
Casualty Loss Value for such Property and terminate this 
Agreement with respect to such Property pursuant to Section 
16(b)(iii) hereof and otherwise consistent with the provisions of 
this Section 16(b), provided, that Lessee shall not have the 
right to elect restoration of such Property if a Default or Event 
of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and in such 
circumstance, Lessee shall be deemed to have elected the option 
set forth in Section 16(b)(iii) hereof. 
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          (ii) If pursuant to this Section 16(b) this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect following a Casualty or 
Condemnation with respect to the affected Property, Lessee shall, 
at its sole cost and expense and using, if available, the 
proceeds of any award, compensation or insurance with respect to 
such Casualty or Condemnation (including without limitation any 
such award, compensation or insurance which has been received by 
Lessor and which should be turned over to Lessee pursuant to the 
terms of the Transaction Documents, and if not available or 
sufficient, using its own funds), promptly and diligently repair 
any damage to the applicable Property caused by such Casualty or 
Condemnation in conformity with the requirements of Sections 11 
and 12 hereof, using the as-built plans and specifications or 
manufacturer's specifications for the applicable Property (as 
modified to give effect to any subsequent Modifications, any 
Condemnation affecting the applicable Property and all applicable 
Legal Requirements), so as to restore the applicable Property to 
the same remaining economic value, useful life, utility, 
condition, operation and function as existed immediately prior to 
such Casualty or Condemnation (assuming all maintenance and 
repair standards have been satisfied).  In such event, title to 
the applicable Property shall remain with Lessor. 
 
          (iii)     On the Casualty Loss Value Date next 
following the occurrence of such Casualty or Condemnation (unless 
such Casualty or Condemnation occurs within 20 days of the next 
occurring Casualty Loss Value Date, in which case the payments 
referenced below shall be made on the second following Casualty 
Loss Value Date after the Casualty or Condemnation), Lessee shall 
pay Lessor the sum of (A) the Casualty Loss Value (computed as of 
the Casualty Loss Value Date next following or second following 
the Casualty or Condemnation, as the case may be), plus (B) all 
accrued and unpaid Basic Payments owing for all Basic Payment 
Periods prior to the Casualty Loss Value Date as of which the 
Casualty Loss Value is to be paid pursuant to the foregoing 
subsection(A), plus (C) all Supplemental Payments then due and 
owing.  Upon payment in full of amounts specified in clauses (A) 
through (C) of the preceding sentence, (X) the obligation of 
Lessee to pay Basic Payments hereunder, with respect to such 
Property for all Basic Payment Periods commencing after the 
occurrence of such Casualty or Condemnation shall terminate, (Y) 
the Term shall end with respect to such Property, and (Z) on 
Lessor's receipt and verification of payment of the 
above-referenced amounts, Lessor shall, at Lessee's cost and 
expense, execute and deliver special warranty deeds and special 
warranty bills of sale, as appropriate, in order to convey to 
Lessee the Property with respect to which the Casualty or 
Condemnation occurred on an as-is, where-is and with all faults 
basis, without recourse or representation or warranty of any kind 
except as to the absence of Liens created by or through Lessor. 
 
          (iv) Subject to the provisions of Sections 16(a) and 
(b) hereof and prior to the occurrence and continuation of a 
Default or an Event of Default, Lessee shall be entitled to 
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receive (and Lessor hereby irrevocably assigns to Lessee all of 
Lessor's right, title and interest in) any award, compensation or 
insurance proceeds under Section 17(b) hereof to which Lessee or 
Lessor may become entitled by reason of their respective 
interests in any Property to the extent (A) all or a portion of 
such Property is damaged or destroyed in whole or in part by a 
Casualty or (B) the use, access, occupancy, easement rights or 
title to such Property or any Part thereof is the subject of a 
Condemnation; provided, however, if a Default or an Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing (regardless of 
whether Lessee elects to pay the amounts referenced in Section 
16(b)(iii) hereof), then such award, compensation or insurance 
proceeds shall be paid directly to Lessor or, if received by 
Lessee, shall be held in trust for Lessor, and shall be paid over 
by Lessee to Lessor and held in accordance with the terms of this 
Section 16(b)(iv).  All amounts held by Lessor hereunder on 
account of any award, compensation or insurance proceeds either 
paid directly to Lessor or turned over to Lessor shall be held as 
security for the performance of Lessee's obligations hereunder 
and under the other Transaction Documents.  To the extent Lessor 
commences the exercise of remedies upon the occurrence of an 
Event of Default, such award, compensation or insurance proceeds 
may be applied, in Lessor's discretion, to any amounts 
outstanding with respect to such Event of Default; provided, to 
the extent Lessee shall have paid all amounts due and owing 
pursuant to this Agreement or any other Transaction Document, and 
any amounts received as an award, compensation or insurance 
proceeds shall remain, such amounts shall be paid to or returned 
to the Lessee. 
 
          (v)  Lessee may appear in any proceeding or action to 
negotiate, prosecute, adjust or appeal any Claim for any award, 
compensation or insurance payment on account of any such Casualty 
or Condemnation and shall pay all expenses thereof.  At Lessee's 
reasonable request, and at Lessee's sole cost and expense, Lessor 
shall participate in any such proceeding, action, negotiation, 
prosecution or adjustment.  Lessor and Lessee agree that this 
Agreement shall control the rights of Lessor and Lessee in and to 
any such award, compensation or insurance payment. 
 
          (vi) In the event a Casualty or a Condemnation of a 
Property or any interest therein occurs where damage to the 
affected Property is estimated to equal or exceed $500,000, 
Lessee shall give notice thereof promptly to Lessor after Lessee 
learns of such Casualty or Condemnation. 
 
          (vii)     Except as referenced in Section 16(b)(iii) 
and (vi) hereof, in no event shall a Casualty or Condemnation 
affect Lessee's obligations to make Payments pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 
          (viii)    Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set 
forth in this Agreement, if during the Term with respect to a 
Property a Casualty occurs with respect to such Property or 
Lessee receives notice of a Condemnation with respect to such 
 
                           28 
 



 
Property, and (A) following such Casualty or Condemnation, there 
is no reasonable expectation that the applicable Property can be 
restored, repaired or replaced on or before the day 180 days 
prior to the Expiration Date or the date nine months after the 
occurrence of such Casualty or Condemnation to the same remaining 
economic value, useful life, utility, condition, operation and 
function as existed immediately prior to such Casualty or 
Condemnation (assuming all maintenance and repair standards have 
been satisfied), then this Agreement shall terminate with respect 
to the applicable Property in accordance with Section 16(b)(iii) 
hereof on the next occurring Casualty Loss Value Date or (B) such 
Property is not in fact restored, repaired or replaced as 
referenced in the foregoing subsection (A) on or before the day 
180 days prior to the Expiration Date or the date nine months 
after the occurrence of such Casualty or Condemnation, then this 
Agreement shall terminate with respect to the applicable Property 
in accordance with Section 16(b)(iii) hereof on the next 
occurring Casualty Loss Value Date. 
 
          (c)  Environmental Matters. 
 
          Within 10 days of Lessee gaining actual knowledge of 
the presence of Hazardous Substances in any portion of any 
Property or Properties in concentrations and conditions that 
constitute an Environmental Violation, Lessee shall notify Lessor 
in writing of such condition. Not later than 60 days after Lessee 
gains actual knowledge of such Environmental Violation, Lessee 
shall deliver to Lessor a termination notice or a remediation 
notice with respect to the applicable Property or Properties; 
provided, that Lessee shall not have the right to give a 
remediation notice if a Default or Event of Default shall have 
occurred and be continuing and in such circumstance, Lessee shall 
be deemed to have given a termination notice.   
 
          If Lessee delivers a termination notice, Lessee shall 
(on the Casualty Loss Value Date next occurring after the giving 
of such notice) pay Lessor the sum of (A) the Casualty Loss Value 
for such affected Property or Properties, plus (B) all accrued 
and unpaid Basic Payments, plus (C) all Supplemental Payments 
then due and owing.   
 
          If Lessee delivers a remediation notice, Lessee shall 
(at Lessee's sole cost and expense) promptly and diligently 
undertake and complete any response, clean up, remedial or other 
action (including without limitation the pursuit by Lessee of 
appropriate action against any off-site or third party source for 
contamination) necessary to remove, cleanup or remediate the 
Environmental Violation in accordance with all Environmental 
Laws.  Any such undertaking shall be timely completed in 
accordance with prudent industry standards.  If Lessee delivers a 
remediation notice as referenced above, Lessee shall, upon 
completion of remedial action by Lessee, cause to be prepared by 
a reputable environmental consultant acceptable to Lessor a 
report describing the Environmental Violation and the actions 
taken by Lessee (or its agents) in response to such Environmental 
Violation, and a statement by the consultant that the 
Environmental Violation has been remedied in full compliance with 
applicable Environmental Law. 
 
                                29 
 



 
          (d)  Application of Payments Not Relating to a 
Casualty, Condemnation or Environmental Violation. 
 
          Any payments (including without limitation any award, 
compensation or insurance proceeds) received at any time by 
Lessor or Lessee from any insurer, governmental authority or 
other party with respect to any condemnation, confiscation, theft 
or seizure of, or requisition of title to or use of, or loss or 
damage to, any Property not constituting a Casualty, Condemnation 
or Environmental Violation, will be applied directly in payment 
of repairs or for replacement of property in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 11 and 12 hereof, if not already paid by 
Lessee, or if already paid by Lessee and if no Default or Event 
of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, shall be 
applied to reimburse Lessee for such payment, and any balance 
remaining after compliance with said Sections 11 and 12 with 
respect to such loss or damage shall be paid to or retained by 
Lessor.  If a Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing, all amounts referenced in this Section 16(d) shall 
be paid to or retained by Lessor in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 16(b)(iv). 
 
     17.  Insurance. 
 
          (a)  Public Liability and Workers' Compensation 
Insurance. 
 
          During the Term for each Property, Lessee shall procure 
and carry, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, commercial general 
liability and umbrella liability insurance for Claims for 
injuries or death sustained by persons or damage to property 
while on such Property or the premises where the Equipment is 
located and such other public liability coverages as are then 
customarily carried by similarly situated companies conducting 
business similar to that conducted by Lessee.  Such insurance 
shall be on terms and in amounts that are no less favorable than 
insurance maintained by Lessee with respect to similar properties 
and equipment that it owns and are then carried by similarly 
situated companies conducting business similar to that conducted 
by Lessee, and in no event shall have a minimum combined single 
limit per occurrence coverage (i) for commercial general 
aggregate liability of less than $2,000,000 and (ii) for umbrella 
liability of less than $25,000,000.  The policies shall name 
Lessee as the insured and shall be endorsed to name Lessor as an 
additional insured.  The policies shall also specifically provide 
that such policies shall be considered primary insurance which 
shall apply to any loss or Claim before any contribution by any 
insurance which Lessor may have in force. During the Term, Lessee 
shall, in the operation and use of each Property, maintain 
workers' compensation insurance consistent with that carried by 
similarly situated companies conducting business similar to that 
conducted by Lessee and containing minimum liability limits of no 
less than $1,000,000.  In the operation of each Property, Lessee 
shall comply with workers' compensation Laws applicable to 
Lessee, and protect Lessor against any liability under such Laws. 
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          (b)  Permanent Hazard and Other Insurance. 
 
          (i)  During the Term for each Property, Lessee shall 
keep such Property insured against all risk of physical loss or 
damage by fire and other risks and shall maintain builders' risk 
insurance during construction of any Improvements or 
Modifications in each case in amounts no less than the greater of 
the Casualty Loss Value or replacement value of such applicable 
Property from time to time and on terms that are no less 
favorable than insurance covering other similar properties owned 
by Lessee and are then carried by similarly situated companies 
conducting business similar to that conducted by Lessee.  The 
policies shall name Lessee as the insured and shall be endorsed 
to name Lessor as a named additional insured and loss payee to 
the extent of its interest; provided, so long as no Default or 
Event of Default exists, any loss payable under the insurance 
policies required by this Section will be paid to Lessee.  If a 
Default or an Event of Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing all amounts referenced in this Section 17(b) shall be 
paid to or retained by Lessor in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 16(b)(iv). 
 
               (ii) If, during the Term with respect to a 
Property the area in which such Property is located is designated 
a "flood-prone" area pursuant to the Flood Disaster Protection 
Act of 1973, or any amendments or supplements thereto or is in a 
zone designated A or V, then Lessee shall comply with the 
National Flood Insurance Program as set forth in the Flood 
Disaster Protection Act of 1973.  In addition, Lessee will fully 
comply with the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Act 
of 1968 and the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as each 
may be amended from time to time, and with any other Legal 
Requirement, concerning flood insurance to the extent that it 
applies to any such Property. 
 
               (iii)     In addition to the insurance coverages 
referenced above, Lessee shall maintain such other insurance with 
respect to the Properties in such amounts and against such 
insurable hazards as is usually carried by Persons in the same 
industry as Lessee in the same general region, but any loss of 
the type customarily covered by the policies described in 
Sections 17(a) and (b)(i and ii), whether actually covered in 
whole or in part by such policies, shall be the responsibility of 
Lessee and the absence of such coverage shall not relieve Lessee 
from any of its obligations under any of the documents or 
agreements related to the Overall Transaction. 
 
          (c)  Additional Provisions Regarding Insurance Coverage. 
 
               (i)  As of the date of this Lease and annually 
thereafter during the Term, Lessee shall furnish Lessor with 
certificates prepared by the insurers or insurance broker of 
Lessee showing the insurance required under this Section 17 to be 
in effect, naming (to the extent of its interests) Lessor as an 
additional insured and loss payee and evidencing the other 
requirements of this Section 17.  In addition, Lessee shall cause 
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a letter (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to 
Lessor) prepared by the insurers or the insurance broker of 
Lessee to be delivered at each time an insurance certificate is 
required hereunder stating that the insurance coverages which 
Lessee has in effect regarding the Properties satisfy the 
requirements of this Agreement.  Any insurance policies carried 
in accordance with this Section 17 shall be subject only to (A) 
exclusions of the sort existing in the insurance policies in 
effect on the Acceptance Date and (B) deductible amounts and/or 
retentions not in excess of $1,000,000.  All such insurance shall 
be at the cost and expense of Lessee and provided by nationally 
recognized, financially sound insurance companies. Lessee shall 
cause such certificates to include a provision for 30 days' 
advance written notice by the insurer to Lessor in the event of 
cancellation or material alteration of such insurance.  If an 
Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and Lessor so 
requests, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor copies of all insurance 
policies required by this Section 17. 
 
               (ii) Lessee agrees that the insurance policy or 
policies required by this Section 17 shall include an appropriate 
clause pursuant to which each such policy shall (A) provide that 
it will not be invalidated (I) should Lessee or any contractor, 
as the case may be, waive, at any time, any or all rights of 
recovery against any party for losses covered by any such policy, 
(II) due to any breach of warranty, fraud, action, inaction or 
misrepresentation by Lessee or any Person acting on behalf of 
Lessee, (III) due to any foreclosure or other proceeding or 
notice of sale relating to the Properties or (IV) due to the use 
of any Property for purposes more hazardous than permitted by the 
terms of any such policy, (B) include effective waivers by the 
insurer of all Claims for insurance premiums or commissions or 
(if any such policy provides for the payment thereof) additional 
premiums or assessments against Lessor, (C) waive any right of 
subrogation of the insurers against Lessor and waive any right of 
the insurers to any setoff or counterclaim or any other 
deduction, whether by attachment or otherwise, in respect of any 
liability of Lessor, (D) provide that the whole or any part of 
the right, title and interest of Lessor or Lessee therein may be 
assigned and (E) be reasonably satisfactory to Lessor in all 
other material respects.  Lessee hereby waives any and all such 
rights against Lessor to the extent of payments made to any such 
Person under any such policy. 
 
               (iii)     Neither Lessor nor Lessee shall carry 
separate insurance concurrent in kind or form or contributing in 
the event of loss with any insurance required under this Section 
17, except that Lessor may carry separate liability insurance at 
Lessor's sole cost so long as (A) Lessee's insurance is 
designated as primary and in no event excess or contributory to 
any insurance Lessor may have in force which would apply to a 
loss covered under Lessee's policy and (B) each such insurance 
policy will not cause Lessee's insurance required under this 
Section 17 to be subject to a coinsurance exception of any kind. 
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               (iv) Lessee shall pay as they become due all 
premiums for the insurance required by this Section 17, shall 
renew or replace each policy prior to the expiration date thereof 
or otherwise maintain the coverage required by such Sections 
without any lapse in coverage. 
 
     18A. General Tax Indemnity. 
 
          Lessee agrees to pay, and shall indemnify and hold 
harmless each Indemnified Person on demand on an After Tax Basis 
for all Taxes and other governmental charges or withholdings paid 
or payable by, or assessed against, such Indemnified Person, 
including but not limited to federal, state, county and municipal 
fees and Taxes, ad valorem, sales, use, value added, leasing, 
excise, stamp and documentary Taxes (other than federal and state 
Taxes based on Lessor's net income and corporate franchise 
taxes), and all related penalties, fines and interest charges in 
connection with (a) the Properties, the financing, refinancing, 
purchase, ordering, acquisition, acceptance, rejection, 
ownership, possession, design, construction, installation, 
refurbishment, development, delivery, acceptance, nondelivery, 
leasing, subleasing, possession, use, operation, maintenance 
repair, modification, condition, sale, return, repossession 
(whether by summary proceedings or otherwise), destruction, 
return or any other disposition of any Property or any Part 
thereof, including without limitation the acquisition, holding or 
disposition of any interest in any Property, lease or agreement 
comprising a portion thereof until the return pursuant to the 
terms of the Transaction Documents or other termination of such 
Transaction Documents, (b) the payment or receipt of Rent or 
other charges under any Lease Supplement or (c) such Taxes or 
other liabilities otherwise arising in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.  Lessee 
shall timely pay or cause to be paid all Taxes directly to the 
applicable taxing authorities and shall timely file all reports, 
returns and filings required in connection therewith; provided, 
however, Lessee shall deliver to the appropriate Indemnified 
Person any properly completed report, return or other filing 
required in connection with any Taxes for which the signature of 
such Indemnified Person is required, such delivery to be made 
within a reasonable period prior to the due date of the 
applicable report, return or filing.  Upon an Indemnified 
Person's request, Lessee will promptly furnish to such 
Indemnified Person information as the Indemnified Person shall 
require in connection with the preparation, filing and payment of 
all returns relating to such Taxes. 
 
          All of the indemnities contained in this Section 18A 
shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the 
expiration or other termination of the Term and are expressly 
made for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each 
Indemnified Person. 
 
     18B. Special Tax Indemnity. 
 
As of the time of the execution of this Agreement: 
 
          (a)  Assumptions. 
 
          Lessor has made the following assumptions regarding the 
characterization of this Agreement for federal and state income 
Tax purposes (the "Tax Assumptions"):  (i) Lessor will be treated 
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as the purchaser, owner and lessor of the Properties; (ii) the 
Properties will be treated as placed in service on the date the 
Lease Supplement therefor is delivered, (iii) Lessor's basis in 
the Properties will be equal to the total cost to Lessor of the 
Properties as reflected in the applicable Lease Supplement 
(including without limitation, Impositions and Taxes paid in 
connection therewith, freight and delivery charges, if any, and 
installation charges), and such cost shall be allocated among the 
Land, Improvements, Fixtures and Equipment as set forth on the 
applicable Lease Supplement; (iv) for federal and state Tax 
purposes, Lessor will be entitled to claim depreciation 
deductions with respect to 100% of the total actual cost 
allocated among the categories of the Properties (excluding any 
cost allocated to Land) computed on the basis set forth in the 
applicable Lease Supplement; (v) the only amounts that Lessor 
will be required to include in gross income with respect to this 
Agreement will be (A) Basic Payments when and as due under this 
Agreement, (B) payments as a consequence of a sale or other 
disposition of the Properties or a portion thereof, and (C) any 
indemnity pursuant to this Section 18B; (vi) all items of income 
and expense will be treated on an accrual basis and as derived 
from or allocable to sources within the United States; (vii) 
Lessor will be subject to federal income tax at the rate of 35% 
and state income tax at the rate of 0% (collectively, the 
"Effective Tax Rate"); (viii) Lessor is an accrual method 
taxpayer, has a taxable year ending December 31 and will have a 
full first taxable year; (ix) Lessor will be able to fully use 
the depreciation deductions described in clause (iv) above to 
offset income that would otherwise have been subject to income 
tax at the Effective Rate; (x) Lessor will not be subject to a 
minimum tax or tax measured by items of tax preference; (xi) no 
portion of the depreciation deductions will be recaptured 
pursuant to Section 1245 or Section 1250 of the Code or otherwise 
recaptured thereunder; and (xii) the Lease will not be treated as 
a "disqualified leaseback or long-term agreement" as such term is 
defined for purposes of Section 467 of the Code. 
 
          (b)  Representations, Warranties and Covenants. 
 
          Lessee hereby represents, warrants and covenants to 
Lessor as follows:  (i) the Properties will not be used 
"predominantly outside the United States" within the meaning of 
Sections 168(g)(1)(A) and 168(g)(4) of the Code; (ii) assuming 
Lessor is treated as the owner of the Properties for federal 
income tax purposes, the Tax Assumptions set forth in Section 
18B(a)(iii) -(v) are correct; (iii) neither the Properties nor 
any component thereof constitutes "limited use property" within 
the meaning of Revenue Procedure 76-30, 1976-2 C.B. 647; (iv) 
Lessee (including without limitation any Affiliate of Lessee) 
will not claim any depreciation or cost recovery deductions with 
respect to the Properties, will not use the Properties in any 
manner that will cause the Properties to cease to qualify for 
depreciation deductions as set forth in the applicable Lease 
Supplement,  and has not taken and will not take any other action 
in connection with filing its or their federal and state income 
tax returns that would cause any of the Tax Assumptions to be 
incorrect; (v) at no time during the Term will the Properties or 
any portion thereof be deemed to be tax exempt use property as 
defined in Section 168(h) of the Code or public utility property 
within the meaning of Section 168(i)(10) of the Code; (vi) all 
written information of a factual nature with respect to the 
Properties or any portion thereof provided by the Lessee or any 
Affiliate or agent thereof to any appraiser employed in 
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, was 
accurate at the time given and, unless amended by information 
given in writing to such appraiser and Lessor by the Lessee or an 
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Affiliate of the Lessee on or prior to the date that any 
applicable Property becomes subject to a Lease Supplement will be 
accurate in all material respects on the date of delivery of the 
Lease Supplement therefor; (vii) on the date that any Property 
becomes subject to a Lease Supplement, no improvements, 
modifications or additions will be required in order to render 
such Property complete for its intended use by Lessee, and such 
Property will be deemed to have been placed in service no later 
than the date that the Lease Supplement is delivered; (viii) no 
member of the "Lessee Group" (as defined in Revenue Procedure 
75-21, 1975-1 C.B. 715) of which the Lessee is a member will 
following the closing of the Lease and the transactions 
contemplated thereby have any investment in the Properties or any 
portion thereof not permitted by Section 4 of Revenue Procedure 
75-21, as amended by Revenue Procedure 79-48, 1979-2 C.B. 529; 
and (ix) during the Term, no loss, damage, destruction, 
abandonment, condemnation, seizure, confiscation, theft, 
forfeiture, requisition of title or requisition of use with 
respect to the Properties or any portion thereof that does not 
constitute a Casualty or Condemnation resulting in the payment of 
Casualty Loss Value with respect thereto will result in the 
disallowance, loss, recapture or deferral of all or part of the 
depreciation deductions and amortization deductions referred to 
in Section 18 B(a) above. 
 
          (c)  Indemnity Payment Conditions. 
 
          (i)  If, by reason of any act or omission of Lessee or 
by any other Person in possession of the Properties, or by reason 
of the inaccuracy or breach by Lessee of any of the 
representations, warranties and covenants contained in Section 
18B(b), tax benefits resulting from the Tax Assumptions are lost, 
disallowed, eliminated, reduced, recaptured, compromised, delayed 
or otherwise made unavailable to Lessor or (ii) Lessor incurs a 
tax detriment because it is required to include amounts in income 
other than as contemplated in the Tax Assumptions, Lessee shall, 
upon notice by Lessor, promptly pay to Lessor on demand in 
immediately available funds, an indemnity payment determined on 
an After Tax Basis, as reasonably computed by Lessor, equal to 
the amount of such lost tax benefits and such tax detriments 
incurred (computed at the Lessor's applicable federal and state 
tax rate and including without limitation the incurrence of any 
tax detriments as a result of the inclusion by Lessor in gross 
income of the aggregate indemnity payment pursuant to this 
Section 18B), plus any interest, penalties and additions to tax 
thereon and plus any expenses incurred by Lessor in connection 
therewith.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
Lessee shall not be liable for any indemnity payment arising from 
a tax detriment as a result of any taxing authority's 
reallocation of the cost paid by Lessor for the Properties in a 
manner different from the allocation reflected in the applicable 
Lease Supplement unless arising from a direct act or omission of 
Lessee; provided, however, Lessee specifically acknowledges and 
agrees that the allocation reflected in the Lease Supplement is 
reasonable and reflects an appropriate allocation based on the 
respective fair market values of the classes of the Properties as 
set forth on such Lease Supplement.  Lessee accordingly agrees 
that it will not take a reporting position for income tax 
purposes, ad valorem tax purposes or otherwise inconsistent with 
the allocation set forth on such Lease Supplement. 
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          (d)  Survival of Indemnities. 
 
          All of the indemnities contained in this Section 18B 
shall apply to the Properties and each component thereof and 
shall continue in full force and effect, notwithstanding the 
expiration or other termination of the Term and are expressly 
made for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, Lessor and 
each Assignee. 
 
          (e)  Consolidated Group. 
 
     For purposes of this Section 18B, the term Lessor shall 
include any group or any member of an affiliated group of 
corporations of which Lessor is, or may become, a member if 
consolidated or combined returns are filed for such affiliated 
group for federal, state or local income tax purposes, and their 
respective successors and assigns. 
 
     19.   General Indemnity. 
 
          Whether or not any of the transactions contemplated 
hereby shall be consummated, Lessee hereby assumes liability for 
and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless each 
Indemnified Person on an After Tax Basis from and against any 
Claims, which may be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against 
such Indemnified Person by any third party (but not to the extent 
such Claims arise from the gross negligence, willful misconduct 
or willful breach of such Indemnified Person or are otherwise 
solely attributable to acts or events occurring after the 
expiration of this Agreement or after the transfer of any 
Property to Lessee or a third party) in any way relating to or 
arising or alleged to arise out of the execution, delivery, 
performance or enforcement of this Agreement or any other 
Transaction Document or on or with respect to any Property or any 
component thereof, including without limitation Claims in any way 
relating to or arising or alleged to arise out of (a) the 
financing, refinancing, purchase, ordering, acquisition, 
acceptance, rejection, ownership, possession, design, 
construction, installation, refurbishment, development, delivery, 
acceptance, nondelivery, leasing, subleasing, possession, use, 
operation, maintenance repair, modification, condition, sale, 
return, repossession (whether by summary proceedings or 
otherwise), destruction, return or any other disposition of any 
Property or any Part thereof, including without limitation the 
acquisition, holding or disposition of any interest in any 
Property, lease or agreement comprising a portion of any thereof; 
(b) any latent or other defects in any Property or any portion 
thereof whether or not discoverable by such Indemnified Person or 
Lessee; (c) a violation of Environmental Laws, Environmental 
Claims or other loss of or damage to any property or the 
environment relating to any Property, this Agreement or Lessee; 
(d) the Transaction Documents, or any transaction contemplated 
thereby; (e) any breach by Lessee of any of its representations 
or warranties under the Transaction Documents to which Lessee is 
a party or failure by Lessee to perform or observe any covenant 
or agreement to be performed by it under any Transaction 
Document; (f) the transactions contemplated hereby or by any 
other Transaction Document, in respect of the application of 
Parts 4 and 5 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA; (g) personal 
injury, death or property damage, including without limitation 
Claims based on strict or absolute liability in tort; and (h) any 
infringement Claims. 
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          All of the indemnities contained in this Section 19 
shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the 
expiration or other termination of the Term and are expressly 
made for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each 
Indemnified Person. 
 
     20.  NO LESSOR WARRANTIES. 
 
     LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT IS LEASING EACH 
PROPERTY "AS-IS, WHERE-IS AND WITH ALL FAULTS" WITHOUT 
REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) BY 
LESSOR WHATSOEVER AND IN EACH CASE SUBJECT TO (I) THE EXISTING 
STATE OF TITLE,(II)THE RIGHTS OF ANY PARTIES IN POSSESSION 
THEREOF (IF ANY), (III) ANY STATE OF FACTS REGARDING ITS PHYSICAL 
CONDITION OR WHICH AN ACCURATE SURVEY MIGHT SHOW, (IV) ALL 
APPLICABLE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS AND (V) VIOLATIONS OF LEGAL 
REQUIREMENTS WHICH MAY EXIST ON THE DATE HEREOF AND/OR THE DATE 
OF THE LEASE SUPPLEMENT. LESSOR HAS NOT MADE AND SHALL NOT BE 
DEEMED TO HAVE MADE ANY REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT 
(EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) WHATSOEVER AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE 
ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER AS TO ANY PROPERTY, THE TITLE, VALUE, 
USEFUL LIFE, HABITABILITY, USE, CONDITION, DESIGN, OPERATION, 
MERCHANTABILITY, DURABILITY, SUITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR USE OF 
ANY PROPERTY (OR ANY PART THEREOF), THE QUALITY OF THE MATERIALS 
IN OR WORKMANSHIP OF ANY PROPERTY, THE CONFORMITY OF ANY PROPERTY 
TO ANY PURCHASE ORDER OR PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, OR ANY OTHER 
REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR COVENANT WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO ANY PROPERTY (OR ANY PART THEREOF), AND 
LESSOR SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR ANY LATENT, 
HIDDEN OR PATENT DEFECT THEREON, THE FAILURE OF ANY PROPERTY, OR 
ANY PART THEREOF, TO COMPLY WITH ANY LEGAL REQUIREMENT OR FOR ANY 
DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR TYPE TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY RESULTING 
THEREFROM, OR FOR LESSEE'S LOSS OF USE OF ANY PROPERTY OR FOR ANY 
INTERRUPTION IN LESSEE'S BUSINESS CAUSED BY LESSEE'S INABILITY TO 
USE ANY PROPERTY FOR ANY REASON.  PRIOR TO THE DATE HEREOF, 
LESSEE HAS BEEN AFFORDED FULL OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT EACH 
PROPERTY AND THE IMPROVEMENTS THEREON, IS (INSOFAR AS LESSOR IS 
CONCERNED) SATISFIED WITH THE RESULTS OF ITS INSPECTIONS AND IS 
ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT SOLELY ON THE BASIS OF THE RESULTS 
OF ITS OWN INSPECTIONS, AND ALL RISKS INCIDENT TO THE MATTERS 
DESCRIBED IN THE PRECEDING SENTENCE, AS BETWEEN LESSOR AND 
LESSEE, ARE TO BE BORNE BY LESSEE. 
 
     So long and only so long as an Event of Default shall not 
have occurred and be continuing, and so long and only so long as 
all of the Properties shall be subject to this Agreement and 
Lessee shall be entitled to possession of the Properties 
hereunder, Lessor authorizes Lessee, at Lessee's sole expense, to 
assert for Lessor's account, all rights and powers of Lessor 
under any manufacturer's vendor's or dealer's warranty on any 
item of Properties; provided, however, that Lessee shall 
indemnify, protect, save, defend and hold harmless Lessor from 
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and against any and all Claims, and all costs, expenses, damages, 
losses and liabilities incurred or suffered by Lessor in 
connection therewith, as a result of, or incident to, any action 
by Lessee pursuant to the foregoing authorization. 
 
     21.  Lessee's Representations and Warranties. 
 
     Lessee hereby represents and warrants as of the date hereof 
to Lessor and each Assignee of Lessor that: 
 
          (a)  Due Organization and Existence. 
 
          Lessee is a corporation duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its 
incorporation, and is qualified to do business in each 
jurisdiction in which such qualification is necessary in order 
for Lessee to carry on its business and to perform its 
obligations hereunder, and is in good standing under the Laws of 
each jurisdiction in which the failure to be in good standing 
would have a material adverse effect on the condition (financial 
or otherwise) of Lessee. 
 
          (b)  Power and Authority. 
 
          Lessee has the corporate power and authority to execute 
and perform this Agreement and to lease the Properties hereunder, 
and has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance 
of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which 
Lessee is a party. 
 
          (c)  Due Authorization. 
 
          The leasing of the Properties from Lessor by Lessee, 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other 
Transaction Documents to which Lessee is a party, the compliance 
by Lessee with the terms hereof and thereof and the payment and 
performance by Lessee of all of its obligations hereunder and 
thereunder (i) have been duly and legally authorized by 
appropriate corporate action taken by Lessee, (ii) are not in 
contravention of, and will not result in a violation or breach 
of, any of the terms of Lessee's articles of incorporation, 
by-laws or of any provisions of any agreements relating to shares 
of the capital stock of Lessee, and (iii) will not violate or 
constitute a breach of any provisions of applicable Law, or any 
indenture, agreement or other instrument to which Lessee is a 
party, or by or under which Lessee or any of Lessee's property is 
bound, or be in conflict with, result in a breach of, or 
constitute (with due notice and/or lapse of time) a default under 
any such indenture, agreement or any instrument, or result in the 
creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of Lessee's property 
or assets. 
 
          (d)  Enforceability. 
 
          This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to 
which Lessee is a party have been executed by the duly authorized 
officer or officers of Lessee and delivered to Lessor and 
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constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligations of Lessee, 
enforceable in accordance with their terms. 
 
          (e)  No Consents. 
 
          The execution and delivery by Lessee of this Agreement 
and the other Transaction Documents to which Lessee is a party, 
the payment and performance by Lessee of all of its obligations 
hereunder and thereunder and the sale of the Properties by any 
Seller to Lessor for the purpose of leasing the same to Lessee 
under this Agreement and the other applicable Transaction 
Documents, in no such case requires any consent or approval of, 
the giving of notice to, the registration, filing or recording 
with or the taking of any other action in respect of, any 
federal, state, local or foreign government or governmental 
authority or agency. 
 
          (f)  No Liens. 
 
          No mortgage, deed of trust, or other Lien (other than 
the Lien granted to Lessor hereunder) which now covers or 
affects, or which may hereafter cover or affect, any property or 
interest therein of Lessee, now attaches or hereafter will attach 
to any Property, or in any manner affects or will affect 
adversely Lessor's rights and interests therein; 
 
          (g)  Perfection of Security Interest. 
 
          To the extent this Agreement is hereafter deemed to be 
a lease intended as security and not a true lease then except for 
the filing of Uniform Commercial Code financing statements with 
the North Carolina Secretary of State, Guilford County, North 
Carolina, Lee County, North Carolina, Stokes County, North 
Carolina and Rockingham County, North Carolina, no further 
action, including without limitation any filing or recording of 
any document, mortgage, or Uniform Commercial Code financing 
statement is necessary or advisable in order to establish and 
perfect, the Properties as against Lessee and/or any third 
parties in any applicable jurisdiction. 
 
          (h)  (intentionally omitted). 
 
          (i)  No Litigation. 
 
          There is no litigation or any other proceedings now 
pending or, to the knowledge of Lessee threatened, against or 
affecting Lessee, in any court or before any regulatory 
commission, board or other administrative governmental agency 
which would directly or indirectly, adversely affect or impair 
the right, title and interest of Lessor in and to the Properties, 
the ability of Lessee to perform its obligations under the 
Transaction Documents which it is a party or which, in the 
reasonable opinion of Lessee's management, is likely to affect, 
materially and adversely, the business, operations or condition 
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of Lessee (financial or otherwise), other than as disclosed in 
Lessee's financial statements. 
 
          (j)  Income Tax Return. 
 
          Lessee has filed all United States income Tax returns 
which are required to be filed and has paid, or made provisions 
for the payment of, all Taxes which have or may become due 
pursuant to said returns or pursuant to any assessment received 
by Lessee, except such Taxes, if any, as are being contested by 
means of a Permitted Contest. 
 
          (k)  ERISA. 
 
          Lessee has not entered into the Overall Transaction, 
directly or indirectly, in connection with any arrangement in any 
way involving any employee benefit plan or related trust to which 
it is a party in interest, all within the meaning of the 
Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended 
("ERISA"), and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
          (l)  Investment Company. 
 
          Lessee is not an "investment company", or a company 
"controlled" by an "investment company", within the meaning of 
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. 
 
          (m)  Taxes. 
 
          All property, ad valorem, sales, use, documentation or 
similar Taxes, fees or other charges due and payable prior to or 
as of the date hereof have been paid to the extent such are in 
connection with the sale to and purchase by Lessor of the 
Properties or are otherwise in connection with the Overall 
Transaction. 
 
          (n)  No Offer to Sell or Assign. 
 
          Lessee has not offered any interest in this Agreement, 
any other Transaction Documents to which Lessee is a party, the 
Payments, the Properties or any similar security for sale to, or 
solicited offers to buy any thereof from, or otherwise approached 
or negotiated with respect thereto with, any prospective 
purchaser, other than Lessor and as to Lessor, after reasonable 
inquiry, Lessee believes that Lessor has such knowledge and 
experience in financial and business matters that it is capable 
of evaluating the merits and risks of such an investment; 
provided, however, that Lessee has previously negotiated a 
financing arrangement similar to this Agreement with Transcapital 
Corporation.  
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          (o)  Chief Executive Office. 
 
          The chief executive office of Lessee is located at 7201 
West Friendly Avenue, Guilford County, Greensboro, North Carolina  
27419 and has been located at such address for no less than the 
four (4) months prior to the date hereof. 
 
          (p)  No Material Adverse Change. 
 
          No material adverse change has occurred in the 
condition of Lessee (financial or otherwise) since June 30, 1996 
which would impair the ability of Lessee to pay and perform its 
obligations under this Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents to which Lessee is a party. 
 
          (q)  Trade Names. 
 
          Lessee has not, and does not, use any trade name or any 
other names in the conduct of its business except for its name 
set forth on the signature page hereof. 
 
          (r)  Title. 
 
          Lessor has good and marketable fee simple title to each 
Property, subject only to Permitted Exceptions.   
 
          (s)  Flood Hazard. 
 
          No portion of any Property is located in an area 
identified as a special flood hazard area by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency or other applicable agency.   
 
          (t)  Insurance Coverage. 
 
          Lessee has obtained insurance coverage for each 
Property which meets the requirements of this Agreement and all 
of such coverage is in full force and effect as the date hereof. 
 
          (u)  Compliance with Law. 
 
          Each Property and Lessee's use thereof, complies with 
all Legal Requirements as of the date hereof (including without 
limitation all zoning and land use laws and Environmental Laws) 
and all other Governmental Actions have been taken in respect 
thereto, except to the extent that failure to comply therewith 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material 
adverse effect on (i) the business, condition (financial or 
otherwise), assets, liabilities or operations of Lessee and its 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (ii) the ability of Lessee or any 
Subsidiary of Lessee to perform its respective obligations under 
any Transaction Document to which it is a party, (iii) the 
validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document or the 
rights and remedies of the Lessor thereunder, (iv) the validity, 
priority or enforceability of any Lien on any Property created by 
any Transaction Document or (v) the value, utility or useful life 
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of any Property or the use, or ability of Lessee to use, any 
Property for the purpose for which it was intended. 
 
          (v)  Governmental Actions 
 
          All necessary Governmental Action, in each case 
required by any Law enacted, imposed or adopted on or prior to 
the date hereof or by any change in facts or circumstances on or 
prior to the date hereof, shall have been obtained or made and be 
in full force and effect. 
 
          (w)  Encroachments; Permitting. 
 
          No Property encroaches in any manner onto any adjoining 
land (except as permitted by express written easements).  There 
are no material defects to any Property including without 
limitation the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical 
systems thereof.  All water, sewer, electric, gas, telephone and 
drainage facilities and all other utilities required to 
adequately service each Property for its intended use are 
available pursuant to permits effective on or prior to the date 
hereof (including without limitation any that may be required 
under applicable Environmental Laws).  There is no action, suit 
or proceeding (including without limitation any proceeding in 
condemnation or eminent domain or under any Environmental Law) 
pending or, to the best knowledge of the Lessee, overtly 
threatened which adversely affects the title to, or the use, 
operation, utility, value or useful life of any Property.  No 
fire or other casualty with respect to any Property has occurred 
which fire or other casualty has had, individually or in the 
aggregate, a material adverse effect on (i) the business, 
condition (financial or otherwise), assets, liabilities or 
operations of Lessee and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (ii) 
the ability of Lessee or any Subsidiary to perform its respective 
obligations under any Transaction Document to which it is a 
party, (iii) the validity or enforceability of any Transaction 
Document or the rights and remedies of the Lessor thereunder, 
(iv) the validity, priority or enforceability of any Lien on any 
Property created by any Transaction Document or (v) the value, 
utility or useful life of any Property or the use, or ability of 
Lessee to use, any Property for the purpose for which it was 
intended.  All utilities serving the related Properties are 
located in (and in the future will be located in) and vehicular 
access to each Property is provided by, either public 
rights-of-way abutting such Property or Appurtenant Rights.  All 
licenses, approvals, authorizations, consents, permits (including 
without limitation building, demolition and environmental 
permits, licenses, approvals, authorizations and consents), 
easements and rights-of-way, including without limitation proof 
of dedication, required for (i) the use, treatment, storage, 
transport, disposal or disposition of any Hazardous Substance on, 
at, under or from the real property underlying any Improvements 
during the use and operation of such Improvements and the use and 
operation of such Improvements with the applicable Equipment 
which such Improvements support for the purposes for which they 
were intended have either been obtained from the appropriate 
Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction or from private 
parties, as the case may be. 
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     22.  Events of Default. 
 
     Any of the following events shall constitute an "Event of 
Default" (whether any such event shall be voluntary or 
involuntary, or come about or be effected by operation of Law or 
pursuant to or in compliance with any judgment, decree or order 
of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any 
administrative or governmental body): 
 
          (a)  Payment. 
 
          Lessee shall fail to make (i) any Basic Payment within 
five days after the same is due and payable or (ii) any 
Supplemental Payment within 10 days after receipt of written 
notice to Lessee that the same is due and payable. 
 
          (b)  Certain Covenants. 
 
          Lessee shall fail to observe or perform any of the 
covenants or agreements of Lessee set forth in Sections 5(b), 
5(c), 6, 8, 14(a), 14(c), 15, 17 or 29 hereof. 
 
          (c)  Other Covenants. 
 
          Lessee shall fail to perform or observe any covenant, 
condition, or agreement (other than those identified in Sections 
22(a) or (b) hereof) to be performed or observed by it under this 
Agreement, any other Transaction Document to which Lessee is a 
party or in any document or certificate furnished to Lessor in 
connection herewith or therewith, and such failure shall continue 
unremedied for 30 days after written notice to Lessee specifying 
such failure and demanding the same to be remedied; provided, 
however, that if Lessee shall have undertaken to cure any such 
failure and, notwithstanding the reasonable diligence of Lessee 
in attempting to cure such failure, such failure is not cured 
within said 30 day period but is curable with future due 
diligence, there shall exist no Event of Default under this 
Section 22(c) for such further time, not to exceed an additional 
30 days, as may reasonably be required to effect such cure, so 
long as Lessee is proceeding with due diligence to cure such 
failure. 
 
          (d)  Default under Other Documents - Lessee. 
 
               (i)  Any Lessee Entity shall be in default 
respecting any obligation owed to any Lessor Entity under any 
lease, loan agreement, promissory note or other agreement, 
instrument or document, (ii) any Lessee Entity shall be in 
default in the payment of any single amount due by such Lessee 
Entity to any Person (other than a Lessor Entity) regarding an 
aggregate payment obligation of $100,000 or more (excluding any 
such obligation which is being contested in good faith by such 
Lessee Entity by appropriate proceedings, and the liability for 
which has not been reduced to judgment) relating to the payment 
of borrowed money or the payment of rent or hire under any lease 
agreement, and such obligation shall be declared to be due and 
payable prior to the maturity thereof; or (iii) an attachment or 
other Lien shall be filed or levied against a substantial part of 
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the property of any Lessee Entity and such judgment shall 
continue unstayed and in effect, or such attachment or Lien shall 
continue undischarged or unbonded, for a period of 30 days or 
more. 
 
          (e)  Default under Other Documents - Guarantor. 
 
               (i)  Guarantor shall be in default respecting any 
obligation owed to any Lessor Entity pursuant to the Guaranty or 
any lease, loan agreement, promissory note or other argument, 
instrument or document, (ii) Guarantor shall be in default in the 
payment of any single amount due by Guarantor to any Person 
(other than a Lessor Entity) regarding an aggregate payment 
obligation of $100,000 or more (excluding any such obligation 
which is being contested in good faith by Guarantor by 
appropriate proceedings, and the liability for which has not been 
reduced to judgment) relating to the payment of borrowed money or 
the payment of rent or hire under any lease agreement, and such 
obligation shall be declared to be due and payable prior to the 
maturity thereof; or (iii) an attachment or other Lien shall be 
filed or levied against a substantial part of the property of 
Guarantor and such judgment shall continue unstayed and in 
effect, or such attachment or Lien shall continue undischarged or 
unbonded, for a period of 30 days or more. 
 
          (f)  Bankruptcy; Insolvency - Lessee. 
 
          Lessee shall become insolvent or bankrupt or make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or consent to the 
appointment of a trustee or receiver; or a trustee or a receiver 
shall be appointed for Lessee or for a substantial part of its 
property without its consent and shall not be dismissed for a 
period of 60 days; or any petition for the relief, reorganization 
or arrangement of Lessee or any other petition in bankruptcy or 
for the liquidation, insolvency or dissolution of Lessee shall be 
filed by or against Lessee and, if filed against Lessee shall be 
consented to or be pending and not dismissed for a period of 60 
days; or an order for relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency 
Law shall be entered by any court or governmental authority of 
competent jurisdiction with respect to Lessee; or any execution 
or writ of process shall be issued under any action or proceeding 
against Lessee whereby any item of Properties may be taken or 
restrained; or Lessee's corporate existence shall cease; or 
Lessee shall, without Lessor's prior written consent, sell, 
transfer or dispose of, or pledge or otherwise encumber, all or 
substantially all of its assets or property, or except in 
accordance with Section 14(c) hereof, Lessee shall consolidate or 
merge with any other entity, or engage in any form of corporate 
reorganization. 
 
          (g)  Bankruptcy; Insolvency - Guarantor. 
 
          Guarantor shall become insolvent or bankrupt or make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or consent to the 
appointment of a trustee or receiver; or a trustee or a receiver 
shall be appointed for Guarantor or for a substantial part of its 
property without its consent and shall not be dismissed for a 
period of 60 days; or any petition for the relief, reorganization 
or arrangement of Guarantor or any other petition in bankruptcy 
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or for the liquidation, insolvency or dissolution of Guarantor 
shall be filed by or against Guarantor and, if filed against 
Guarantor shall be consented to or be pending and not dismissed 
for a period of 60 days; or an order for relief under any 
bankruptcy or insolvency Law shall be entered by any court or 
governmental authority of competent jurisdiction with respect to 
Guarantor; or any execution or writ of process shall be issued 
under any action or proceeding against Guarantor whereby any item 
of Properties may be taken or restrained; or Guarantor's 
corporate existence shall cease; or Guarantor shall, without 
Lessor's prior written consent, sell, transfer or dispose of, or 
pledge or otherwise encumber, all or substantially all of its 
assets or property, or except in accordance with the provisions 
of the Guaranty, Guarantor shall consolidate or merge with any 
other entity, or engage in any form of corporate reorganization. 
 
          (h)  Misrepresentation - Lessee. 
 
          Any representation, warranty, statement or 
certification made by Lessee under this Agreement or any other 
Transaction Document to which Lessee is a party in the Lease 
Supplement or in any document or certificate furnished to Lessor 
in connection herewith or therewith) shall prove to be untrue or 
incorrect when made, or shall be breached. 
 
          (i)  Misrepresentation - Guarantor. 
 
          Any representation, warranty, covenant, statement or 
certification made by Guarantor under the Guaranty or any other 
Transaction Document to which Guarantor is a party (or in any 
document or certificate furnished to Lessor in connection 
herewith or therewith) shall prove to be materially untrue or 
incorrect when made, or shall be breached. 
 
     23.  Remedies Upon Default. 
 
     Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default (subject to 
Lessee's rights set forth in the next to last paragraph of this 
Section 23), Lessor may exercise one or more of the following 
remedies with respect to the Properties or any Part thereof as 
Lessor in its sole discretion shall elect: 
 
          (a)  Surrender of Possession. 
 
          Upon the demand of Lessor and at Lessee's expense, 
Lessee shall surrender the Properties (or any of them) to Lessor.  
Lessor may enter upon and repossess the Properties (or any of 
them) without the necessity of first instituting proceedings or 
by summary proceedings or by such means as are available at Law 
or in equity.  Lessor may remove from the Properties (or any of 
them) Lessee and any or all other Persons, any and all personal 
property, Lessee's equipment and personalty and any and all 
severable Modifications.  Lessor shall have no liability by 
reason of any such entry, repossession or removal performed in 
accordance with applicable Law or as otherwise permitted in 
equity. 
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          (b)  Sell, Use or Otherwise Employ Properties. 
 
          Lessor may (i) sell or otherwise dispose of the 
Properties, at public or private sale and with or without notice 
to Lessee or advertisement, as Lessor may determine or (ii) hold, 
use, operate, otherwise employ or keep idle all or any Part of 
the Properties as Lessor, in its sole discretion, may determine, 
in the case of (i) or (ii) of this Section 23(b) free and clear 
of any rights of Lessee except as hereinafter set forth in this 
Section 23 and without any duty to account to Lessee with respect 
to such action or inaction or for any proceeds with respect 
thereto except to the extent required by Section 23(d) hereof in 
the event Lessor elects to exercise its rights under said Section 
23(d) in lieu of its rights under Section 23(b) hereof. 
 
          (c)  Excess of Casualty Loss Value over Fair Market 
Sales Value. 
 
          Whether or not Lessor shall have exercised, or shall 
thereafter at any time exercise, any of its rights under Sections 
23(a) or (b) hereof with respect to the Properties, Lessor, by 
notice to Lessee specifying a payment date not earlier than the 
next Basic Payment Date, may cause Lessee to pay to Lessor, and 
Lessee shall pay to Lessor, on the payment date specified in such 
notice, as liquidated damages for loss of a bargain and not as a 
penalty (in lieu of the Basic Payments for the Properties due 
after the specified payment date), any Payments with respect to 
the Properties due on or before or accrued as of such payment 
date plus an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the 
Casualty Loss Value for all the Properties, determined as of such 
payment date over (ii) the Fair Market Sales Value for all the 
Properties, computed as of the payment date specified pursuant to 
this Section 23(c), together with interest, to the extent 
permitted by applicable Law, at the Overdue Rate on such Payments 
and the amount of such excess, if any, from the due date therefor 
as specified by Lessor to the date of actual payment of all such 
Payments and other amounts. 
 
          (d)  Excess of Casualty Loss Value over Sales Proceeds. 
 
          In the event Lessor, pursuant to Section 23(b) hereof, 
shall have sold the Properties, Lessor in lieu of exercising its 
rights under Section 23(c) hereof with respect to the Properties, 
may, if it shall so elect, cause Lessee to pay Lessor, and Lessee 
shall pay to Lessor, on the date of such sale, as liquidated 
damages for loss of a bargain and not as a penalty (in lieu of 
the Basic Payments for the Properties due after the date on which 
such sale occurs), any Payments with respect to the Properties 
due on or before or accrued as of such date of sale, plus the 
amount of any deficiency of the net proceeds of such sale below 
the Casualty Loss Value of all the Properties, determined as of 
the date of such sale, together with interest, to the extent 
permitted by applicable Law, at the Overdue Rate on all such 
Payments and the amount of such deficiency from the due date 
therefor as specified by Lessor to the date of actual payment of 
all such Payments and other amounts. 
 
     (e)  Payment of Casualty Loss Value. 
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     In lieu of exercising its rights under Sections 23(a), (b), 
(c) or (d) hereof, Lessor, by notice to Lessee specifying a 
payment date, may cause Lessee to pay to Lessor, and Lessee shall 
pay to Lessor, on the payment date specified in such notice, as 
liquidated damages for loss of a bargain and not as a penalty (in 
lieu of the Basic Payments for the Properties due after the 
specified payment date), any Payments with respect to the 
Properties due on or before or accrued as of such payment date 
plus an amount equal to the Casualty Loss Value for all the 
Properties, determined as of the Basic Payment Date immediately 
preceding such payment date (or, if such payment date is a Basic 
Payment Date, determined as of such Basic Payment Date), together 
with interest, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, at the 
Overdue Rate on such Payments and such Casualty Loss Value, from 
the due date therefor as specified by Lessor to the date of 
actual payment of all such Payments and Casualty Loss Value. 
 
          (f)  Reletting. 
 
          Lessor may, but shall be under no obligation to, relet 
any or all of the Properties, for the account of Lessee or 
otherwise, for such term or terms (which may be greater or less 
than the period which would otherwise have constituted the 
balance of the Term) and on such conditions (which may include 
concessions or free rent) and for such purposes as Lessor may 
determine, and Lessor may collect, receive and retain the rents 
resulting from such reletting.  Lessor shall not be liable to 
Lessee for any failure to relet any Property or for any failure 
to collect any rent due upon such reletting. 
 
          (g)  Termination or Rescission. 
 
          Lessor may terminate or rescind this Agreement as to 
the Properties or exercise any other right or remedy which may be 
available under Law or in equity or proceed by appropriate court 
action to enforce the terms hereof or to recover damages for the 
breach hereof. 
 
          Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this 
Section, so long as (a) Lessor has not entered into a commitment 
to sell the applicable Properties in the course of exercising 
remedies following the occurrence of an Event of Default and (b) 
Lessor has received from Lessee the amounts set forth below 
within five (5) Business Days after notice from Lessor as to the 
occurrence of an Event of Default (provided, however, that 
Lessor's notice shall be deemed to occur automatically upon an 
Event of Default under Sections 22(f) or 22(g), hereof), Lessee 
may purchase all but not less than all of the Properties by 
paying to Lessor an aggregate amount equal to (x) the greater of 
Fair Market Sales Value at such time or Casualty Loss Value as of 
the immediately preceding Basic Payment Date (or if such date is 
a Basic Payment Date, as of such date), (y) all Basic Payments 
and Supplemental Payments then due and owing or accrued and (z) 
all Sales Expenses in connection with the sale of the Properties 
by Lessor to Lessee.  Upon Lessor's receipt and verification of 
payment of the above-referenced amounts, Lessor shall, at 
Lessee's cost and expense, execute and deliver special warranty 
deeds and special warranty bills of sale, as appropriate, in 
order to convey to Lessee the Properties on an as is, where-is 
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and with all faults basis, without recourse or representation or 
warranty of any kind except as to the absence of Liens created by 
or through Lessor. 
 
          In addition, Lessee shall be liable for any and all 
Supplemental Payments due hereunder before or after any 
termination hereof, including without limitation all costs and 
expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorney's fees 
and disbursements) incurred by reason of the occurrence of any 
Event of Default or the exercise of Lessor's remedies with 
respect thereto including without limitation all costs and 
expenses incurred in connection with the return of the Properties 
in accordance with the terms of Section 6 hereof or any appraisal 
of the Properties.  At any sale of the Properties, Lessor may bid 
for and purchase such property.  Except as otherwise expressly 
provided above, no remedy referred to in this Section 23 is 
intended to be exclusive, but each shall be cumulative and in 
addition to any other remedy referred to above or otherwise 
available to Lessor at Law or in equity; and the exercise or 
beginning of exercise by Lessor of any one or more of such 
remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by 
Lessor of any or all such other remedies.  No express or implied 
waiver by Lessor of any Event of Default hereunder shall in any 
way be or be construed to be, a waiver of any future or 
subsequent Event of Default.  To the extent permitted by 
applicable Law, Lessee hereby waives any rights now or hereafter 
conferred by statute or otherwise which may require Lessor, 
otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of this Section 
23, to sell, lease or otherwise use the Properties in mitigation 
of Lessor's damages or otherwise to limit or modify any of 
Lessor's rights or remedies under this Section 23; provided, to 
the extent not waived by Lessee hereunder, Lessor shall comply 
with all applicable Legal Requirements to mitigate damages in the 
exercise of its remedies under this Section. 
 
     24.  Lessor's Right to Perform for Lessee. 
 
     If Lessee fails to make any Supplemental Payment required to 
be made by it hereunder or fails to perform or comply with any of 
its agreements contained herein, Lessor may itself, make such 
payment or perform or comply with such agreement, and the amount 
of such payment and the amount of the expenses of Lessor incurred 
in connection with such payment or the performance of or 
compliance with such agreement, as the case may be, together with 
interest thereon at the rate specified in Section 25 hereof, 
shall, if not paid by Lessee to Lessor on demand, be deemed a 
Supplemental Payment hereunder; provided, however, that no such 
payment, performance or compliance by Lessor shall be deemed to 
cure any Event of Default hereunder. 
 
     25.  Late Charges. 
 
     Lessee shall pay to Lessor, upon demand, to the extent 
permitted by applicable Law, interest on any Basic Payment not 
paid when due, and on any Supplemental Payment or other amount 
payable under this Agreement which is not paid when due, for any 
period for which any of the same is overdue (without regard to 
any grace period) at a rate equal to the Overdue Rate. 
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     26.  Further Assurances. 
 
     Lessor and Lessee agree to cooperate in good faith and to 
execute and deliver such documents and further assurances 
consistent with and in clarification of the characterization and 
intent of the parties with respect to the Overall Transaction. 
 
     27.  Transaction Costs, Fees and Expenses. 
 
     Lessee shall pay up to, but not to exceed, $50,000 of (a) 
the legal fees of Lessor in connection with the negotiation, 
preparation, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents 
and (b) the out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the initial 
closing of the Overall Transaction, including but not limited to 
the following: (i) expenses associated with any and all UCC 
recording costs; (ii) expenses associated with the cost of 
recording all memoranda of leases and deeds associated with the 
initial closing (provided, that the cost of revenue stamps, 
intangibles taxes or similar fees or taxes associated with such 
recordation shall be payable by Lessee without limit); (iii) 
expenses associated with UCC, tax and judgment lien searches 
against Lessee deemed necessary or advisable by the Lessor; (iv) 
copying costs, overnight delivery, telephone expenses and 
facsimile charges incurred by Lessor or its counsel.  To the 
extent such legal fees and out-of-pocket expenses set forth above 
in (a) and (b) exceed such $50,000 limit, Lessor shall be 
responsible for the legal fees and expenses in excess of such 
limit. 
 
     In addition to the $50,000 in legal fees and out-of-pocket 
expenses set forth above, Lessee shall be responsible for the 
following:  (a) the fees and expenses of counsel employed or 
retained by Lessee; (b) costs related to any and all title 
insurance premiums associated with the Properties (provided, 
Lessee shall not be responsible for any title insurance premiums 
that may be charged due to Lessor's subsequent transfer of a 
Property to another entity), (c) costs associated with any and 
all surveys or updates to surveys necessary or appropriate in 
connection with the Overall Transaction; (d) costs associated 
with any and all appraisals or reappraisals (except as otherwise 
specified in Section 11 (c) of this Agreement; and (e) costs 
associated with revenue stamps, intangible taxes or similar fees 
or taxes related to the recording of all memoranda of leases and 
deeds (and or amendments thereto requested by Lessee). 
 
     Lessee shall also pay all out-of-pocket costs, fees and 
expenses of Lessor in connection with the enforcement of the 
Transaction Documents (and all amendments, modifications and 
supplements thereto), including without limitation the fees and 
expenses of Lessor's attorneys and any and all costs associated 
with filings, searches and/or recordations. 
 
     28.  Notices. 
 
     All notices provided for or required under the terms and 
provisions hereof shall be in writing, and any such notice shall 
be deemed given when personally delivered or when deposited with 
a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, with the cost 
therefor prepaid, or in the United States mails, with proper 
postage prepaid, for first class certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed if to Lessor or Lessee, at their respective 
addresses as set forth herein or at such other address as either 
of them shall, from time to time, designate in writing to the 
other. 
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     If to Lessor:       NationsBanc Leasing & R.E. Corporation 
                         101 South Tryon Street, NC1-002-38-20 
                         Charlotte, North Carolina  28255 
                         Attention: Manager of Corporate Lease 
                                    Administration 
 
     If to Lessee:       Unifi Manufacturing, Inc. 
                         7201 West Friendly Avenue 
                         Greensboro, North Carolina  27419 
                         Attention: Willis C. Moore, III 
                                    Chief Financial Officer 
 
     with a copy to Lessee's counsel: 
 
                         Charles F. McCoy, Esq. 
                         Frazier, Frazier & Mahler, L.L.P. 
                         Southeastern Building, Suite 206 
                         102 North Elm Street 
                         Greensboro, North Carolina  27401 
 
     29.  End of Term Options. 
 
          (a)  Election Procedure. 
 
          If this Agreement shall not have been earlier 
terminated, Lessee (upon written notice to Lessor delivered not 
later than the Option Election Notice Date) shall elect either to 
deliver the Properties to Lessor pursuant to the terms of Section 
6 hereof or purchase the Properties pursuant to the terms of 
Section 29(b) hereof.  Lessee shall be deemed to have elected the 
option described in Section 29(b) hereof if Lessor has not 
received the notice by the Option Election Notice Date.  Upon the 
making of one of the above-referenced elections, Lessee may not 
revoke such election. 
 
          (b)  Lessee's Purchase. 
 
          On the Termination Date, Lessee shall purchase all (but 
not less than all) of the Properties for an amount equal to the 
Fair Market Sales Value.  Lessee shall also pay to (i) Lessor all 
other Basic Payments then due and owing or accrued and (ii) to 
the appropriate parties all other Supplemental Payments then due 
and owing or accrued.  Lessor shall also pay all Sales Expenses 
in connection with its purchase of the Properties. Lessor's sale 
of the Properties shall be on an as-is, where-is and with all 
faults basis, without recourse to or representation or warranty 
by Lessor except as to the absence of Liens on the Properties 
created by or through Lessor.  If Lessee has exercised its 
purchase option, but has not prior to the Termination Date paid 
all amounts for which it is obligated under this Section 29(b), 
then Lessor in its sole discretion may elect to refuse to sell 
 
                         50 
 



 
the Properties to Lessee.  If Lessor does elect to sell the 
Properties to Lessee, then Lessee shall pay Lessor an amount 
after the Termination Date equal to 110% of the daily average of 
the Basic Payments during the term as determined by Lessor, on 
the dates requested by Lessor and shall pay Lessor the pro rata 
portion of such amount which is accrued but unpaid on the date 
all of the amounts referenced in this Section 29(b) have been 
paid to Lessor; provided, however, this provision is not intended 
to grant Lessee a right to delay its payment obligations 
respecting any purchase of the Properties by Lessee. 
 
          (c)  Environmental Inspection. 
 
     If this Agreement has not been earlier terminated and on or 
prior to the Option Election Notice Date Lessee has not given 
notice of exercise of its option to purchase all, but not less 
than all, the Properties on the Termination Date pursuant to 
Section 29(b) hereof or for whatever reason if Lessee does not 
purchase, all but not less than all, the Properties in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement on the Termination Date, then 
not more than 120 days nor less than 60 days prior to the 
Termination Date, Lessee at its expense shall cause to be 
delivered to Lessor a Phase I environmental site assessment of 
each Property recently prepared (no more than 30 days prior to 
the date of delivery) by an independent recognized professional 
selected by Lessor and in form, scope and content reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor.  To the extent any such site assessment 
is not timely delivered or is unsatisfactory to Lessor, Lessor 
may require Lessee to purchase all of the Properties on the 
Termination Date in accordance with the provisions of Section 
29(b) hereof, and notwithstanding any prior election by Lessee 
under Section 29(a) hereof to surrender the Properties to Lessor, 
Lessee shall so purchase the Properties. 
 
     30.  Federal and State Tax Consequences. 
 
     It is expressly agreed that for federal and state income Tax 
purposes the parties entered into the transaction contemplated by 
this Agreement intending such transaction to be characterized as 
a true lease and for Lessor to be considered the owner of the 
Properties for such Tax purposes.  Consistent with this, Lessor 
intends to claim the cost recovery deductions associated with the 
Properties, and Lessee agrees not to take an inconsistent 
position on its federal or state income Tax returns.  
 
     31.  Miscellaneous. 
 
     Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, 
be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or 
unenforceability without invalidating or diminishing the parties' 
rights under the remaining provisions hereof, and any such 
prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not 
invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other 
jurisdiction.  No term or provision of this Agreement may be 
amended, altered, waived, discharged or terminated orally, but 
only by an instrument in writing signed by a duly authorized 
officer of the party against which the enforcement of the 
amendment, alteration, waiver, discharge or termination is 
sought.  A waiver on any one occasion shall not be construed as a 
waiver on a future occasion.  All of the covenants, conditions 
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and obligations contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon 
and shall inure to the benefit of the respective successors and 
assigns of Lessor and (subject to the restrictions of Section 14 
hereof) Lessee.  This Agreement, and the other Transaction 
Documents to which Lessor and Lessee are a party and each related 
instrument, document, agreement and certificate delivered in 
connection herewith or therewith collectively constitute the 
entire agreement of Lessor and Lessee with respect to the 
Properties, and cancels and supersedes any and all prior oral or 
written understandings with respect thereto.  This Agreement may 
be executed in as many counterparts as shall be determined by the 
parties hereto when so executed, each such counterpart shall be 
binding on both parties hereto, notwithstanding that both parties 
are not signatories to the same counterpart.  THIS AGREEMENT 
SHALL IN ALL RESPECTS BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION ALL MATTERS OF CONSTRUCTION, VALIDITY AND PERFORMANCE.  
LESSEE AND LESSOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMIT TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE 
JURISDICTION OF A NORTH CAROLINA STATE OR FEDERAL COURT LOCATED 
IN GUILFORD COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, FOR ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING 
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE OVERALL TRANSACTION OR THIS 
AGREEMENT AND LESSEE AND LESSOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AGREE THAT ALL 
CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING MAY BE HEARD 
AND DETERMINED IN SUCH NORTH CAROLINA COURT, OR TO THE EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW, SUCH FEDERAL COURT.  LESSEE AND LESSOR HEREBY 
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT THEY MAY EFFECTIVELY DO 
SO, THE DEFENSE OF AN INCONVENIENT FORUM TO THE MAINTENANCE OF 
ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING.  TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE 
LAW, LESSEE HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY 
JURY IN ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS BROUGHT IN RESPECT OF THE OVERALL 
TRANSACTION, THIS AGREEMENT OR THE LEASE SUPPLEMENT. 
 
     32.  Interest Rate Calculations. 
 
     All rate calculations made pursuant to this Agreement 
(including without limitation any calculation of the Overdue 
Rate) shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days 
elapsed over a year of 360 days. 
 
     33.  Taxes. 
 
     Subject to the provisions of Sections 18A and 18B hereof, 
Lessor and Lessee hereby agree that to the extent permitted by 
Law (a) Lessee will prepare and file all returns and other 
appropriate documentation in regard to Taxes on the Properties 
(including without limitation real property, personal property 
and ad valorem), (b) pay all such Taxes and (c) reimburse Lessor 
for any and all such Taxes previously paid by Lessor. 
 
     34.  Utility Charges. 
 
 
                              52 
 



 
     Lessee shall pay or cause to be paid all charges for 
electricity, power, gas, oil, water, telephone, sanitary sewer 
service and all other rents, utilities and operating expenses of 
any kind or type used in or on any Property and related real 
property during the Term.  Upon Lessor's request, Lessee shall 
provide from time to time Lessor with evidence of all such 
payments referenced in the foregoing sentence.  Lessee shall be 
entitled to receive any credit or refund with respect to any 
utility charge paid by Lessee.  Unless an Event of Default shall 
have occurred and be continuing, the amount of any credit or 
refund received by Lessor on account of any utility charge paid 
by Lessee, net of the costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in 
obtaining such credit or refund, shall be promptly paid over to 
Lessee.  All charges for utilities imposed with respect to any 
Property for a period during which this Lease expires or 
terminates shall be adjusted and prorated on a daily basis 
between Lessor and Lessee, and each party shall pay or reimburse 
the other for such party's pro rata share thereof. 
 
     35.  Article 2A. 
 
     To the extent permitted by applicable Law, this Agreement 
shall be deemed a "finance lease" under Section 2A-103(g) of the 
Uniform Commercial Code.  Lessee waives any and all rights and 
remedies conferred upon a lessee by Sections 2A-508 through 
2A-522 of the Uniform Commercial Code as enacted in any relevant 
jurisdiction, including without limitation any rights of Lessee 
(a) to cancel or repudiate this Agreement, the Lease Supplement 
or any other supplement or amendment relating to this Agreement, 
(b) to reject or evoke acceptance of the Properties or any 
component thereof and (c) to recover from Lessor any general or 
consequential damages, for any reason whatsoever. 
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives 
as of the date first above written. 
 
 
                              NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. 
                              CORPORATION 
 
 
                              By:  M. RANDALL ROSS       
                                 Name:  M. Randall Ross           
                                 Title: Senior Vice President            
 
 
 
                              UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC. 
 
 
                              By:                            
                                 Name:                       
                                 Title:                           
 
 
 
 
COUNTERPART NO. __3___ OF __4___ SERIALLY NUMBERED MANUALLY 
EXECUTED COUNTERPARTS.  TO THE EXTENT IF ANY THAT THIS DOCUMENT 
CONSTITUTES CHATTEL PAPER UNDER THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, NO 
SECURITY INTEREST IN THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE CREATED THROUGH THE 
TRANSFER AND POSSESSION OF ANY COUNTERPART OTHER THAN COUNTERPART 
NO. 1. 
 
 



 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this  
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives 
as of the date first above written. 
 
 
                                NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. 
                                CORPORATION: 
 
 
 
                                By: 
                                 Name: 
                                 Title: 
 
 
 
                                UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC. 
            
 
 
                                By:  WILLIS C. MOORE, III 
                                 Name:  Willis C. Moore, III 
                                 Title:  Vice Pres. & CFO 
 
 
COUNTERPART NO. __3___ OF __4___ SERIALLY NUMBERED MANUALLY EXECUTED 
COUNTERPARTS.  TO THE EXTENT IF ANY THAT THIS DOCUMENT CONSTITUTES  
CHATTEL PAPER UNDER THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, NO SECURITY 
INTEREST IN THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE CREATED THROUGH THE TRANSFER AND 
POSSESSION OF ANY COUNTERPART OTHER THAN COUNTERPART NO. 1. 
 
 
 



 
 
                             Schedule A 
 
                       Basic Payment Factors 
 
 
          Basic Payment                     Basic Payment 
              Date                             Factor* 
 
 
         20-May-97                          1.86363636% 
          1-Jul-97                          4.21246276% 
          1-Jan-98                          2.87880684% 
          1-Jul-98                          7.01891076% 
          1-Jan-99                          2.84482665% 
          1-Jul-99                          7.05289095% 
          1-Jan-00                          2.80830473% 
          1-Jul-00                          7.08941287% 
          1-Jan-01                          2.75532676% 
          1-Jul-01                          7.14239084% 
          1-Jan-02                          2.59125055% 
          1-Jul-02                          7.30646705% 
          1-Jan-03                          2.41490145% 
          1-Jul-03                          9.18001735% 
          1-Jan-04                          2.16188611% 
          1-Jul-04                          9.90613000% 
          1-Jan-05                         10.51915909% 
          1-Jul-05                          1.54885705% 
          1-Jan-06                          1.54885705% 
          1-Jul-06                         10.51915909% 
          1-Jan-07                         11.22924204% 
          1-Jul-07                          0.83877407% 
          1-Jan-08                         11.63294400% 
          1-Jul-08                          0.43507211% 
          1-Jan-09                         12.06801611% 
          1-Jul-09                          0.00000000% 
          1-Jan-10                         12.06801611% 
          1-Jul-10                          0.00000000% 
          1-Jan-11                         10.17973371% 
          1-Jul-11                          0.00000000% 
          1-Jan-12                          8.86364476% 
          1-Jul-12                          1.03407287% 
          1-Jan-13                          0.00000000% 
   
 
     *    Expressed as a percentage of Acquisition Cost. 
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                              Schedule A-1 
 
 
                             Basic Payments 
 
 
        Basic Payment                                   Basic  
           Date                                        Payment 
 
 
       20-May-97                                      512,500.00 
        1-Jul-97                                    1,158,427.26 
        1-Jan-98                                      791,671.88 
        1-Jul-98                                    1,930,200.46 
        1-Jan-99                                      782,327.33 
        1-Jul-99                                    1,939,545.01 
        1-Jan-00                                      772,283.80 
        1-Jul-00                                    1,949,588.54 
        1-Jan-01                                      757,714.86 
        1-Jul-01                                    1,964,157.48 
        1-Jan-02                                      712,593.90 
        1-Jul-02                                    2,009,278.44 
        1-Jan-03                                      664,097.90 
        1-Jul-03                                    2,524,504.77 
        1-Jan-04                                      594,518.68 
        1-Jul-04                                    2,724,185.75 
        1-Jan-05                                    2,892,768.75 
        1-Jul-05                                      425,935.69 
        1-Jan-06                                      425,935.69 
        1-Jul-06                                    2,892,768.75 
        1-Jan-07                                    3,088,041.56 
        1-Jul-07                                      230,662.87 
        1-Jan-08                                    3,199,059.60 
        1-Jul-08                                      119,644.83 
        1-Jan-09                                    3,318,704.43 
        1-Jul-09                                            0.00 
        1-Jan-10                                    3,318,704.43 
        1-Jul-10                                            0.00 
        1-Jan-11                                    2,799,426.77 
        1-Jul-11                                            0.00 
        1-Jan-12                                    2,437,502.31 
        1-Jul-12                                      284,370.04 
        1-Jan-13                                            0.00 
 
 



 
                              Schedule B 
 
                         Casualty Loss Value 
 
 
          Casualty Loss                      Casualty Loss 
            Value Date                          Value* 
 
         20-May-97                          101.49000007% 
          1-Jun-97                           99.96144567% 
          1-Jul-97                          100.75913273% 
          1-Aug-97                           97.21811982% 
          1-Sep-97                           97.96504582% 
          1-Oct-97                           98.73525702% 
          1-Nov-97                           99.50707582% 
          1-Dec-97                          100.30894662% 
          1-Jan-98                          101.06016585% 
          1-Feb-98                           98.92181091% 
          1-Mar-98                           99.76450618% 
          1-Apr-98                          100.52985051% 
          1-May-98                          101.28134822% 
          1-Jun-98                          102.10675349% 
          1-Jul-98                          102.88121705% 
          1-Aug-98                           96.60971480% 
          1-Sep-98                           97.39252996% 
          1-Oct-98                           98.13252825% 
          1-Nov-98                           98.94013673% 
          1-Dec-98                           99.75627618% 
          1-Jan-99                          100.36203855% 
          1-Feb-99                           98.12364665% 
          1-Mar-99                           98.73075716% 
          1-Apr-99                           99.33854698% 
          1-May-99                           99.94745182% 
          1-Jun-99                          100.55704513% 
          1-Jul-99                          101.16776273% 
          1-Aug-99                           94.69484549% 
          1-Sep-99                           95.27539087% 
          1-Oct-99                           95.85694331% 
          1-Nov-99                           96.43907549% 
          1-Dec-99                           97.02179040% 
          1-Jan-00                           97.60552349% 
          1-Feb-00                           95.38154276% 
          1-Mar-00                           95.96646062% 
          1-Apr-00                           96.55197549% 
          1-May-00                           97.13885865% 
          1-Jun-00                           97.72634880% 
          1-Jul-00                           98.31521727% 
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                           Schedule B 
 
                        Casualty Loss Value 
 
 
       Casualty Loss                              Casualty Loss 
        Value Date                                    Value* 
 
        1-Aug-00                                   91.78469716% 
        1-Sep-00                                   92.34411222% 
        1-Oct-00                                   92.90482051% 
        1-Nov-00                                   93.46606036% 
        1-Dec-00                                   94.02783444% 
        1-Jan-01                                   94.59091378% 
        1-Feb-01                                   92.39911422% 
        1-Mar-01                                   92.96318796% 
        1-Apr-01                                   93.54682785% 
        1-May-01                                   94.14408302% 
        1-Jun-01                                   94.74539058% 
        1-Jul-01                                   95.35268295% 
        1-Aug-01                                   88.77223244% 
        1-Sep-01                                   89.33662778% 
        1-Oct-01                                   89.90756985% 
        1-Nov-01                                   90.48100618% 
        1-Dec-01                                   91.05694775% 
        1-Jan-02                                   91.63984644% 
        1-Feb-02                                   89.61590338% 
        1-Mar-02                                   90.18605087% 
        1-Apr-02                                   90.75858916% 
        1-May-02                                   91.33791015% 
        1-Jun-02                                   91.91966164% 
        1-Jul-02                                   92.50803564% 
        1-Aug-02                                   85.74340513% 
        1-Sep-02                                   86.28760887% 
        1-Oct-02                                   86.83827105% 
        1-Nov-02                                   87.39133898% 
        1-Dec-02                                   87.94682309% 
        1-Jan-03                                   88.50881498% 
        1-Feb-03                                   86.64212975% 
        1-Mar-03                                   87.19274095% 
        1-Apr-03                                   87.74575760% 
        1-May-03                                   88.30626938% 
        1-Jun-03                                   88.86922993% 
        1-Jul-03                                   89.43972898% 
        1-Aug-03                                   80.77100280% 
        1-Sep-03                                   81.28452764% 
        1-Oct-03                                   81.80537505% 
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                          Schedule B 
 
                       Casualty Loss Value 
 
     Casualty Loss                               Casualty Loss 
      Value Date                                    Value* 
 
     1-Nov-03                                    82.32849793% 
     1-Dec-03                                    82.85390622% 
     1-Jan-04                                    83.38668891% 
     1-Feb-04                                    81.74538280% 
     1-Mar-04                                    82.26823709% 
     1-Apr-04                                    82.79337560% 
     1-May-04                                    83.32535598% 
     1-Jun-04                                    83.86168691% 
     1-Jul-04                                    84.40490422% 
     1-Aug-04                                    74.97778411% 
     1-Sep-04                                    75.45888665% 
     1-Oct-04                                    75.94764971% 
     1-Nov-04                                    76.43854807% 
     1-Dec-04                                    76.93678767% 
     1-Jan-05                                    77.21910102% 
     1-Feb-05                                    66.92793622% 
     1-Mar-05                                    67.22976105% 
     1-Apr-05                                    67.49451164% 
     1-May-05                                    67.79288462% 
     1-Jun-05                                    68.12660898% 
     1-Jul-05                                    68.36084920% 
     1-Aug-05                                    67.11436345% 
     1-Sep-05                                    67.45383680% 
     1-Oct-05                                    67.68167207% 
     1-Nov-05                                    68.12881484% 
     1-Dec-05                                    68.61568593% 
     1-Jan-06                                    69.11788658% 
     1-Feb-06                                    68.01059695% 
     1-Mar-06                                    68.45610218% 
     1-Apr-06                                    68.94295338% 
     1-May-06                                    69.39542287% 
     1-Jun-06                                    69.89368785% 
     1-Jul-06                                    70.35483142% 
     1-Aug-06                                    59.54253982% 
     1-Sep-06                                    60.23433687% 
     1-Oct-06                                    60.83711422% 
     1-Nov-06                                    61.48282931% 
     1-Dec-06                                    62.07286444% 
     1-Jan-07                                    63.01508335% 
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                        Schedule B 
 
                    Casualty Loss Value 
 
 
  Casualty Loss                                 Casualty Loss 
   Value Date                                      Value* 
 
     1-Feb-07                                    52.29894836% 
     1-Mar-07                                    52.88475422% 
     1-Apr-07                                    53.51026720% 
     1-May-07                                    54.17181178% 
     1-Jun-07                                    54.79480800% 
     1-Jul-07                                    55.35594684% 
     1-Aug-07                                    55.12725076% 
     1-Sep-07                                    55.75477255% 
     1-Oct-07                                    56.39970825% 
     1-Nov-07                                    57.00451676% 
     1-Dec-07                                    57.67369789% 
     1-Jan-08                                    58.50203055% 
     1-Feb-08                                    47.36583338% 
     1-Mar-08                                    47.87712727% 
     1-Apr-08                                    48.46146145% 
     1-May-08                                    49.01690873% 
     1-Jun-08                                    49.60443520% 
     1-Jul-08                                    50.29549687% 
     1-Aug-08                                    50.43335982% 
     1-Sep-08                                    51.06955298% 
     1-Oct-08                                    51.62014818% 
     1-Nov-08                                    52.19089189% 
     1-Dec-08                                    52.94520509% 
     1-Jan-09                                    53.78468153% 
     1-Feb-09                                    42.52274055% 
     1-Mar-09                                    43.12903607% 
     1-Apr-09                                    43.44103716% 
     1-May-09                                    43.67187022% 
     1-Jun-09                                    44.00299389% 
     1-Jul-09                                    44.23783345% 
     1-Aug-09                                    44.47816720% 
     1-Sep-09                                    44.86956302% 
     1-Oct-09                                    45.15165582% 
     1-Nov-09                                    45.43672542% 
     1-Dec-09                                    45.94093905% 
     1-Jan-10                                    46.55739196% 
     1-Feb-10                                    34.68835258% 
     1-Mar-10                                    34.88939800% 
     1-Apr-10                                    35.20923858% 
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                         Schedule B 
 
                    Casualty Loss Value 
 
 
  Casualty Loss                                  Casualty Loss 
   Value Date                                      Value* 
 
     1-May-10                                    35.41472964% 
     1-Jun-10                                    35.76088844% 
     1-Jul-10                                    35.97094273% 
     1-Aug-10                                    36.18320029% 
     1-Sep-10                                    36.53432833% 
     1-Oct-10                                    36.75127240% 
     1-Nov-10                                    36.97050582% 
     1-Dec-10                                    37.45889622% 
     1-Jan-11                                    38.08721625% 
     1-Feb-11                                    28.05552265% 
     1-Mar-11                                    28.20510182% 
     1-Apr-11                                    28.48780375% 
     1-May-11                                    28.64103836% 
     1-Jun-11                                    28.95267076% 
     1-Ju1-11                                    29.10972462% 
     1-Aug-11                                    29.26842596% 
     1-Sep-11                                    29.58445382% 
     1-Oct-11                                    29.74707724% 
     1-Nov-11                                    29.91141676% 
     1-Dec-11                                    30.38355218% 
     1-Jan-12                                    31.01707404% 
     1-Feb-12                                    22.25693927% 
     1-Mar-12                                    22.36152542% 
     1-Apr-12                                    22.61425164% 
     1-May-12                                    22.72182178% 
     1-Jun-12                                    23.00628305% 
     1-Jul-12                                    23.11704571% 
     1-Aug-12                                    22.18682575% 
     1-Sep-12                                    22.46712880% 
     1-Oct-12                                    22.57412273% 
     1-Nov-12                                    22.68224575% 
     1-Dec-12                                    23.13817840% 
     1-Jan-13                                    24.00000000% 
 
 
 
*  Expressed as a percentage of Acquisition Cost. 
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                          EXHIBIT A 
 
                   Description of Properties 
 
 
Property No. 1 (Plant #57): 
 
The Property having a street address of 2000 Boone Trail Road, 
Sanford, North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land 
referenced in the legal description below (see Annex 1A attached 
hereto) and all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment 
(regarding such Equipment, see Annex 1B attached hereto) on each 
such parcel of Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 
 
 



 
                             ANNEX 1A 
 
Tract 1 & 2:  2000 Boone Trail Road, Sanford, NC 
              Unifi Plants 57 & 58 
 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod and control corner located on the northern 
margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located 
South 56 degrees 38 minutes 03 seconds East 907.93 feet from N.C.G.S. 
marker "Animal", said corner also being South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50  
seconds East along said northern margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway  
421 292.40 feet from a found iron rod marking the westernmost corner of the 
property of George R. Perkins, Jr. acquired by Deed recorded in Book 425, 
Page 102 of Lee County Public Registry, said found iron lying and being 
South 64 degrees 30 minutes 10 seconds East 634.71 feet from said N.C.G.S. 
marker "Animal"; and running thence, along a new division line in George R. 
Perkins, Jr. property from said set iron rod and control corner, North 50  
degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East passing through a set iron rod at 50.0 
feet, a total distance of 1115.00 feet to a set iron rod and new corner of 
Perkins; thence along another new division line in Perkins' property, South 39 
degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East 885.26 feet to a set iron rod; thence along 
a third new division line in Perkins' Property South 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 
seconds West passing through a set iron rod at 1,065.00 feet a total distance 
of 1,115.00 feet to a set iron rod on the northern margin of the right-of-way 
of U.S. Highway 421 said iron rod being North 81 degrees 52 minutes 25  
seconds East 158.37 feet from a nail located at the center of the crossover of  
U.S. Highway 421; thence with said northern margin of the right-of-way of  
U.S. Highway 421, North 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds West passing 
through a concrete right-of-way monument at 113.47 feet a total distance of 
885.26 feet to the set iron rod and control corner, marking the point and  
place of BEGINNING and containing 22.66 acres more or less according to 
a survey from George R. Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson Engineering Associates, 
P.A., dated June 17, 1993 to which reference is hereby made. 
 
 
 



 
 
          DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENTS ENCUMBERING THE PROPERTIES 
 
 
First Easement - Portion of Tract 1 & 2 
 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod and control corner located on the northern  
margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located South 
56 degrees 38 minutes 03 seconds East 907.93 feet from N.C.G.S. marker "Animal", 
said corner also being South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East along said 
northern margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421 292.40 feet from a  
found iron rod marking the western most corner of the property by George R. 
Perkins, Jr. acquired by Deed recorded in Book 425, Page 102 of the Lee County 
Public Registry, said found iron lying and being South 64 degrees 30 minutes 
10 seconds East 634.71 feet from said N.C.G.S. marker "Animal"; and running  
thence, along a new division line in George R. Perkins, Jr. property from  
said set iron and control corner, North 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds 
East 50.00 feet to a set iron rod; thence South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 
seconds East 50.00 feet to a point; thence South 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 
seconds West 50.00 feet to apoint on the northern margin of the right-of-way 
of U.S. Highway 421; thence, with said northern margin of the right-of-way 
of U.S. Highway 421, North 39 degrees 20 minute 50 seconds West 50.00 feet to  
the point of BEGINNING, said easement being located at the northwestern corner 
of that certain parcel containing 22.66 acres, more or less, according to a  
survey for George R. Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson Engineering Associates, P.A., 
dated June 17, 1993, to which reference is hereby made. 
 
 
Second Easement - Portion of Tract 1 & 2 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod located on the northern margin of the right- 
of-of way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located North 81 degrees 52  
minutes 25 seconds East 158.37 feet from a nail located at the center of the  
crossover of U.S. Highway 421, North 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds West  
100.00 feet to a point; thence, North 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East  
50.00 feet to a point; thence, South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East  
100 feet to a set iron rod in the southern boundary line of the 22.66 acres 
parcel hereinafter referenced; thence, with said boundary line South 50 degrees 
39 minutes 10 seconds West 50.00 feet to the point of BEGINNING, said easement 
being located at the southwestern corner of that certain parcel containing 
22.66 acres, more or less, according to a survey for George R. Perkins, Jr.  
by Dixon-Gibson Engineering Associates, P.A. dated June 17, 1993, to which 
reference is hereby made. 
 
 



 
                            ANNEX 1B 
 
                        PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 
 
PLANT                      ASSET                        
SITE                       NUMBER                  DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Plant No. 57               7116                    Heat Pump 
2000 Boone Trail Road      7122                    Air Conditioner 
Sanford, NC                7123                    Trane Heat Pump 
                           7166                    Trane Air Conditioning 
                           7170                    Window A/C Unit 
                           9880                    Filtration 
                           9881                    AC Unit Computer Room 
 
 



 
 
Property No. 2 Plant #58): 
 
The Property having a street address of 2000 Boone Trail Road, 
Sanford, North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land 
referenced in the legal description below (see Annex 2A attached 
hereto) and all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment 
(regarding such Equipment, see Annex 2B attached hereto) on each 
such parcel of Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 
 



 
                                ANNEX 2A 
 
 
Tract 1 & 2:  2000 Boone Trail Road, Sanford, NC 
              Unifi Plants 57 & 58 
 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod and control corner located on the northern 
margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located 
South 56 degrees 38 minutes 03 seconds East 907.93 feet from N.C.G.S. 
marker "Animal", said corner also being South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 
seconds East along said northern margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway  
421 292.40 feet from a found iron rod marking the westernmost corner of the  
property of George R. Perkins,Jr. acquired by Deed recorded in Book 425,  
Page 102 of the Lee County Public Registry, said found iron lying and being 
South 64 degrees 30 minutes 10 seconds East 634.71 feet from said N.C.G.S. 
marker "Animal"; and running thence, along a new division line in George R. 
Perkins, Jr. property from said set iron rod and control corner, North 50 
degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East passing through a set iron rod at 50.0 
feet, a total distance of 1115.00 feet to a set iron rod and new corner of  
Perkins; thence along another new division line in Perkins' property, South 39 
degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East 885.26 feet to a set iron rod; thence along 
a third new division line in Perkins' Property South 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 
seconds West passing through a set iron rod a 1,065.00 feet a total distance  
of 1,115.00 feet to a set iron rod on the northern margin of the right-of-way 
of U.S. Highway 421 said iron rod being North 81 degrees 52 minutes 25  
seconds East 158.37 feet from a nail located at the center of the crossover of 
U.S. Highway 421; thence with said northern margin of the right-of-way of  
U.S. Highway 421, North 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds West passing through 
a concrete right-of-way monument at 113.47 feet a total distance of 885.26 
feet to the set iron rod and control corner, marking the point and place of 
BEGINNING and containing 22.66 acres more or less according to a survey for  
George R. Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson Engineering Associates, P.A. dated 
June 17, 1993 to which reference is hereby made. 
 
 



 
 
 
               DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENTS ENCUMBERING THE PROPERTIES 
 
 
First Easement - Portion of Tract 1 & 2: 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod and control corner located on the northern 
margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located 
South 56 degrees 38 minutes 03 seconds East 907.93 feet from N.C.G.S. marker 
"Animal", said corner of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421 292.40 feet from 
a found iron rod marking the western most corner of the property of George R. 
Perkins, Jr. acquired by Deed recorded in Book 425, Page 102 of the Lee County  
Public Registry, said found iron lying and being South 64 degrees 30 minutes 10 
seconds East 634.71 feet from said N.C.G.S. marker "Animal"; and running thence, 
along a new division line in George R. Perkins, Jr. property from said set iron  
rod and control corner, North 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East 50.00 feet 
to a set iron rod; thence South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East 50.00 
feet to a point; thence South 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds West 50.00 feet 
to a point on the northern margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, North 
39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds West 50.00 feet to the point of BEGINNING, said 
easement being located at the northwestern corner of that certain parcel  
containing 22.66 acres, more or less, according to a survey for George R.  
Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson Engineering Associates, P.A. dated June 17, 1993, 
to which reference is hereby made. 
 
 
Second Easement - Portion of Tract 1 & 2 
 
     BEGINNING at a set iron rod located on the northern margin of the right-of- 
way of U.S. Highway 421, said corner being located North 81 degrees 52 minutes 
25 seconds East 158.37 feet from a nail located at the center of the crossover 
of U.S. Highway 421; thence, with said northern margin of the right-of-way of  
U.S. Highway 421, North 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds West 100.00 feet to a 
point; thence, North 50 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds East 50.00 feet to a  
point; thence, South 39 degrees 20 minutes 50 seconds East 100 feet to a set  
iron rod in the southern boundary line of the 22.66 acres parcel hereinafter  
referenced; thence with said boundary line, South 50 degrees 39 minutes 10  
seconds West 50.00 feet to the point of BEGINNING, said easement being located 
at the southwestern corner of that certain parcel containing 22.66 acres, more 
or less, according to a survey for George R. Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson 
Engineering Associates, P.A. dated June 17, 1993, to which reference is  
hereby made. 
 
 



 
 
                                ANNEX 2B 
 
 
PLANT                         ASSET                  
SITE                          NUMBER                DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Plant No. 58                  11116                 A/C Building 
2000 Boone Trail Road         11120                 Front Office A/C 
Sanford, NC                   7210                  Filtration System 
 
 



 
Property No. 3 (Plant #59): 
 
The Property having a street address of 1921 Boone Trail Road, 
Sanford, North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land 
referenced in the legal description below (see Annex 3A attached 
hereto) and all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment 
(regarding such Equipment, see Annex 3B attached hereto) on each 
such parcel of Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 



 
                            ANNEX 3A 
 
 
BEGINNING at an existing concrete monument in the southern margin of the 
right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said monument marking the easternmost 
corner of the Patterson property, Deed Book 55, Page 371, Lee County 
Registry and the northernmost corner of the property of George R. Perkins, 
Jr. on said right-of-way, acquired by Deed recorded in Book 499, Page 694, 
Lee County Registry; and running thence with said margin of the right-of-way 
South 41 degrees 17 minutes 19 seconds East 910.86 feet to an existing  
concrete monument; thence continuing with said right-of-way, South 41 
degrees 13 minutes 58 seconds East passing through a second existing 
concrete monument at 60.08 feet a total distance of 219.54 feet to a point in 
the centerline of a creek; thence with the center line of said creek the 
following twenty-one courses and distances: 1) South 68 degrees 17 minutes 
46 seconds West 14.24 feet to a point; 2) South 75 degrees 14 minutes 24 
seconds West 39.60 feet to a point; 3) North 83 degrees 50 minutes 13 
seconds West 36.26 feet to a point; 4) South 52 degrees 39 minutes 59 
seconds West 44.68 feet to a point; 5) North 83 degrees 25 minutes 24 
seconds West 30.93 feet to a point; 6) South 75 degrees 22 minutes 43 
seconds West 77.55 feet to a point; 7) South 66 degrees 04 minutes 40 
seconds West 79.56 feet to a point; 8) North 89 degrees 56 minutes 17  
seconds West 110.15 feet to a point; 9) South 35 degrees 20 minutes 45 
seconds West 43.40 feet to a point; 10) South 81 degrees 29 minutes 01 
seconds West 111.45 feet to a point; 11) South 87 degrees 45 minutes 48 
seconds West 93.72 feet to a point; 12) South 77 degrees 26 minutes 58 
seconds West 109.11 feet to a point; 13) South 56 degrees 33 minutes 06 
seconds West 90.00 feet to a point;  14) South 56 degrees 13 minutes 54  
seconds West 56.32 feet to a point; 15) South 41 degrees 54 minutes 39 
seconds West 100.70 feet to a point; 16) South 40 degrees 25 minutes 33 
seconds West 81.54 feet to a point; 17) South 55 degrees 42 minutes 39 
seconds West 158.29 feet to a point; 18) South 53 degrees 15 minutes 36 
seconds West 124.01 feet to a point; 19) South 52 degrees 14 minutes 42 
seconds West 128.50 feet to a point; 20) South 44 degrees 32 minutes 46 
seconds West 111.12 feet to a set iron pipe; 21) South 53 degrees 27 minutes 
04 seconds West 110.47 feet to a set iron pipe in Patterson's eastern line 
(Deed Book 290, Page 700, Lee County Registry); thence with Patterson's east 
line North 00 degrees 11 minutes 56 seconds East 316.00 feet to an existing 
iron pipe and control corner; thence continuing with Patterson, North 77  
degrees 40 minutes 52 seconds West 207.86 feet to an existing iron pipe and 
corner with Patterson; thence with the Patterson property acquired by Deeds 
recorded in Book 253, Page 746 and Book 55, Page 371, Lee County Registry, 
North 12 degrees 16 minutes 46 seconds East 1336.83 feet to an existing iron  
pipe in a gravel drive and a corner with Patterson; thence with the division 
line between Patterson and Perkins, South 86 degrees 00 minutes 02 secondes  
East 661.25 feet to the existing concrete monument, marking the point and  
place of BEGINNING and containing 33.58 acres more or less according to a  
survey for George R. Perkins, Jr. dated June 17, 1993 by Dixon-Gibson  
Engineering Associates, P.A. to which reference is hereby made. 
 
 



 
 
Third Easement - Portion of Tract 3: 
 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the centerline of a creek as same intersects with the  
southern margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421, said beginning point  
being the southeastern corner of the 33.58 acres parcel hereinafter referenced; 
running thence, from said beginning, with the centerline of said creek, the 
following four courses and distances:  (1) South 68 degrees 17 minutes 46  
seconds West 14.24 feet to a point; (2) South 75 degrees 14 minutes 24 seconds 
West 39.60 feet to a point; (3) North 83 degrees 50 minutes 13 seconds West 
36.26 feet to a point; (4) South 52 degrees 39 minutes 59 seconds West 21.51 
feet to a point; thence, leaving the creek, North 41 degrees 13 minutes 58 
seconds West 174.83 feet to a point; thence, North 48 degrees 46 minutes 02 
seconds East 100 feet to an existing concrete monument in the southern  
margin of the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 421; thence, with the 
southern margin of said right-of-way, South 41 degrees 13 minutes 48 seconds 
East 219.54 feet to the point of BEGINNING, said easement being located at 
the southeastern corner of that certain parcel containing 33.58 acres, more 
or less, according to a survey for George R. Perkins, Jr. by Dixon-Gibson  
Engineering Associates, P.A. dated June 17, 1993, to which reference is  
hereby made. 
 
 



 
                               ANNEX 3B 
 
PLANT                          ASSET          
SITE                           NUMBER      DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Plant No. 59                   7267        Filtration System (80% Complete) 
1921 Boone Trail Road          7268        Filtration System (60% Complete) 
Sanford, NC                    7374        Filtration System (90% Complete) 
                               8961        Tech Serv Off A/C 
                               8973        Filtration System 
                               8994        Filtration Expansion 
 
 



 
Property No. 4 (Plant #54): 
 
The Property having a street address of U.S. Highway 311, Walnut 
Cove, North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land 
referenced in the legal description below (see Annex 4A attached 
hereto) and all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment 
(regarding such Equipment, see Annex 4B attached hereto) on each 
such parcel of Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 
 
 



 
                                ANNEX 4A 
 
Tract 4:     US Highway 311, Walnut Cove, NC 
             Unifi Plant #54 
 
 
     BEGINNING at an iron stake located within the right-of-way of US Highway  
311 and marking the northeast corner of Carol B. Bailey (Book 263, Page 765),  
said point further being South 35 degrees 44 minutes 20 seconds East 33.87 feet 
and South 84 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds West 174.55 feet from a right of way 
monument; thence within the right of way of US Highway 311 to following courses 
and distances North 79 degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds East 297.0 feet to an iron, 
North 71 degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds East 234.30 feet to an iron, North 60 
degrees 45 minutes 40 seconds East 561.0 feet to an iron, and North 74 degrees  
45 minutes 40 seconds East 319.28 feet to an iron; thence leaving US Highway 
311 South 5 degrees 32 minutes 43 seconds West (passing over an existing iron 
stake being a control corner at 26.85 feet) for a total distance 443.51 feet to  
an existing iron stake (control corner) and marking the southwest corner of 
Hardin W. Brown (Book 188, Page 13); thence along the south line of said Brown 
South 85 degrees 45 minutes 56 seconds East 199.88 feet to an existing iron  
stake marking the southwest corner of Harry Duggins (Book 334, Page 293);  
thence along the south line of said Duggins South 85 degrees 44 minutes 18  
seconds East 217.68 feet to an existing iron stake in the West line of C. 
Randall Merry (Book 234, Page 866); thence along the west line of said Merry 
South 5 degrees 40 minutes 9 seconds West 1999.50 feet to an iron; thence South 
84 degrees 19 minutes 51 seconds East 198.00 feet to an iron; thence South 
5 degrees 40 minutes 9 seconds West 938.05 feet to an iron; thence along the  
north line of Mrs. Kate Neal Heirs (Book 291, Page 4) North 84 degrees 19  
minutes 51 seconds West 942.52 feet to an iron in the east margin of said 
Bailey (Book 263, Page 765); thence along the east line of said Bailey North 5 
degrees 40 minutes 9 seconds Eat 1700.0 feet to an iron; thence North 35  
degrees 44 minutes 20 seconds West 1372.89 feet to an iron on the south margin 
of US Highway 311; thence continuing North 35 degrees 44 minutes 20 seconds 
West 33.87 feet to an iron, THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  This description as per 
as-built survey for Vintage Yarns by C. E. Robertson and Associates, RLS, dated 
May 23, 1990, to which reference is made for more specific description.  Being 
the same property described in Book 32, Page 1892. 
 
     Save and except from the above described property that 0.918 acre tract 
     conveyed to the Town of Walnut Cove by deed recorded March 22, 1993 in  
     Book 364 at Page 772 of the Stokes County Public Registry (designated 
     thereon as Tract 1) and subject to the 30 feet easement granted to the  
     Town by said deed (designated at Tract 2). 
 
 



 
                                 ANNEX 4B 
 
 
PLANT                      ASSET                 
SITE                       NUMBER          DESCRIPTION 
 
Plant No. 54               8406            Air Filtration System 
US Highway 311             9206            Plant Addition - HVAC (Job #1466) 
Walnute Cove, NC           9212            A/C Duct for Office & Buster Fan 
                           9213            Air Filtration System 
                           9214            Air Filtration System 
 
 



 
Property No. 5 (Plants #51-53): 
 
The Property having a street address of NC Highway 87, Eden, 
North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land referenced in 
the legal description below (see Annex 5A attached hereto) and 
all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment (regarding such 
Equipment, see Annex 5B attached hereto) on each such parcel of 
Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 
 
 



 
                               ANNEX 5A 
 
 
Tract 5:     NC Highway 87, Eden, NC 
             Unifi Plants #51 - 53 
 
 
     BEGINNING at an existing iron stake located within the right of way of NC 
Highway 87, said beginning point marking the northeast corner of Beatrice W. 
Austin (Book 596, Page 249); thence leaving NC Highway 87 South 50 degrees 16 
minutes 46 seconds West 199.18 feet to an existing iron stake, South 50 degrees 
7 minutes 39 Seconds West 133.34 feet to an existing iron stake, South 50  
degrees 14 minutes 49 seconds West 90.14 feet to an existing iron stake, South 
50 degrees 13 minutes 58 West 150.16 feet to an existin iron stake, South 50 
degrees 21 minute 28 seconds West 199.29 feet to an iron stake in old pine stump 
stump (control corner), South 48 degrees 15 minutes West 1411.70 feet to an  
iron stake (control corner), and South 47 degrees 54 minutes 17 seciond West  
279.24 feet to an existing iron stake on the north right of way margin of SR  
1560 and marking the southeast corner of Milton L. Overby (Book 781, Page  
435); thence leaving SR 1560 and along the east line of Overby and Gordon C.  
Pruitt (Book 787, Page 790) North 31 degrees 48 minutes 51 seconds West  
1397.10 feet to an existing iron stake; thence North 55 degrees 35 minutes 25 
seconds East 323.76 feet to an existing iron stake; thence North 55 degrees  
36 minutes 9 seconds East 223.96 feet to an existing iron stake; thence North 
54 degrees 59 minutes 20 seconds East 348.35 feet to an existing iron stake;  
thence North 55 degrees 32 minutes 12 seconds East 530.77 feet to an existing 
iron stake; thence North 55 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds East 630.59 feet to 
an existing iron stake thence North 55 degrees 24 minutes 3 seconds East  
218.0 feet to an oak tree; thence North 35 degrees 12 minutes 29 seconds West 
95.25 feet to an existing iron stake; thence North 55 degrees 23 minutes 34  
seconds East 39.98 feet to an existing iron stake within the right of way of  
NC Highway 87; thence within the right of way of Highway 87 South 36 degrees  
21 minutes 6 seconds East 93.12 feet to an iron; thence South 36 degrees 26  
minutes 53 seconds East 607.32 feet to an iron; thence South 39 degrees 17  
minutes 59 seconds East 511.0 feet to an existing iron stake, THE POINT OF  
BEGINNING.  This description as per as-built survey for Vintage Yarns by C.  
E. Robertson and Associates, RLS, dated May 28, 1990, to which reference is  
made for more specific description.  Being the same property described in  
Deed Book 787, Page 790. 
 
 



 
                                 ANNEX 5B 
 
 
PLANT                       ASSET               
SITE                        NUMBER          DESRIPTION 
 
 
Plant No. 51-53              1080           HVAC 
NC Highway 87                8549           Duct Work 
Eden, NC                     8551           Duct Work 
                             8553           Duct Work - Annex 
                             8556           Duct Work - Annex 
                             8560           Duct Work - Annex 
                             8561           Duct Work - Annex 
                             9614           A/C for Conference Room 
                             9620           HVAC Addtns 
                             9621           HVAC Equipment 
                             9622           HVAC Equipment 
                             9623           HVAC & Filtration Addtns 
                             9624           HVAC & Filtration Addtns 
                             9625           HVAC & Filtration Addtns 
                             9626           HVAC & Filtration Addtns 
                             9627           HVAC & Filtration Addtns 
                             9628           HVAC & Filtration 
 
 



 
 
Property No. 6 (Plant #15): 
 
The Property having a street address of 127 Cardwell Road, 
Mayodan, North Carolina, which includes each parcel of Land 
referenced in the legal description below (see Annex 6A attached 
hereto) and all Improvements, all Fixtures and all Equipment 
(regarding such Equipment, see Annex 6B attached hereto) on each 
such parcel of Land or otherwise associated therewith. 
 
 
 



 
                               ANNEX 6A 
 
 
Tract 6:     127 Cardwell Road, Mayodan, NC 
             Unifi Plant #15 
 
 
     BEGINNING at an existing iron pipe, a control corner that marks the 
southeastern corner of the 8.39 acre tract of land now or formerly owned by 
the Town of Mayodan, and more particularly described in Deed Book 738, Page 703; 
said pipe also lies North 53 degrees 52 minutes 25 seconds East 430.00 feet from 
and existing iron pipe, another control corner; thence a line with the Town of 
Mayodan, North 32 degrees 17 minutes 31 seconds West 371.00 feet to an existing 
iron pipe; and North 11 degrees 24 minutes 31 seconds West 339.99 feet to an  
existing iron pipe; thence a line with Robert Clyde Thompson, the following 
three (3) courses and distances:  North 57 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds East 
345.00 feet to an existing iron pipe, North 38 degrees 00 minutes 29 seconds  
East 482.52 feet to an existing iron pipe, North 37 degrees 08 minutes 25  
seconds East crossing an existin iron pipe that lies in the western right-of- 
way margin of a private road at 242.55 feet, a total distance of 348.41 feet to  
an existing iron pipe, said iron pipe lies in the approximate center of the  
terminus point for N.C. State Road #2216 (Cardwell Road); thence South 60 
degrees 26 minutes 31 seconds East crossing an iron pipe at 21.89 feet, a total 
distance of 26.14 feet to a pipe that lies in the eastern right-of-way margin of 
N.C. State Road #2216; thence with the eastern right-of-way margin of said  
road, North 28 degrees 28 minutes 20 seconds East crossing a new iron pipe at 
221.86 feet, a total distance of 826.37 feet to a new iron pipe; thence leaving 
said road a line with Duke Power Company (See Deed Book 649, Page 39), property 
now or formerly owned by Rosa B. Martin, and property owned by Lee D. Tuttle, 
South 64 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East crossing a concrete monument at  
750.09 feet and an existing iron pipe, a control corner, at 1.378.28 feet, a  
total distance of 2,035.54 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence with property 
now or formerly owned by Lauten, South 21 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds West 
265.57 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence with R. A. Foley (Seed Deed Book 
668, Page 378) South 25 degrees 28 minutes 29 seconds West 295.78 feet to an 
existing iron pipe; thence with the Town of Mayodan (See Plant Book 19, Page 4) 
North 63 degrees 41 minutes 04 seconds West 974.23 feet to an existing iron  
pipe; thence continuing with the Town of Mayodan, South 53 degrees 52 minutes 
25 seconds West crossing an existing iron pipe in the eastern margin of a  
private road at 1,823.21 feet, a total distance of 2,083.35 feet to the place  
and point of beginning, and containing 56.774 acres, not including the 2.13 acre 
strip of land that is excluded as set forth hereinafter, as per survey of  
Vaughn Survey Company, dated May 31, 1988, and entitled "Survey Plant for 
Nathaniel D. Cardwell". 
 
     Save and except from the above described property that 2.214 acre tract  
conveyed to the Town of Mayodan by deed recorded December 14, 1994 in Book 912 
at Page 778 with reservation of right of use and excepting a 0.06 acre tract 
from that conveyance. 
 
 



 
                                ANNEX 6B 
 
 
PLANT                  ASSET 
SITE                   NUMBER      DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Plant No. 15           1867        Air Conditioning 
127 Cardwell Road      3936        Air Conditioning Environmental Air Systems 
Mayodan, NC            3938        Air Conditioning Environmental Air Systems 
 
 



 
                              EXHIBIT B 
 
           Form of Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate 
 
 
               Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate 
 
     This Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate is dated 
May 20, 1997 and is executed by NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. 
CORPORATION, a North Carolina corporation ("Lessor") and UNIFI 
MANUFACTURING, INC., a NORTH CAROLINA corporation ("Lessee") 
pursuant to Section 4 of the Lease Agreement, dated as of May 20, 
1997 between Lessee and Lessor (the "Agreement").  All 
capitalized terms used herein but not defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to such terms in the Agreement. 
 
     Lessee hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Properties 
specified on Schedule 1 hereto (the "Properties") have been 
delivered to Lessee on the date hereof at the delivery place 
described below, and that, as between Lessor and Lessee, the 
Properties (a) have been inspected to the complete satisfaction 
of Lessee, (b) is in good operating order, repair and condition, 
(c) is of a size, design, capacity, manufacture and construction 
selected by Lessee, (d) is suitable for Lessee's purposes, (e) 
has been unconditionally accepted by Lessee on the date hereof, 
for all purposes of the Agreement, and (f) is subject to all of 
the terms, conditions and provisions of the Agreement.  Lessee 
further acknowledges, agrees and certifies that Lessor has made 
no warranty, express or implied, with respect to the Properties 
and that the insurance policies, certificates or other documents 
evidencing the coverages required under the Agreement have been 
delivered to Lessor. 
 
     Lessee hereby leases from Lessor the Properties upon and 
subject to all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the 
Agreement, and Lessor and Lessee further agree and state as 
follows: 
 
1.   The aggregate Acquisition Cost is $27,500,000; the 
Acquisition Cost for each Property and the allocation of such 
costs among Land, Improvements and Equipment is as set forth 
below:   
 
                     (SEE ATTACHED RIDERS) 
 
2.   The Term commences on May 20, 1997 and ends on January 1, 
2013, both dates inclusive, unless sooner terminated in 
accordance with the provisions of the Agreement. 
 
3.   The Basic Payment for the Properties for each semi-annual 
period of the Term is in an amount equal to the Basic Payment 
Factor multiplied by the aggregate Acquisition Cost. 
 
4.   Lessor will claim the cost recovery deductions with respect 
to the Properties identified above as follows: 
 
 



 
                                              Depreciation 
Properties             Cost                   Deductions                
 
Land                $ 1,005,000               None 
 
Improvements        $24,385,000               39 years on the straight 
                                              line method 
 
Equipment           $ 2,110,000               The following percentages of   
                                              the Acquisition Cost  
                                              for the Equipment set forth  
                                              above:  14.2857% in taxable  
                                              year ending 12/31/97 and  
                                              24.4898%, 17.4927%, 12.4948%, 
                                              8.9249%, 8.9249%, 8.9249% and  
                                              4.4624%, respectively, 
                                              in the 7 succeeding taxable 
                                              years. 
 
 
     TOTAL:         $27,500,000 
 
 
5.   This Lease Supplement may be executed in as many 
counterparts as shall be determined by the parties hereto when so 
executed, and each such counterpart shall be binding on both 
parties hereto, notwithstanding that both parties are not 
signatories to the same counterpart. 
 
 
     [The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.] 
 
 



 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 
Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above 
written. 
 
                              NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. 
                              CORPORATION 
                               
 
                              By:_______________________________ 
                                 Name:  ________________________ 
                                 Title: ________________________ 
 
 
 
                              UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC. 
 
 
                              By:_______________________________ 
                                 Name:  ________________________ 
                                 Title: ________________________ 
 
 
 
 
COUNTERPART NO. _____ OF _____ SERIALLY NUMBERED MANUALLY 
EXECUTED COUNTERPARTS.  TO THE EXTENT IF ANY THAT THIS DOCUMENT 
CONSTITUTES CHATTEL PAPER UNDER THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, NO 
SECURITY INTEREST IN THIS DOCUMENT MAY BE CREATED THROUGH THE 
TRANSFER AND POSSESSION OF ANY COUNTERPART OTHER THAN COUNTERPART 
NO. 1. 
 



 
 
                               Schedule 1 
 
                        Description of Properties 
 
 
 



 
                                Rider 
 
 
1.   Property No. 1 (Plant #57) 
          Land -                           $   80,000 
          Improvements   -                 $1,370,000 
          Equipment -                      $  150,000          
          TOTAL                            $1,600,000 
 
2.   Property No. 2 (Plant #58) 
          Land -                           $   80,000 
          Improvements   -                 $2,350,000 
          Equipment -                      $  270,000 
          TOTAL                            $2,700,000 
      
3.   Property No. 3 (Plant #59) 
          Land -                          $  225,000 
          Improvements   -                $6,495,000 
          Equipment -                     $  780,000 
          TOTAL                           $7,500,000 
 
4.   Property No. 4 (Plant #54) 
          Land -                          $  210,000 
          Improvements   -                $3,250,000 
          Equipment -                     $  240,000 
          TOTAL                           $3,700,000 
 
5.   Property No.5 (Plants # 51-53) 
          Land -                          $  240,000 
          Improvements   -                $7,750,000 
          Equipment -                     $  410,000 
          TOTAL                           $8,400,000 
 
6.   Property No. 6 (Plant #15) 
          Land -                          $  170,000 
          Improvements   -                $3,170,000 
          Equipment -                     $  260,000 
          TOTAL                           $3,600,000 
 
 



 
                                EXHIBIT C 
 
 
  Form of Memorandum of Lease and Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate 
 
 
Recordation requested by: 
 
Moore & Van Allen, PLLC 
 
 
 
 
After recordation return to: 
 
Moore & Van Allen, PLLC (WMA) 
NationsBank Corporate Center 
100 North Tryon Street, Floor 47 
Charlotte, NC  28202-4003 
                                        Space above this line  
                                        for Recorder's use 
                                                                  
 
                     MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AGREEMENT AND 
                LEASE SUPPLEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
     THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AGREEMENT AND LEASE SUPPLEMENT 
ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE ("Memorandum"), dated as of May 20, 1997, 
is by and between NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. CORPORATION, a 
Delaware corporation with its principal place of business at 
NationsBank Plaza, NC1-002-38-20, 101 South Tryon Street, 
Charlotte, NC 28255 (hereinafter referred to as "Lessor") and 
UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC., a North Carolina corporation, with its 
principal place of business at 7201 West Friendly Avenue, 
Greensboro, North Carolina  27419 (hereinafter referred to as 
"Lessee"). 
 
                              WITNESSETH: 
 
     That for value received, Lessor and Lessee do hereby 
covenant, promise and agree as follows: 
 
     1.   Demised Premises and Date of Lease.  Lessor has leased 
to Lessee, and Lessee has leased from Lessor, for the Term (as 
hereinafter defined), certain real properties and other property 
located in _______________, which is described in the attached 
Schedule 1 (collectively, the "Properties"), pursuant to the 
terms of a Lease Agreement between Lessor and Lessee dated as of 
May 20, 1997 (as such may be amended, modified, extended, 
supplemented, restated and/or replaced from time to time, the 
"Lease") and a Lease Supplement and Acceptance Certificate 
 
 



 
between Lessor and Lessee dated as of May 20, 1997 (as such may 
be amended, modified, extended, supplemented, restated and/or 
replaced from time to time, the "Lease Supplement"). 
 
     2.   Term; Termination Option; and Purchase Option.  The 
term of the Lease for the Properties ("Term") commenced as of May 
20, 1997 and shall end as of January 1, 2013, unless the Term is 
earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the 
Lease.  The Lease does not contain provisions for renewal or 
extension.  Under the Lease, the tenant has an early termination 
option, an early purchase option and a purchase option at the end 
of the Term. 
 
     3.   Tax Payer Numbers.   
 
          Lessor's tax payer number: 56-1994636. 
 
          Lessee's tax payer number:  ____________________. 
 
     4.   True Lease.  The Lease is a lease intended as a true 
lease and not as a lease intended as security.  The parties 
hereto intend Lessor to be treated as the owner of the Properties 
for all purposes, including without limitation for federal and 
state income tax purposes, bankruptcy purposes, commercial law 
purposes and real estate law purposes.  Lessee will make no claim 
nor assert any right to the Properties or any component thereof 
inconsistent with Lessor's ownership thereof and will make 
appropriate entries upon its books and records reflecting 
Lessor's ownership of the Properties and each component thereof. 
 
     5.   Effect of Memorandum.  The purpose of this instrument 
is to give notice of the Lease and the Lease Supplement and their 
respective terms, covenants and conditions to the same extent as 
if the Lease and the Lease Supplement were fully set forth 
herein.  This Memorandum shall not modify in any manner the 
terms, conditions or intent of the Lease or the Lease Supplement 
and the parties agree that this Memorandum is not intended nor 
shall it be used to interpret the Lease or the Lease Supplement 
or determine the intent of the parties under the Lease or the 
Lease Supplement. 
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     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed 
this instrument as of the day and year first written. 
 
                                 LESSOR: 
 
                                 NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. CORPORATION 
 
 
                                 By:  ___________________________ 
                                 Title:    ______________________ 
  
 
                                 LESSEE:  
 
                                 UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC. 
 
           
                                 By:  ___________________________ 
                                 Title:    ______________________ 
 
 



 
 
                               SCHEDULE 1 
 
                       (Description of Properties) 
 
 
 



 
   
 
                   [CONFORM TO STATE LAW REQUIREMENTS] 
 
STATE OF _______________ ) 
                         ) ss: 
COUNTY OF ______________ ) 
 
     The foregoing Lease Supplement was acknowledged before me, 
the undersigned Notary Public, in the County of _________________ 
this _____ day of ______________, by ________________, as 
__________________ of NATIONSBANC LEASING & R.E. CORPORATION, a 
Delaware corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
[Notarial Seal]                   _____________________________          
                                  Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:____________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF _______________ ) 
                         ) ss: 
COUNTY OF ______________ ) 
 
     The foregoing Lease Supplement was acknowledged before me, 
the undersigned Notary Public, in the County of _________________ 
this _____ day of ______________, by ________________, as 
__________________ of UNIFI MANUFACTURING, INC., a North Carolina 
corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
[Notarial Seal]                    ______________________________ 
                                   Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:____________ 
 



                               EXHIBIT (11) 
 
                     COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE 
                       UNIFI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                 (Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 
 
                                                    Years Ended  
                                   ------------------------------------------ 
                                   June 29, 1997  June 30,1996  June 25, 1995 
                                   -------------  ------------  ------------- 
Primary 
   Weighted average number of  
    shares outstanding               63,294          65,726         69,005 
   Net effect of dilutive  
    stock options- based on  
    the treasury stock method  
    using average  market price         641             485            537 
                                   ------------  -------------  ------------- 
   Total                              63,935         66,211          69,542 
                                   ============  =============  ============= 
 
   Net Income                      $ 115,665     $   72,479      $  116,171 
                                   ============  =============  ============= 
 
   Per Share Amount                $    1.81     $     1.09      $     1.67 
                                   ============  =============  ============= 
 
Fully Diluted 
   Weighted average number of  
    shares outstanding                63,294         65,726          69,005 
   Assumed Conversion of 6%  
    convertible subordinated  
    notes                                  -              *           7,753 
   Net effect of dilutive stock  
    options-based on the treasury  
    stock method using the  
    year-end market price, if 
    higher than average market  
    price                                715            525             544 
                                   -----------  -------------   -------------  
   Total                              64,009         66,251          77,302 
                                   ==========   =============   ============= 
 
   Net Income                      $ 115,665    $    72,479     $   116,171 
   Add 6% convertible subordinated  
    notes interest, net of tax             -              *           8,703 
                                   ---------    -----------     ------------ 
   Total                           $ 115,665    $    72,479     $   124,874 
                                   =========    ===========     =========== 
 
   Per Share Amount                $    1.81    $      1.09     $      1.62 
                                   =========    ===========     =========== 
 
*   Conversion of the 6% convertible subordinated notes was not considered for  
this computation because its effect is antidilutive.  Accordingly, fully diluted 
earning per share for this period has been reported consistent with the primary 
earnings per share results. 



 
                                     EXHIBIT (13a) 
 
 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
 
                                                                          
    
(Amounts in thousands) 
                                                                      June 29, 1997       June 30, 1996 
 
                                                                                     
ASSETS: 
Current assets: 
  Cash and cash equivalents                                            $    9,514         $   24,473 
  Receivables                                                             224,233            199,361 
  Inventories                                                             142,263            132,946 
  Other current assets                                                      3,688              5,095 
                                                                        ------------      ----------- 
    Total current assets                                                  379,698            361,875 
                                                                        ------------      ----------- 
Property, plant and equipment: 
  Land                                                                      6,836              6,249 
  Buildings and air conditioning                                          216,441            212,581 
  Machinery and equipment                                                 739,599            659,678 
  Other                                                                   184,272            148,620 
                                                                        ------------      ----------- 
                                                                        1,147,148          1,027,128 
  Less: accumulated depreciation                                          548,775            477,752 
                                                                        ------------      ----------- 
                                                                          598,373            549,376 
Other noncurrent assets                                                    40,632             39,833 
                                                                        ------------      ----------- 
                                                                       $1,018,703         $  951,084 
                                                                       ===========        =========== 
 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Current liabilities: 
  Accounts payable                                                     $  119,623         $  110,107 
  Accrued expenses                                                         35,854             39,895 
  Income taxes                                                              6,887             15,651 
  Current maturities of long-term debt                                      1,189                 -- 
                                                                       ----------         ----------  
    Total current liabilities                                             163,553            165,653 
                                                                       ----------         ---------- 
Long-term debt                                                            255,799            170,000 
                                                                       ----------         ---------- 
Deferred income taxes                                                      50,820             32,225 
                                                                       ----------         ---------- 
Shareholders' equity: 
  Common stock                                                              6,121              6,483 
  Capital in excess of par value                                               --             62,255 
  Retained earnings                                                       545,099            512,253 
  Cumulative translation adjustment                                        (2,689)             2,215 
                                                                       -----------        ---------- 
                                                                          548,531            583,206 
                                                                       -----------        ---------- 
                                                                       $1,018,703         $  951,084 
                                                                       ===========        ========== 
 
 
  
 
    The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
 
 
    
 
 
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)    June 29,1997         JUNE 30, 1996         June 25, 1995 
 
                                                                                   
Net sales                                      $    1,704,926        $    1,603,280        $    1,554,557 
                                               --------------        --------------        -------------- 
Costs and expenses: 



  Cost of sales                                    1,473,667            1,407,608            1,330,410 
  Selling, general and administrative expense         46,229               45,084               43,116 
  Interest expense                                    11,749               14,593               15,452 
  Interest income                                     (2,219)              (6,757)             (10,372) 
  Other income                                         1,218               (4,390)              (9,659) 
  Non-recurring charge                                    --               23,826                   -- 
                                               --------------         ------------         ------------- 
                                                   1,530,644            1,479,964            1,368,947 
                                               --------------         ------------         -------------  
Income before income taxes and extraordinary 
  item                                               174,282              123,316              185,610 
Provision for income taxes                            58,617               44,939               69,439 
                                               -------------           -----------         ------------ 
Income before extraordinary item                     115,665               78,377              116,171 
                                               -------------            ----------         ------------ 
Extraordinary item (net of applicable income 
  taxes of $3,692)                                        --                5,898                   -- 
                                               -------------            ----------         ------------ 
 
Net income                                        $  115,665           $   72,479           $  116,171 
                                               =============           ===========         ============ 
Per share data: 
  Primary earnings per share: 
    Income before extraordinary item              $     1.81           $     1.18           $     1.67 
    Extraordinary item                                    --                  .09                   -- 
                                               -------------           -----------         ------------ 
    Net income                                    $     1.81           $     1.09           $     1.67 
                                               =============           ===========         ============ 
  Fully diluted net income per share              $     1.81           $     1.09           $     1.62 
                                               =============           ===========         ============ 
 
 
  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                  Unrealized 
                                                                                                      Gains 
                                                                                                   (Losses) 
                                                          Capital in                  Cumulative         on 
(Amounts in thousands,            Shares      Common      Excess of    Retained       Translation   Certain 
except per share data)            Outstanding  Stock      Par Value    Earnings       Adjustment Investments 
 
                                                                                  
Balance June 26, 1994              70,433    $ 7,043     $ 199,959    $385,472     $   (3,060)     $    (892) 
                                  =======    =======     =========    ========     ===========     ========== 
                                                                   
  Purchase of stock               (3,362)       (336)    (83,414)         --            --            -- 
  Options exercised                   69           7         732          --            --            -- 
  Cash dividends -- 
    $.40 per share                    --          --          --     (27,681)           --            -- 
  Currency translation 
    adjustments                       --          --          --          --         7,475            -- 
  Change in unrealized gains 
    (losses) on certain 
    investments                       --          --          --          --            --         2,026 
  Net income                          --          --          --     116,171            --            -- 
                                 -------      ------    --------    --------        ------- 
Balance June 25, 1995             67,140       6,714     117,277     473,962         4,415         1,134 
                                 =======      ======    ========    ========        =======        ====== 
 
  Purchase of stock               (2,347)       (235)    (55,315)         --            --            -- 
  Options exercised                   36           4         242          --            --            -- 
  Conversion of 6% 
    subordinated notes                 2          --          51          --            --            -- 
  Cash dividends -- 
    $.52 per share                    --          --          --     (34,188)           --            -- 
  Currency translation 
    adjustments                       --          --          --          --        (2,200)           -- 
  Change in unrealized gains 
    (losses) on certain 
    investments                       --          --          --          --            --        (1,134) 
  Net income                          --          --          --      72,479            --            -- 
                                 -------      ------     -------    --------       --------       ------- 
Balance June 30, 1996             64,831       6,483      62,255     512,253         2,215            -- 
                                 =======      ======     =======    ========       ========       ======== 
 
 
  Purchase of stock               (3,901)       (390)    (64,786)    (55,824)           --            -- 
  Options exercised                  280          28       2,531      (1,404)           --            -- 
  Stock option tax benefit            --          --          --       2,307            --            -- 
  Cash dividends -- 
    $.44 per share                    --          --          --     (27,898)           --            -- 
  Currency translation 
    adjustments                       --          --          --          --        (4,904)           -- 
  Net income                          --          --          --     115,665            --            -- 
                                  ------      ------     -------    --------        --------       ----- 
Balance June 29, 1997             61,210      $6,121     $    --    $545,099        $(2,689)       $  -- 
                                  ======      ======     =======    ========        ========       ===== 
 
 
  
     The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
 
 
 
 
 
(Amounts in thousands)                                    June 29, 1997    June 30, 1996    June 25, 1995 
 
                                                                                             
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year            $     24,473   $     60,350      $   80,653 
Operating activities: 
  Net income                                                   115,665         72,479         116,171 
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 
    by operating activities: 
    Extraordinary item (net of applicable income taxes)             --          5,898              -- 
    Income tax effect of extraordinary item                         --          3,692              -- 
    Depreciation and amortization                               87,899         81,889          75,805 
    Non-cash portion of non-recurring charge                        --         23,826              -- 
    Gain on sale of investments                                     --         (4,476)         (6,697) 
    Deferred income taxes                                       17,157         (4,795)          7,505 
    Other                                                          314          4,263          (2,316) 
    Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effects 
      of acquisition and foreign currency adjustments: 
      Receivables                                              (26,441)         9,428         (11,665) 
      Inventories                                              (10,032)        13,640         (42,751) 
      Other current assets                                        (462)           987              27 
      Payables and accruals                                      9,260         (5,865)         19,804 
      Income taxes                                              (9,524)           490            (542) 
                                                            -----------     ----------      ---------- 
  Net -- operating activities                                  183,836        201,456         155,341 
                                                            -----------     ----------      ---------- 
 
Investing activities: 
  Capital expenditures                                        (143,176)      (133,967)        (88,941) 
  Purchase of investments                                           --        (60,474)        (93,671) 
  Acquisition                                                       --        (48,444)             -- 
  Sale of capital assets                                         3,046          2,290           3,479 
  Sale of investments                                               --        149,015          94,379 
  Sale of subsidiary                                                --             --          13,798 
  Proceeds from notes receivable                                   768         11,444           5,311 
  Other                                                         (2,250)            --               3 
                                                            -----------     ----------       --------- 
  Net -- investing activities                                 (141,612)       (80,136)        (65,642) 
                                                            -----------     ----------       --------- 
Financing activities: 
  Borrowing of long-term debt                                  187,500        225,000              -- 
  Repayments of long-term debt                                (100,513)      (284,949)             -- 
  Premium paid on early retirement of debt                          --         (7,657)             -- 
  Issuance of Company stock                                      3,462            246             739 
  Stock option tax benefit                                       2,307             --              -- 
  Purchase and retirement of Company stock                    (121,000)       (55,550)        (83,750) 
  Cash dividends paid                                          (27,898)       (34,188)        (27,681) 
                                                            -----------     ----------      ---------- 
  Net -- financing activities                                  (56,142)      (157,098)       (110,692) 
                                                            -----------     ----------      ---------- 
Currency translation adjustment                                 (1,041)           (99)            690 
                                                            -----------     ----------      ---------- 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents           (14,959)       (35,877)        (20,303) 
                                                            -----------     ----------      --------- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                     $   9,514      $  24,473       $  60,350 
                                                            ===========     ==========      ========== 
Supplemental cash flow information: 
  Cash payments for: 
    Interest, net of amounts capitalized                     $  12,064      $  18,520       $  14,777 
    Income taxes, net of refunds                                45,726         38,427          61,495 
  Non-cash investing and financing activities: 
    Note receivable obtained from sale of an affiliate       $      --      $      --       $  10,436 
    Redemption of 6% convertible subordinated notes                 --          1,983              -- 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
 
NOTE 1     ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION 
 
   PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION: The consolidated financial statements include 
the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries. The accounts of all foreign 
subsidiaries have been included on the basis of fiscal periods ended three 
months or less prior to the dates of the consolidated balance sheets. All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 
 
   FISCAL YEAR: The Company's fiscal year is the fifty-two or fifty-three 
weeks ending the last Sunday in June. The current year ended June 29, 1997,  
consisted of fifty-two weeks. The year ended June 30, 1996, consisted of  
fifty-three weeks and the year ended June 25, 1995, consisted of fifty-two  
weeks. 
 
   RECLASSIFICATION: The Company has reclassified the presentation of certain 
prior year information to conform with the current presentation format. 
 
   REVENUE RECOGNITION: Substantially all revenue from sales is recognized at 
the time shipments are made.   
 
   FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION: Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries 
are translated at year-end rates of exchange and revenues and expenses are 
translated at the average rates of exchange for the year. Gains and losses 
resulting from translation are accumulated in a separate component of 
shareholders' equity. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency  
transactions (transactions denominated in a currency other than the subsidiary's 
functional currency) are included in net income. 
 
   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Cash equivalents are defined as short-term 
investments having an original maturity of three months or less. 
 
   RECEIVABLES: Certain customer accounts receivable are factored without  
recourse with respect to credit risk. An allowance for losses is provided 
for known and potential losses rising from yarn quality claims and for  
customers not factored based on a periodic review of these accounts. Reserve  
for such losses was $5.5 million at June 29, 1997, and $6.6 million at June  
30, 1996. 
  
  INVENTORIES: The Company utilizes the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for 
valuing certain inventories representing 61% of all inventories at June 29, 
1997, and the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method for all other inventories. 
Inventory values computed by the LIFO method are lower than current market 
values. Inventories valued at current or replacement cost would have been  
approximately $13.9 million and $13.1 million in excess of the LIFO valuation at 
June 29, 1997, and June 30, 1996, respectively. Finished goods, work in process, 
and raw materials and supplies at June 29, 1997, and June 30, 1996, amounted to 
$72.0 million and $60.4 million; $11.8 million and $13.3 million; and $58.5 
million and $59.2 million, respectively. 
 
   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost. Depreciation is computed for asset groups primarily utilizing the 
straight-line method for financial reporting and accelerated methods for  
tax reporting. 
 
   OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS: Other noncurrent assets at June 29, 1997, and June 
30, 1996, consist primarily of the cash surrender value of key executive life 
insurance policies ($6.5 million and $6.0 million, respectively), and goodwill 
related to acquisitions ($32.1 million and $32.5 million, respectively).  
The goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line method over a fifteen year 
period. Accumulated amortization at June 29, 1997, was $3.7 million. 
 
   LONG-LIVED ASSETS: Long-lived assets, including goodwill, are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future  
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a  
loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying  
value of the asset. 
 
   INCOME TAXES: The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated 
federal income tax return. Income tax expense is computed on the basis of  
transactions entering into pretax operating results. Deferred income taxes  
have been provided for the tax effect of temporary differences between  
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and 
liabilities.  Income taxes have not been provided on the undistributed  
earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are deemed to be  
permanently invested. 
 
   EARNINGS PER SHARE: Earnings per common and common equivalent share are 



computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding plus, to the extent applicable, common stock equivalents. Average 
common and common equivalent shares for primary earnings per share were  
63,935,335, 66,211,344 and 69,542,155 for fiscal years 1997, 1996 and 1995, 
respectively. Fully diluted earnings per share amounts are based on 64,008,751, 
66,251,444 and 77,302,035 shares for 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The 
effect of the convertible subordinated notes, which were redeemed in the fourth 
quarter of the prior year, was antidilutive for the fiscal year 1996.   
Accordingly, fully diluted weighted average shares have been reported consistent 
with the primary weighted average shares with respect to these notes. 
 
   STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: In October 1995, the FASB issued Statement No. 123, 
"Stock-Based Compensation," (SFAS 123). SFAS 123 was effective beginning with 
the Company's first quarter of fiscal year 1997. With adoption of SFAS 123, the 
Company continues to measure compensation expense for its stock-based employee 
compensation plans using the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB Opinion 
No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees." Had the fair value-based 
method encouraged by SFAS 123 been applied in measuring compensation expense, 
net income in fiscal 1997 and 1996 would have been $115.1 million, or $1.80 per 
share, and $70.1 million, or $1.06 per share, respectively. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
   The fair value amounts utilized in the previous paragraph were determined 
using the Black Scholes option-pricing model which values options based on  
the stock price at the grant date, the expected life of the option, the  
estimated volatility of the stock, expected dividend payments, and the  
risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The maximum term 
of the option (10 years) was used as the expected life of the option. The  
expected volatility was estimated based on stock prices for the twenty-six  
quarters preceding the grant date. The dividend yield was calculated by  
averaging the historical dividend yield over the prior four fiscal 
years. The risk-free interest rate was the rate available on zero coupon  
U.S. government issues with a term equal to the remaining term for each grant.   
The effects of applying SFAS 123 on the proforma disclosure of net income and 
earnings per share are not likely representative of the effects on future years 
due to the vesting schedule associated with certain grants which span over 
several fiscal years. 
 
   RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS: In June 1996, the FASB issued Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 125, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing 
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities," (SFAS 125). SFAS 125 
became effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets and  
extinguishments of liabilities beginning with the Company's third quarter of 
fiscal 1997. The adoption of this Standard did not and is not expected to impact 
the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash 
flows. 
 
   In February 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 128, "Earnings per Share," (SFAS 128) which is required to be adopted in the 
December 1997 fiscal quarter. At that time, the Company will be required to 
change the method currently used to compute earnings per share and to restate 
all prior periods. Under the new requirements for calculating basic earnings per 
share, the dilutive effect of stock options will be excluded. The Company has 
determined that the impact of SFAS 128 will not have a significant effect on the 
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share. 
 
   USE OF ESTIMATES: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
 
 
NOTE 2          ACQUISITION 
 
   The acquisition of the Norlina Division of Glen Raven Mills, Inc. was 
consummated on November 17, 1995. The acquisition, which is not deemed  
significant to the Company's consolidated net assets or the results of 
operations, has been accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the net 
assets and operations have been included in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements beginning on the date the acquisition was consummated. The purchase 
price of $48.4 million was allocated to the net assets acquired with the excess 
of cost over fair value of the net assets acquired being approximately $35.7 
million after giving effect to all purchase adjustments. The excess of cost over 
fair value of net assets acquired is being amortized on a straight-line basis 
over 15 years. 
 
 
NOTE 3          NON-RECURRING CHARGE 
 
   During the fiscal 1996 first quarter, the Company recognized a non-recurring 
charge to earnings of $23.8 million ($14.9 million after-tax or $0.23 per share) 
related to restructuring plans to further reduce the Company's cost structure 
and improve productivity through the consolidation of certain manufacturing 
operations and the disposition of under-utilized assets. The restructuring plan 
focused on the consolidation of production facilities acquired via mergers 
during the preceding four years. As part of the restructuring action, the 
Company closed its spun cotton manufacturing facilities in Edenton and Mount 
Pleasant, North Carolina with the majority of the manufacturing production being 
transferred to other facilities. The significant components of the non-recurring 
charge include $2.4 million of severance and other employee-related costs from 
the termination of employees and a $21.4 million write-down to estimated fair 
value less the cost of disposal of under-utilized assets and consolidated  
facilities to be disposed. Costs associated with the relocation of equipment or 
personnel are being expensed as incurred. 
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   In connection with the plan of restructuring and corporate consolidation, the 
Company has incurred as of June 29, 1997, severance and other employee-related 
costs of $2.0 million associated with the termination of 574 employees. All 
aspects of the consolidation plan associated with the termination of employees 
has been accomplished. The remaining reserve of $0.4 million associated with 
severance and other employee related costs has been reclassified to the reserve 
for estimated losses from the disposal of assets and consolidated facilities. 
Through June 29, 1997, the Company has charged $16.9 million against the reserve 
established for anticipated losses from the disposal of under-utilized assets 
and consolidated facilities. The remaining reserve at June 29, 1997, amounts to 
$4.9 million. The Company has completed the majority of these restructuring 
efforts and anticipates no material differences in actual charges compared to 
its original estimates. 
 
 
NOTE 4          EXTRAORDINARY CHARGE 
 
   During the fiscal 1996 fourth quarter, the Company recognized an  
extraordinary after-tax charge of $5.9 million or $0.09 per share as a result of 
the redemption of the $230 million in 6% convertible subordinated notes due 
2002. In accordance with the debt agreement, the note holders had an option to 
convert their notes at a conversion rate of 33.7 shares of common stock for each 
$1,000 principal amount of notes. Notes aggregating $51,000 were converted into 
1,718 shares of common stock in accordance with this provision. The remaining 
notes, totaling $229.9 million, were redeemed at 103.33% of principal amount, 
with accrued interest to the date of redemption. 
 
 
NOTE 5          LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
   A summary of long-term debt follows: 
 
                                      June 29,    June 30, 
(Amounts in thousands)                    1997        1996 
- ----------------------------------------------------------                     
 
Revolving credit facility             $230,000    $170,000 
Sale-leaseback obligation               26,988          -- 
                                      --------    -------- 
    Total debt                         256,988     170,000 
Current maturities                       1,189          -- 
                                      --------    -------- 
    Total long-term debt              $255,799    $170,000 
                                      ========    ======== 
 
 
   The Company entered a $400 million revolving credit facility dated April 15, 
1996, with a group of financial institutions that extends through April 15, 
2001. The rate of interest charged is adjusted quarterly based on a pricing grid 
which is a function of the ratio of the Company's debt to earnings before  
income taxes, depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges. The credit 
facility provides the Company the option of borrowing at a spread over the base 
rate (as defined) for base rate loans or the Adjusted London Interbank Offered 
Rate (LIBOR) for Eurodollar loans. The weighted average interest rates for the 
fiscal year 1997 and the period from inception of the revolving credit facility 
to June 30, 1996, were 5.75% and 5.63%, respectively. Interest capitalized 
during fiscal 1997 was $0.9 million. The Company pays a quarterly facility fee 
ranging from 0.090%-0.150%, in accordance with the pricing grid, of the total 
amount available under the revolving credit facility. At June 29, 1997, the 
interest rate on the $230.0 million of debt outstanding was 5.87%. 
 
   The revolving credit facility also provides the Company the option to  
borrow funds competitively from the individual lenders, at their discretion,  
provided that the sum of the competitive bid loans and the aggregate funds  
committed under the revolving credit facility do not exceed the total  
committed amount.  The revolving credit facility allows the Company to reduce 
the outstanding commitment in whole or in part upon satisfactory notice up to 
an amount no less than the sum of the aggregate competitive bid loans and the 
total committed loans. Any such partial terminations are permanent. The  
Company may also elect to prepay loans in whole or in part. Amounts paid in  
accordance with this provision may be reborrowed. 
 
   The terms of the revolving credit facility contain, among other provisions, 
requirements for maintaining certain net worth and other financial ratios and 
specific limits or restrictions on additional indebtedness, liens and merger 
activity. Provisions under this agreement are not considered restrictive to 
normal operations or anticipated stockholder dividends. 
 
   On May 20, 1997, the Company entered into a sales-leaseback agreement with a 
financial institution whereby land, buildings and associated real and personal 



property improvements of certain manufacturing facilities were sold to the 
financial institution and will be leased by the Company over a sixteen year 
period. Sales proceeds aggregated $27.5 million. The terms of the agreement 
provide for an                                                     
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early purchase option at the end of year nine. If the agreement has not been 
terminated before the end of the lease term, by exercising the early purchase 
option or otherwise, the Company is required to purchase the leased properties 
at the end of the lease term for an amount equal to the fair market value as 
defined in the agreement. This transaction has been recorded as a direct  
financing arrangement. Payments are due semi-annually and are in varying  
amounts in accordance with the agreement. Principal payments required in  
years one through five following the fiscal year end June 29, 1997, are $1.2  
million in 1998, $0.7 million in 1999, $0.7 million in 2000, $0.8 million in  
2001 and $0.8 million in 2002. The interest rate implicit in the agreement is 
7.84%. 
 
   The fair value of the Company's long-term debt at June 29, 1997, approximates 
its carrying value. 
 
 
NOTE 6          INCOME TAXES 
 
   The provision for income taxes before extraordinary items consisted of 
the following: 
 
                                   June       June       June 
                                    29,        30,        25, 
(Amounts in thousands)             1997       1996       1995 
- -------------------------------------------------------------- 
                 
Currently payable: 
    Federal                     $34,235    $42,289    $51,597 
    State                         6,074      6,953      9,501 
    Foreign                       1,151        492        836 
                                -------    -------    ------- 
    Total current                41,460     49,734     61,934 
                                --------   --------   -------- 
Deferred: 
    Federal                      18,929     (4,080)     6,643 
    State                        (1,994)      (604)       983 
    Foreign                         222       (111)      (121) 
                                --------   --------   -------- 
    Total deferred               17,157     (4,795)     7,505 
                                --------   --------   -------- 
Income taxes before 
  extraordinary item            $58,617    $44,939    $69,439 
                                ========   ========   ======= 
 
  
   Income taxes were 33.6%, 36.4% and 37.4% of pretax earnings in fiscal 1997, 
1996 and 1995, respectively. A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes 
before extraordinary items with the amounts obtained by applying the federal 
statutory tax rate is as follows: 
 
 
                                June 29,    June 30,    June 25, 
                                    1997        1996        1995 
                                                
 
Federal statutory tax rate       35.0 %       35.0 %     35.0 % 
State income taxes net of 
  federal tax benefit             3.2          3.3        3.1 
State tax credits net of 
  federal 
  tax benefit                    (1.7)          --         -- 
Foreign taxes less than 
  domestic rate                  (1.8)        (0.8)      (0.7) 
Foreign Sales Corporation tax 
  benefit                        (0.5)        (0.9)      (0.6) 
Research and experimentation 
  credit                           --         (0.6)        -- 
Nondeductible expenses 
  and other                      (0.6)         0.4        0.6 
                                -------      -------     ------ 
Effective tax rate               33.6 %       36.4 %     37.4 % 
                                =======      =======     ====== 
 
 
   The deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary 
differences between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and their bases for income tax purposes. Significant components of the 



Company's deferred tax liabilities and assets as of June 29, 1997, and June 30, 
1996, were as follows: 
 
 
                                         June 29,  June 30,  
(Amounts in thousands)                    1997       1996 
- ------------------------------------------------------------                    
 
Deferred tax liabilities: 
    Property, plant and equipment       $62,899    $43,172 
    Other items                              --        324 
                                        -------    ------- 
    Total deferred tax liabilities       62,899     43,496 
                                        -------    ------- 
Deferred tax assets: 
    Accrued liabilities and valuation 
      reserves                            4,421      6,683 
    State tax credits                     2,963         -- 
    Other items                           4,695      4,588 
                                        -------    ------- 
    Total deferred tax assets            12,079     11,271 
                                        -------    ------- 
Net deferred tax liabilities            $50,820    $32,225 
                                        =======    ======= 
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NOTE 7          COMMON STOCK 
 
   Shares authorized were 500 million in 1997 and 1996. Common shares  
outstanding at June 29, 1997, and June 30, 1996, were 61,209,588 and 64,831,366, 
respectively. 
 
   The Company has Incentive Stock Option Plans with 2,446,591 shares reserved 
at June 29, 1997. There remain 1,000,000 options available for grant at year 
end. The transactions for 1997, 1996 and 1995 were as follows: 
 
 
 
                            1997            1996            1995 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------        
         
Shares under 
 option -- beginning 
 of year                 1,793,378       1,739,968       1,122,694 
Granted                         --         165,500         773,317 
Exercised (1997 -- 
 $9.79)                   (346,787)        (55,500)        (68,110) 
Canceled (from 
 $10.19 to $24.38)              --         (56,590)        (87,933) 
                      -------------    ------------   ------------- 
Shares under 
 option -- end of 
 year                    1,446,591       1,793,378       1,739,968 
                      =============   =============   ============= 
Options 
 exercisable -- end 
 of year                 1,446,591       1,687,018       1,328,900 
                      =============   =============    ============= 
Option price range    $4.80-$25.38    $3.80-$25.38     $3.80-$25.25 
                      =============   =============    ============= 
Option price range 
 for options 
 exercised            $3.80-$25.38   $10.19-$24.67    $10.19-$23.88 
                      =============  ==============   ============== 
  
 
   The Company also has a Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan with 1,693,519 shares 
reserved at June 29, 1997. There remain 534,500 options available for grant at 
year end. Transactions for 1997, 1996 and 1995 were as follows: 
 
 
                              1997            1996            1995 
- -------------------------------------------------------------------        
      
Shares under 
 option -- 
 beginning of year         693,519         738,519         331,033 
Granted (1997 -- 
 $28.64)                   465,500              --         408,519 
Exercised                       --              --          (1,033) 
Canceled ($25.83)               --         (45,000)             -- 
                      -------------    ------------    ------------- 
Shares under 
 option -- 
 end of year             1,159,019         693,519         738,519 
                     ==============    =============   ============= 
Options 
 exercisable -- end 
 of year                   888,519         693,519         338,519 
                     ==============   =============    ============= 
Option price range   $23.88-$31.00    $23.88-$25.83    $10.57-$25.83 
                     ==============   =============    ============= 
Option price range for 
 options exercised                                          $10.57 
                                                       ============== 
 
  
   All options granted vest on the date of issuance except for 270,500 
non-qualified options awarded in fiscal 1997 which have a two-year vesting 
schedule. The first one-third are exercisable as of October 17, 1997. The 
remaining two-thirds are exercisable one-third on April 17, 1998, and one-third 
on April 17, 1999. 
 
   The per-share weighted average fair value of options granted during the 1997 
fiscal year was $13.32. The weighted average exercise price of options  
outstanding at June 29, 1997, was $23.50 per share. The weighted average  



remaining contractual life for options outstanding at June 29, 1997, was 6.6 
years. 
 
 
NOTE 8          RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
   The Company has a qualified profit-sharing plan, which provides benefits for 
eligible salaried and hourly employees. The annual contribution to the plan, 
which is at the discretion of the Board of Directors, amounted to $17.0 million 
in each of 1997, 1996 and 1995. The Company leases its corporate office building 
from its profit-sharing plan through an independent trustee. 
 
 
NOTE 9          LEASES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
   In addition to the direct financing sales-leaseback obligation described in 
note 5 above, the Company is obligated under operating leases consisting  
primarily of real estate and equipment. Future obligations for minimum rentals 
under the leases during fiscal years after June 29, 1997, are $5.0 million in 
1998, $4.1 million in 1999, $4.0 million in 2000, $4.1 million in 2001 and $0.6 
million in 2002. Rental expense was $5.0 million, $4.4 million and $3.7 million 
for the fiscal years 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The Company had  
committed approximately $220.0 million for the purchase of equipment and  
facilities at June 29, 1997. 
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NOTE 10     BUSINESS SEGMENTS, FOREIGN OPERATIONS AND CONCENTRATIONS OF  
            CREDIT RISK 
 
   The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged predominantly in the processing 
of yarns by: texturing of synthetic filament polyester and nylon fiber, and 
spinning of cotton and cotton blend fibers with sales domestically and 
internationally, mostly to knitters and weavers for the apparel, industrial, 
hosiery, home furnishing, automotive upholstery and other end-use markets. 
 
   The Company's domestic operations serve customers principally located in the 
southeastern United States as well as international customers located primarily 
in North America, western Europe, and South America. During fiscal 1997 the 
Company did not have sales to any one customer in excess of 10% of consolidated 
revenues. The Company had sales to one customer of approximately 12% in 1996 and 
11% in 1995. Export sales, excluding those to its international operations in 
Ireland, aggregated $203.8 million in 1997, $173.1 million in 1996 and $138.3 
million in 1995. Net sales, pre-tax income from operations and identifiable 
assets for the Company's domestic operations for 1997, 1996 and 1995 totaled 
$1,564.8 billion, $1,474.0 billion and $1,466.1 billion; $161.6 million, $119.3 
million and $179.7 million; and $906.5 million, $833.5 million and $948.4  
million, respectively. 
 
   The Company's foreign operations are comprised primarily of its manufacturing 
facility in Ireland and had net sales of $140.1 million, $129.3 million and 
$88.5 million; pretax income of $12.7 million, $4.0 million and $5.9 million; 
and identifiable assets of $112.2 million, $117.6 million and $92.5 million in 
1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. 
 
   The concentration of credit risk for the Company with respect to trade 
receivables is mitigated due to the large number of customers, dispersion  
across different industries and geographic regions and its factoring  
arrangements. 
 
 
NOTE 11     DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
            INSTRUMENTS 
 
   The Company enters into commodity futures contracts as considered appropriate 
to reduce the risk of future price increases in connection with the purchase of 
cotton for projected manufacturing requirements. These forward contracts are 
accounted for as hedges and, accordingly, gains and losses are deferred and 
recognized in cost of sales as a component of the product cost. At June 29, 
1997, and June 30, 1996, there were no significant futures contracts  
outstanding. 
 
   The Company conducts its business in various foreign currencies. As a result, 
it is subject to the transaction exposure that arises from foreign exchange rate 
movements between the dates that foreign currency transactions are recorded 
(export sales and purchases) and the dates they are consummated (cash receipts 
and cash disbursements in foreign currencies). The Company utilizes some natural 
hedging to mitigate these transaction exposures. The Company also enters into 
currency forward contracts to hedge currency exposures. These contracts are 
principally entered into for the purchase of inventory and equipment and the 
sale of Company products into export markets. Counter-parties for these  
instruments are major financial institutions. 
 
   Currency forward contracts are entered to hedge exposure for sales in foreign 
currencies based on specific sales orders with customers or by estimated sales 
activity for a future time period. Generally, 60-80% of the sales value of these 
orders are covered by forward contracts. Maturity dates of the forward contracts 
attempt to match anticipated receivable collections. The Company marks the 
outstanding accounts receivable and forward contracts to market at month end and 
any realized and unrealized gains or losses are recorded as other income and 
expenses. At June 29, 1997, the fair market value of the forward contracts 
exceeded contract value by approximately $171 thousand. 
 
   The Company also enters currency forward contracts for committed equipment 
and inventory purchases. Generally 50-75% of the asset cost is covered by  
forward contracts. Forward contracts are matched with the anticipated date of 
delivery of the assets and gains and losses are recorded as a component of the 
asset cost. At June 29, 1997, there were approximately $2.4 million in  
unrecognized gains on such forward contracts. At June 29, 1997, and June 30, 
1996, the U.S. dollar equivalent of the contract value of these forward currency 
exchange agreements was $64.4 million and $21.6 million, respectively. The 
agreements at June 29, 1997, mature through June 1999. 
 



   The following methods were used by the Company in estimating its fair  
value disclosures for financial instruments: 
 
   Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables -- The 
carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of  
these instruments. 
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   Long-term debt -- The fair value of the Company's borrowings is estimated 
based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the 
current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities. 
 
   Foreign currency contracts -- The fair value is based on quotes obtained from 
brokers or reference to publicly available market information. 
 
   Commodity futures contracts -- The fair value is based on quotes obtained 
from brokers. 
 
 
NOTE 12         SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
   On June 30, 1997, the Company entered into a Contribution Agreement (the 
"Agreement") with Parkdale Mills, Inc. ("Parkdale") that set forth the terms and 
conditions by which Parkdale and the Company contributed all of the assets of 
their spun cotton yarn operations utilizing open-end and air jet spinning 
technologies to a newly created limited liability company named Parkdale 
America, LLC (the "LLC"). In accordance with the Agreement, each entity's  
inventory, owned real and tangible personal property and improvements thereon 
and the Company's leased real property associated with these operations were 
contributed to the LLC. Additionally, the Company contributed $32.9 million in 
cash to the LLC on June 30, 1997, and is required to contribute $10.0 million on 
June 30, 1998, and $10.0 million on June 30, 1999, whereas Parkdale contributed 
cash of $51.6 million on June 30, 1997. The LLC assumed certain long-term debt 
obligations of Unifi and Parkdale in the amounts of $23.5 million and $46.0 
million, respectively. In exchange for the assets contributed to the LLC and the 
liabilities assumed by the LLC, Unifi received a 34% ownership interest in the 
LLC and Parkdale received a 66% ownership in the LLC. 
 
   The following proforma condensed balance sheet reflects the Company's  
investment in Parkdale America, LLC as if the transaction was consummated as of 
June 29, 1997: 
 
                                      (Amounts in thousands) 
                                              
 
Assets: 
  Current assets                                $  348,963 
  Property, plant and equipment, net               464,473 
  Investment in affiliate                          181,119 
  Other noncurrent assets                           40,632 
                                                ---------- 
                                                $1,035,187 
                                                ========== 
 
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity: 
  Current liabilities                           $  163,804 
  Due to LLC                                        20,000 
  Long-term debt                                   255,732 
  Deferred income taxes                             47,120 
  Shareholders' equity                             548,531 
                                                ---------- 
                                                $1,035,187 
                                                ========== 
 
   On June 30, 1997, the excess of the Company's investment over the Company's 
equity in the underlying net assets of the LLC is estimated to be approximately 
$60 million, which we anticipate amortizing on a straight-line basis over 30 
years. Fiscal year 1997 sales from the Company's spun cotton operations  
contributed to the LLC amounted to $304.3 million. 
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FISCAL 1997 
 
   Consolidated net sales increased 6.3% from $1.603 billion in 1996 to $1.705 
billion in 1997. The current fiscal year included fifty-two weeks compared to 
the previous year's fifty-three weeks. Growth in net sales was achieved by a 
7.2% increase in unit volume offset slightly by a modest decline in per unit 
average sales prices. 
 
   Domestically, unit volumes increased 6.3% while average per unit sales prices 
remained stable. Increased unit volumes were experienced across all of our 
sales-yarn operations. Fiscal 1997 unit sales growth benefited from phased-in 
production of our new polyester texturing facility in Yadkinville, North  
Carolina, which was substantially completed at year end, and from realizing a 
full year's sales activity after purchasing the texturing operations of Glen 
Raven Mills, Inc.'s Norlina Division in November 1995. In addition, growth in 
export sales was experienced year-over-year contributing to the increase in unit 
volume. 
 
   Internationally, increased unit growth was offset by lower per unit average 
sales prices resulting in a net 8.3% increase in sales. Sales from foreign 
operations are denominated in local currencies and are hedged in part by the 
purchases of raw materials and services in those same currencies. As described 
in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, currency exchange rate risk 
is mitigated by the utilization of foreign currency forward contracts.   
Additionally, the net asset exposure is hedged by borrowings in local currencies 
which minimize the risk of currency fluctuations. We do not enter into  
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 
 
   Gross margin increased from 12.2% last year to 13.6% this year. The increased 
gross margin of 1.4% reflects lower operating costs due to improved efficiency 
and volume increases and raw material cost reductions based on product mix, as a 
percentage of net sales. 
 
   Selling, general and administrative expense as a percentage of net sales 
decreased from 2.8% last year to 2.7% this year. On a dollar-basis, selling, 
general and administrative expense increased $1.1 million to $46.2 million, or 
2.5%. Increased selling, general and administrative expenses are primarily 
attributable to higher information systems' costs and professional fees  
associated with various technology and corporate reengineering improvement 
efforts. 
 
   Interest expense declined $2.8 million or 19.5%, from $14.6 million in 1996 
to $11.7 million in 1997. In the fourth quarter of the prior year, $230 million 
of 6% convertible subordinated notes were redeemed utilizing the proceeds from a 
$400 million, five year, revolving credit facility. The effective interest rate 
of the revolving credit facility has remained below the convertible debt  
interest rate and the average debt level outstanding throughout fiscal 1997 has 
also been lower than the prior year resulting in reduced interest expense. 
Interest income declined from $6.8 million in 1996 to $2.2 million in 1997. This 
change reflects lower levels of invested funds which were primarily used for 
capital expenditures and the purchase and retirement of Company common stock. 
 
   Net other income and expense changed unfavorably by $5.6 million from $4.4 
million of income in 1996 to $1.2 million of expense in 1997. In the prior year, 
gains were recorded from the sale of capital assets and investments. 
 
   In the first quarter of fiscal 1996, the Company announced restructuring 
plans to further reduce the Company's cost structure and improve productivity 
through the consolidation of certain manufacturing operations and the  
disposition of under-utilized assets. The estimated cost of restructuring 
resulted in a non-recurring charge to earnings of $23.8 million or an after-tax 
charge to earnings of $14.9 million ($.23 per share). The Company has completed 
the majority of these restructuring efforts and anticipates no material  
differences in actual charges compared to its original estimates. 
 
   The effective tax rate decreased from 36.4% in 1996 to 33.6% in 1997. The 
improvement in the effective tax rate is primarily due to the realization of 
state tax credits during the current year and the improved operating results of 
foreign subsidiaries which are taxed at rates below those of U.S. operations. 
 
   As a result of the above, the Company realized during the current year net 
income of $115.7 million, or $1.81 per share, compared to $72.5 million, or 
$1.09 per share, for the corresponding prior fiscal year. Before the effects of 
the non-recurring and the extraordinary charges recognized in the prior year, 
earnings would have been $93.3 million or $1.41 per share. 
 
   As described in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, on June 30, 
1997, the Company entered into a Contribution Agreement (the "Agreement") with 



Parkdale Mills, Inc. ("Parkdale") that set forth the terms and conditions by 
which Parkdale and the Company contributed all of the assets of their spun 
cotton yarn operations utilizing open-end and air jet spinning technologies to a 
newly created limited liability company named Parkdale America, LLC (the "LLC"). 
The Agreement specified that each entity's inventory, owned real and tangible 
personal property and improvements thereon and the Company's leased real 
property associated with these operations were to be contributed to the LLC. 
Additionally, the Company contributed cash to the LLC of $32.9 million on June 
30, 1997, and is committed to contribute cash of $10.0 million on June 30, 1998, 
and $10.0 million on June 30, 1999, whereas Parkdale contributed cash of $51.6 
million on June 30, 1997. The LLC assumed certain long-term debt obligations of 
the Company and Parkdale in the amounts of $23.5 million and $46.0 million, 
respectively. In exchange for the assets contributed to the LLC and the  
liabilities assumed by the LLC, the Company received a 34% ownership interest in 
the LLC and Parkdale received a 66% ownership interest in the LLC. 
 
   Spun cotton operations contributed to the LLC had net sales of $304.4 million 
during fiscal year 1997. Management expects that the consolidation of spun 
cotton operations in the LLC will provide operating efficiencies and economies 
of scale that should translate to improved operating results for this business 
which had operating income of $4.7 million in fiscal 1997. 
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   On August 11, 1997, the Company announced that it had signed a letter of 
intent to purchase Spanco Yarns, a manufacturer of covered yarns. The purchase 
is subject to certain conditions and approvals. The acquisition, if consummated, 
will not be material to the Company's consolidated financial position or results 
of operations. 
 
   In June 1996, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
125, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and  
Extinguishments of Liabilities," (SFAS 125). SFAS 125 became effective for 
transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities 
beginning with the Company's third quarter of fiscal 1997. The adoption of this 
Standard did not and is not expected to impact the Company's consolidated  
results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 
 
   In February 1997, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 128, "Earnings per Share," (SFAS 128) which is required to be adopted in the 
December 1997 fiscal quarter. At that time, the Company will be required to 
change the method currently used to compute earnings per share and to restate 
all prior periods. Under the new requirements for calculating basic earnings per 
share, the dilutive effect of stock options will be excluded. The Company has 
determined that the impact of SFAS 128 will not have a significant effect on the 
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share. 
 
FISCAL 1996 
 
   Consolidated net sales increased 3.1% from $1.555 billion in 1995 to $1.603 
billion in 1996. The growth in net sales was accomplished by a 6.4% increase in 
per unit average sales price slightly offset by a decline in unit volume of 
3.1%. The decline in unit volume corresponds with the general softness  
experienced by the retail sector during the current year. 
 
   Our domestic operations experienced an overall decline in unit volume of 6.2% 
in 1996. Average per unit sales price for these operations increased  
approximately 7.5% during this period reflecting a change in product mix to 
lower-volume, higher-priced products and in response to increased raw material 
costs. Domestic polyester texturing capacity will increase through the 1997 
fiscal year as the Company's construction of a new texturing plant in  
Yadkinville, North Carolina comes on line. Sales growth of 45.4% in our  
international operations reflects increased capacity due to expansion and higher 
average unit sales prices. 
 
   Cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales increased from 85.6% last 
year to 87.8% this year. On a per unit basis, increases in raw material,  
packaging and manufacturing costs and depreciation expense together with reduced 
unit volume offset the effect of higher average sales prices. 
 
   Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales in 
1996 remained consistent with the prior year at 2.8%. On a dollar basis,  
selling, general and administrative expenses increased 4.6% from $43.1 million 
in 1995 to $45.1 million in 1996. This increase primarily reflects our on going 
efforts to enhance our information systems to improve the operating performance 
throughout the Company and the level of service to our customers. 
 
   Interest expense declined $0.9 million or 5.6%, from $15.5 million in 1995 to 
$14.6 million in 1996. In the fourth quarter of the current year the $230  
million of 6% convertible subordinated notes were redeemed. The redemption was 
funded by the proceeds from a $400 million, five-year revolving credit facility, 
which resulted in a lower effective interest rate than the convertible notes. 
The decrease in the interest rate in combination with the reduction in the debt 
level to $170 million at June 30, 1996, contributed to the decline in interest 
expense. Interest income declined from $10.4 million in 1995 to $6.8 million in 
1996. This change reflects lower levels of invested funds which were used for 
capital expenditures, acquisitions, long-term debt extinguishment and the  
purchase and retirement of Company common stock. Other income declined $5.3 
million from $9.7 million in 1995 to $4.4 million in 1996. In the prior year, 
gains were recognized from the sale of equity affiliates and capital assets in 
excess of current year gains from the sale of short-term investments and capital 
assets. 
 
   In the first quarter of the current year, the Company recorded a  
non-recurring charge of $23.8 million, or an after-tax charge to earnings of 
$14.9 million ($0.23 per share). The significant components of the non-recurring 
charge included $2.4 million of severance and other employee-related costs ($1.7 
million incurred through June 30, 1996, associated with the termination of 275 
employees) and a $21.4 million write-down to estimated fair value less the cost 
of disposal of under-utilized or consolidated assets ($7.4 million realized as 
of June 30, 1996). The charge resulted from the plan to restructure and further 
reduce the Company's cost structure and improve productivity through the  
consolidation of certain manufacturing facilities and the disposition of 
under-utilized assets. As part of the restructuring plan, the Company has  



closed, effective November 17, 1995, the spun yarn manufacturing facilities in 
Edenton and Mount Pleasant, North Carolina. 
 
   The effective tax rate has decreased from 37.4% in 1995 to 36.4% in 1996. The 
decline in the effective tax rate is attributed to the increase in earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries taxed at rates below the domestic rate and increased  
federal tax benefits of the Company's Foreign Sales Corporation and research and 
experimentation tax credits. 
 
   During the fourth quarter of the current year, the Company recognized an 
extraordinary after-tax charge of $5.9 million or $0.09 per share as a result of 
the premium paid for the early retirement of the $230 million of 6% convertible 
subordinated notes due 2002. 
 
   As a result of the above, the Company realized during the current year net 
income of $72.5 million, or $1.09 per share compared to corresponding totals in 
the prior year of $116.2 million or $1.67 per share. Before the effects of the 
non-recurring and the extraordinary charges recognized in the current year, the 
Company had net earnings of $93.3 million, or $1.41 per share. 
 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
   Cash provided by operations continues to be the Company's primary source of 
funds to finance operating needs and capital expenditures. Cash generated from 
operations   
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was $183.8 million for fiscal 1997 compared to $201.5 million for fiscal 1996. 
Increases in working capital reduced cash flow from operating activities by 
$37.2 million for fiscal 1997. The primary components of the working capital 
increase, excluding the effects of currency translation, were increases in 
accounts receivable of $26.4 million, and inventories of $10.0 million and a 
decrease in income taxes payable of $9.5 million. These amounts were partially 
offset by an increase in payables and accruals of $9.3 million. The increase in 
accounts receivable since the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, is attributable 
to higher sales volume and, specifically, export sales which comprised a higher 
percentage of total sales throughout this period. Export sales typically have a 
longer collection cycle than domestic sales. Non-cash items increased cash 
provided by operations by $105.4 million of which depreciation and amortization 
of $87.9 million and the provision for deferred income taxes of $17.2 million 
were the primary components. 
 
   Working capital levels are more than adequate to meet the operating  
requirements of the Company. We ended the current year with working capital of 
$216.1 million which included cash and cash equivalents of $9.5 million.  The 
Company utilized $141.6 million and $56.1 million for net investing and 
financing activities, respectively, during fiscal 1997. Significant expenditures 
during fiscal 1997 included $143.2 million of capital expenditures for capacity 
expansions and upgrading of facilities, $27.9 million for the payment of the 
Company's cash dividends and $121.0 million for the purchase and retirement of 
Company common stock. The Company utilized proceeds from net borrowings under 
its long-term debt agreements of $87.0 million and $7.3 million from other 
sources to partially offset these cash expenditures. 
 
   On October 21, 1993, the Board of Directors authorized Management to 
repurchase up to 15 million shares of Unifi's common stock from time to time at 
such prices as Management feels advisable and in the best interest of the  
Company. Through June 29, 1997, 9.7 million shares have been repurchased at a 
total cost of $262.2 million including 3.9 million shares repurchased in fiscal 
1997 pursuant to this Board authorization. 
 
   At June 29, 1997, the Company has committed approximately $220.0 million for 
the purchase, construction and upgrade of equipment and facilities, which is 
scheduled to be incurred during fiscal years 1998 and 1999. Estimated costs 
associated with the construction of our previously announced polyester fiber 
production facility are included in the $220.0 million commitment. In addition, 
the Company has begun construction of a new nylon texturing and covering  
facility in Madison, North Carolina. This plant will replace existing capacity 
and allow for additional expansion. Certain construction and auxiliary machinery 
components of these projects are still being negotiated. 
 
   The contribution of the spun yarn operations to Parkdale America, LLC (the 
"LLC") for a 34% interest in the LLC subsequent to year end has the potential of 
decreasing future cash flows from operations unless distributions of net 
earnings are made by the LLC. It is anticipated that distributions sufficient to 
satisfy tax obligations will be made; however, there can be no assurances that 
such distributions will be made in fiscal 1998. The cash flow from operations of 
the spun cotton operations amounted to $29.2 million in fiscal 1997. 
 
   Management believes the current financial position of the Company in 
connection with its operations and its access to debt and equity markets is 
sufficient to meet anticipated capital expenditure, strategic acquisition,  
working capital, Company common stock repurchases and other financial needs. 
 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
   This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations and other sections of this Annual Report contain forward-looking 
statements about the Company's financial condition and results of operations 
that are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about the 
markets in which the Company operates, Management's beliefs and assumptions made 
by Management. Words such as "expects," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," 
variations of such words and other similar expressions are intended to identify 
such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future 
performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions which are 
difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ  
materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking  
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these  
forward-looking statements, which reflect Management's judgment only as of the 
date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly any of 
these forward-looking statements to reflect new information, future events or 
otherwise. 
 
   Factors that may cause actual outcome and results to differ materially from 



these forward-looking statements include availability, sourcing and pricing of 
raw materials, pressures on sales prices due to competition and economic 
conditions, reliance on and financial viability of significant customers, 
technological advancements, changes in construction spending and capital  
equipment expenditures (including those related to unforeseen acquisition  
opportunities), continued availability of financial resources through financing 
arrangements and operations, negotiation of new or modifications of existing 
contracts for asset management and for property and equipment construction and 
acquisition, regulations governing tax laws, other governmental and  
authoritative bodies' policies and legislation, the continuation and magnitude 
of the Company's common stock repurchase program and proceeds received from the 
sale of assets held for disposal. In addition to these representative factors, 
forward-looking statements could be impacted by general domestic and  
international economic and industry conditions including fluctuations in 
currency exchange, interest and inflation rates. 
     
                                       30 
 



 
SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA  
 
 
 
 
 
(Amounts in thousands, 
except per share data) June 29,  June 30,   June 25,  June 26,     June 27,  
                          1997      1996       1995      1994         1993 
                                                     
Summary of Earnings: 
Net sales             $1,704,926  $1,603,280  $1,554,557 $1,384,797 $1,405,651 
Cost of sales          1,473,667   1,407,608   1,330,410  1,185,386  1,141,126 
Gross profit             231,259     195,672     224,147    199,411    264,525 
Selling, general and 
  administrative expense  46,229      45,084      43,116     40,429     38,484 
Interest expense          11,749      14,593      15,452     18,241     25,785 
Interest income           (2,219)     (6,757)    (10,372)    (8,290)   (13,537) 
Other income               1,218      (4,390)     (9,659)    (1,238)    (5,775) 
Non-recurring charge           --     23,826          --     13,433        -- 
Income before income taxes 
  and extraordinary item 174,282     123,316     185,610    136,836    219,568 
Provision for income  
  taxes                   58,617      44,939      69,439      60,344    82,924 
Income before 
  extraordinary item     115,665      78,377     116,171     76,492    136,644 
Extraordinary item            --       5,898          --         --          -- 
Net income               115,665      72,479     116,171     76,492    136,644 
Per Share of Common Stock: 
Income before 
  extraordinary item  $     1.81    $    1.18    $  1.67 $    1.08    $   1.93 
Extraordinary item            --          .09         --        --          -- 
Net income                  1.81         1.09       1.67      1.08        1.93 
Cash dividends paid          .44          .52        .40       .56         .42 
Financial Data: 
Working capital        $ 216,145    $ 196,222  $ 333,357 $ 304,274   $ 320,215 
Gross property, plant and 
  equipment            1,147,148     1,027,128   910,383   848,637     750,552 
Total assets           1,018,703       951,084 1,040,902 1,003,252   1,017,449 
Long-term debt           255,799       170,000   230,000   230,000     250,241 
Shareholders' equity     548,531       583,206   603,502   588,522     545,553 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly RESULTS (Unaudited) 
 
     Quarterly financial data for the years ended June 29,1997, and June 30, 
     1996, is presented below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Amounts in thousands, 
  except per share data)         First         Second      Third       Fourth 
                                 Quarter       Quarter     Quarter     Quarter 
 
                                                                  
1996: 
Net sales                         $387,369     $401,437    $375,509     $438,965 
Gross profit                        44,929       49,255      45,544       55,944 
Income before extraordinary item     6,767       24,118      20,747       26,745 
Extraordinary item                      --           --          --        5,898 
Net income                           6,767       24,118      20,747       20,847 
Income before extraordinary item per 
  share                                .10          .36         .32          .40 
Earnings per share                     .10          .36         .32          .32 
 
1997: 
Net sales                         $414,715     $419,345    $438,252     $432,614 
Gross profit                        49,945       58,858      61,808       60,648 
Net income                          23,955       28,790      31,467       31,453 
Earnings per share                     .37          .44         .50          .51 
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MARKET AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)  
 
   The Company's common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock  
Exchange. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales  
prices of the Unifi Common Stock as reported on the NYSE Composite Tape and  
the regular cash dividends per share declared by Unifi during the periods  
indicated. 
 
 
                                                 High        Low      Dividends 
 
Fiscal year 1995: 
  First quarter ended September 25, 1994        $25.50      $23.38     $.10 
  Second quarter ended December 25, 1994        $26.63      $23.88     $.10 
  Third quarter ended March 26, 1995            $29.13      $25.00     $.10 
  Fourth quarter ended June 25, 1995            $27.75      $22.63     $.10 
 
Fiscal year 1996: 
  First quarter ended September 24, 1995        $26.63      $23.50     $.13 
  Second quarter ended December 24, 1995        $25.00      $21.88     $.13 
  Third quarter ended March 24, 1996            $25.75      $21.25     $.13 
  Fourth quarter ended June 30, 1996            $28.50      $23.00     $.13 
 
Fiscal year 1997: 
  First quarter ended September 29, 1996        $28.88      $26.00     $.11 
  Second quarter ended December 29, 1996        $33.13      $26.63     $.11 
  Third quarter ended March 30, 1997            $33.88      $30.13     $.11 
  Fourth quarter ended June 29, 1997            $36.88      $29.63     $.11 
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                               EXHIBIT (13b-1) 
 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Unifi, Inc. 
 
   We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unifi, Inc. 
as of June 29, 1997, and June 30, 1996, and the related consolidated statements 
of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended June 29, 1997.  These financial statements are the  
responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
   We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing  
standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
   In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Unifi, Inc. at 
June 29, 1997, and June 30, 1996, and the consolidated results of its operations 
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 29,  
1997, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
ERNST & YOUNG LLP 
 
Greensboro, North Carolina 
July 15, 1997 
 



                               Exhibit (21)  
   
   
                               UNIFI, INC.  
   
                               SUBSIDIARIES  
 
                                                                  Percentage   
                                                                   of Voting 
                                                                  Securities   
   Name               Address               Incorporation           Owned   
- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------  
   
Unifi, FSC Limited    Agana, Guam                Guam                100%   
   
Unifi Textured Yarns  Letterkenny,   
Europe, Ltd.            Ireland             United Kingdom           100%   
   
Unifi International   
Services, Inc.      Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
UNIFI Manufacturing,  
Inc.                Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
UNIFI Sales &  
Distribution, Inc.  Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
UNIFI Manufacturing 
Virginia, LLC       Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
UNIFI Export  
Sales, LLC          Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
UNIFI Equipment 
Leasing, LLC        Greensboro, NC          North Carolina           100% 
 
Parkdale America,  
LLC                   Gastonia, NC          North Carolina            34% 
 
MiCell Technologies,  
Inc.                   Raleigh, NC          North Carolina            50% 
 



                                 EXHIBIT (23) 
 
                             Consent of Independent Auditors 
 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) 
of Unifi, Inc. of our report dated July 15, 1997, included in the 1997 Annual 
Report to Shareholders of Unifi, Inc. 
 
We also consent to the addition of the financial statement schedule of Unifi,  
Inc. listed in Item 14(a) to the financial statements covered by our report 
dated July 15, 1997, incorporated herein by reference. 
 
In addition, we consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration 
Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-23201) pertaining to the Unifi, Inc. 1982 Incentive 
Stock Option Plan and the 1987 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, and the  
Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-53799) pertaining to the Unifi, Inc.  
1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan and Unifi Spun Yarns, Inc. 1992 Employee Stock 
Option Plan, and Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-35001) pertaining to  
the Unifi, Inc. 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the Unifi, Inc. 1996  
Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan of our report dated July 15, 1997, with respect 
to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Unifi, Inc.  
incorporated herein by reference in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year 
ended June 29, 1997. 
 
                                                        ERNST & YOUNG LLP 
                                                        Ernst & Young LLP 
 
 
 
Greensboro, North Carolina 
September 25, 1997 
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The schedule contains summary financial information extracted from the 
Company's Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended June 
29, 1997, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to such financial 
statements. 

 1000 
        
                              
                   YEAR 
                          JUN-29-1997 
                               JUN-29-1997 
                                           9,514 
                                         0 
                                  229,695 
                                     5,462 
                                    142,263 
                               379,698 
                                       1,147,148 
                                 548,775 
                               1,018,703 
                          163,553 
                                              0 
                                0 
                                          0 
                                         6,121 
                                     542,410
                 1,018,703 
                                      1,704,926 
                             1,704,926 
                                        1,473,667 
                                1,473,667 
                                     0 
                                     0 
                              11,749 
                                174,282 
                                    58,617 
                            115,665 
                                       0 
                                      0 
                                            0 
                                   115,665 
                                     1.81 
                                     1.81 

Note: Other Equity of $542,410 is comprised of Retained Earnings of 
$545,099 and Cumulative Translation Adjustment of $(2,689). 
 
         
 
 


